
 
 

 
 

 
 

Information about and copies of supporting materials on agenda items are available for public review at 999 Rush 
Creek Place, Novato, at the Reception Desk, or by calling the District Secretary at (415) 897-4133.  A fee may be 
charged for copies.  District facilities and meetings comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  If special 
accommodations are needed, please contact the District Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior to 
the meeting. 

ATTENTION:  This will be a virtual meeting of the Board of Directors pursuant 
 to Executive Order N-29-20 issued by the Governor of the State of California. 
There will not be a public location for participating in this meeting, but any interested member of the public  

can participate telephonically by utilizing the dial-in information printed on this agenda. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please note:  In the event of technical difficulties during the meeting, the District Secretary will adjourn the 
meeting and the remainder of the agenda will be rescheduled for a future special meeting which shall be 

open to the public and noticed pursuant to the Brown Act. 
 

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT 
AGENDA – REGULAR MEETING 

May 4, 2021 – 6:00 p.m. 
Location: Virtual Meeting 

Novato, California 
 

 

  
 

Video Zoom Method 
 

 CLICK ON LINK BELOW:     SIGN IN TO ZOOM: 
 

 Go to:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8349174264 OR  Meeting ID:  8349174264 
 
 Password: 466521      Password:  466521 

Call in Method: 
 
Dial:   +1 669 900 9128 
   +1 253 215 8782 
   +1 346 248 7799 
   +1 301 715 8592 
   +1 312 626 6799 
   +1 646 558 8656 
 
   Meeting ID: 834 917 4264# 
 
   Participant ID:  # 
 
   Password: 466521# 
 

For clarity of discussion, the Public is requested to MUTE except: 
1. During Open Time for public expression item. 

2. Public comment period on agenda items. 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8349174264
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Est. 
Time Item Subject 

6:00 p.m.  CALL TO ORDER  

 1.  APPROVE MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING, April 20, 2021 

 2.  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  

 3.  OPEN TIME: (Please observe a three-minute time limit) 

  This section of the agenda is provided so that the public may express comments on any issues not listed 
on the agenda that are of interest to the public and within the jurisdiction of the North Marin Water 
District.  When comments are made about matters not on the agenda, Board members can ask 
questions for clarification, respond to statements or questions from members of the public, refer a 
matter to staff, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.  The public may also 
express comments on agenda items at the time of Board consideration. 

 4.  QUARTERLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT – March 31, 2021 

 5.  STAFF/DIRECTORS REPORTS 

  CONSENT CALENDAR 

The General Manager has reviewed the following items.  To his knowledge, there is no 
opposition to the action.  The items can be acted on in one consolidated motion as 
recommended or may be removed from the Consent Calendar and separately considered at 
the request of any person. 

 6.  Consent -Approve:  Contract Amendment for Engineering Services - White and Prescott 

 7.  Consent -Approve:  Contract Amendment to General Services Agreement - Associated Right 
     of Way Services 

  ACTION CALENDAR 

 8.  Approve: Text for Spring 2021 Novato “Waterline”, Volume 22, Issue 46 

 9.  Approve: Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) – Direction to Staff 

 10.  Approve: ESA Consulting Services Agreement Amendment 2- Supplemental Groundwater,     
     Stream Flow and Biological Monitoring Services for New Gallagher Well No. 2 

 11.  Approve: Renew Declaration of Local Emergency Related to COVID-19 Pandemic 

  INFORMATION ITEMS 

 12.  NMWD Headquarters Upgrade Schematic Design Overview and Cost 

 13.  Initial Review – Capital Project FY21/22 & FY22/23 & Equipment Budget FY21/22 

 14.  FY 2020/21 Third Quarter Progress Report -Operations/Maintenance 

 15.  Vineyard Road Maintenance Agreement Update 

 16.  MISCELLANEOUS 
Disbursements - Dated April 22, 2021 
Disbursements – Dated April 29, 2021 
FY21 3rd Quarter Labor Cost Report 
Rate Increase Notice on Water Bill – Novato Service Area 
Rate Increase Notice on Water Bill – West Marin Service Area 
Direct Mailer - Notice of Proposed Water Rate Increases – Novato Service Area 
Direct Mailer - Notice of Proposed Water Revenue Increases and Rate Structure Changes  
     – West Marin Service Area 
Direct Mailer - Notice of Proposed Water Rate Increases – Oceana Marin Sewer Service     



  Date Posted: 4/30/2021 
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All times are approximate and for reference only.   

The Board of Directors may consider an item at a different time than set forth herein. 

 

  

Est. 
Time Item Subject 

    Area 
 
News Articles: 
Marin IJ – SLOWING THE FLOW? Reduced water releases from reservoirs under review –      
      MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Marin IJ – ADUs are hot properties, and now often legal, too – AT HOME 
Marin IJ – Limits on water use approved for Marin 
OES News – Governor Newsom Takes Action to Respond to Drought Conditions 
Marin IJ – SMART’s leader to step down from post – RETIRES IN AUGUST 
ACWA – ACWA WEIGHS IN ON STATE WATER AFFORDABILITY LEGISLATION 
Point Reyes Light – Historic sale for Black Mountain 
Point Reyes Light – North Marin’s Gallagher well permit appealed 
Point Reyes Light – Farmers face drought crisis 
Marin IJ - Marin explores pipeline plan -MMWD 
Marin IJ – Senate Dems detail $3.4B drought plan – CALIFORNIA 
Point Reyes Light – Letters – Well is desperately needed 
 

7:15 p.m. 17.  ADJOURNMENT 
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Item #1

DRAFT
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April20, 2021

CALL ORDER

President Grossi announced that due to the Coronavirus outbreak and pursuant to

Executive Order N-29-20 issued by the Governor of the State of California this was a virtual

meeting. President Grossi called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of North Marin

Water District to order at6:02 p.m. and the agenda was accepted as presented. President Grossi

added that there was not a public location for participating in this meeting, but any interested

members of the public could participate remotely by utilizing the video or phone conference dial-

in method using information printed on the agenda.

President Grossi welcomed the public to participate in the remote meeting and asked that

they mute themselves, except during open time and while making comments on the agenda items.

President Grossi noted that due to the virtual nature of the meeting he will request a roll call of

the Directors. A roll call was done, those in remote attendance established a quorum.

Participating remotely were Directors Jack Baker, Rick Fraites, Jim Grossi, Michael Joly and

Stephen Petterle.

President Grossi announced in the event of technical difficulties during the meeting, the

District Secretary will adjourn the meeting and the remainder of the agenda will be rescheduled

for a future special meeting which shall be open to the public and noticed pursuant to the Brown

Act.

Mr. Mclntyre performed a roll call of staff, participating remotely were Drew Mclntyre

(General Manager), Tony Williams (Assistant GM/Chief Engineer), Terrie Kehoe (District

Secretary), Julie Blue (Auditor-Controller), Robert Clark (Operations/Maintenance

Superintendent), Tony Arendell (Construction/Maintenance Superintendent), Ryan Grisso (Water

Conservation Coordinator) and Monica Hernandez-Juarez (Receptionist/Customer Service

Assistant).

Mr. Mclntyre announced also parlicipating remotely were Morgan Biggerstaff from

BPMNJ, District legal counsel and consultant David Umezakifrom EKI Environment & Water, lnc.

President Grossi announced for those joining the virtual meeting from the public to identify

themselves. Ken Levin and Peggy Day from the Point Reyes Village Association and Will Houston

from the Marin lJ were in attendance. Additionally, Jacob C. and an unidentified person also

joined remotely.
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MINUTES

On motion of Director Baker seconded by Director Petterle the Board approved minutes

from the April 6, 2021 Regular Board Meeting by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

GENERAL MAN AGER'S REPORT

Drv Year Conditions

Mr. Mclntyre apprised the Board that in addition to the items on agenda related to dry year

conditions, he wanted to report that at the May 3'd Water Advisory Committee (WAC) Meeting he

expects to have a resolution for the WAC members to approve calling for an increase in water

use efficiency to preserve supplies in Lake Mendocino and in Lake Sonoma. This resolution will

also urge customers to reduce water use by 20%.

Technical Advisorv Committee (TAC)

Mr. Mclntyre informed the Board that the TAC committee continues to work on an

allocation allotment that reduces overall Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) deliveries to

match a 20% reduction in Russian River diversions to preserve storage in Lake Sonoma. He

noted this reduction will be included in the Temporary Urgency Change Petition (TUCP), that is

expected to be filed with the state by mid-May.

r Transmission

Mr. Mclntyre reported he attended a SCWA Board meeting on April 20th in which the

Board approved the FY 22 WTS Budget. He stated he had the opportunity to speak in supporl

of the budget and the collaborative negotiation process.

Potter Vallev Proiect (PVP)

Mr. Mclntyre announced on Monday, April 1gth he participated in another virtual

Congressman Huffman Potter Valley Project Ad Hoc meeting. He stated the primary focus of

the meeting was to report out on the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)'s study plan

determination. Mr. Mclntyre noted FERC's overall response was beneficial to the Partners. He

added, more information is expected over the next two to four months as the focus now is on

obtaining at least $2M to get started on some of the critical studies.
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Director Joly noted that Governor Newsom has not issued any statement about the

drought. Director Joly asked if the state or regulatory authorities have addressed this critical area,

and if there has been any progress with congress or at the state level with any supply solutions

or suggestions. Mr. Mclntyre replied that so far, the state has recognized the dry conditions,

however there have been no statewide mandates implemented. He added, this could change.

Mr. Mclntyre reported the federal government has declared some counties in drought conditions

which will free up federal funds for agriculture. Director Joly stated it is a supply matter, with the

levels of the lakes it is frightening to see the numbers. He added if we have a third consecutive

dry year we will be in peril. Mr. Mclntyre stated there have been discussions with the water

contractors to look at options to increase supply. He noted that elements of the Regional Water

Resiliency Supply Study work are being accelerated to identify feasible options this fall. Director

Joly replied this strategy makes sense, and stated he appreciates the push to accelerate the

study.

OPEN TIME

President Grossi asked if anyone from the public wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda and there was no response.

STAF F/DI RECTORS REPORTS

President Grossi asked if any Directors or staff wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda and the following were discussed.

Mr. Williams informed the Board that the architects need more time to prepare the

schematic design for the District Headquarters Project. He added he will come back to the Board

at the first meeting in May with a preliminary design and cost estimate.

Mr. Williams announced a new senior engineer has been hired and will start on May 3'd.

He stated the new employee is a local engineer from Novato who came to us from East Bay

Municipal Water District. Mr. Williams expressed that he is excited to have this new addition to

the department.

Ms. Blue apprised the Board that she and Mr. Williams met with County of Marin staff to

discuss using federal emergency rental assistance funds to pay for past due water bills. Ms. Blue

noted she will continue to meet with the county and will have more to report later.

MINNTI4I Y PROGRES a E trE Í'tEtT vltlal IQTñlllltrP SERVICE î1 UES T'1'IAIN AIE'tr

The Monthly Progress Report for March was reviewed. Mr. Mclntyre reported that water

production in Novato was down 19% from one year ago and up 1o/o fiscal yearto date. ln West

Marin, water production was down 1o/o from one year ago and down 3% fiscal year to date.

Recycled Water production was down 10% from one year ago and up 4o/o fiscal year to date. The
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Board was apprised that Stafford Lake was at44o/o capacity, Lake Sonoma was at 63% and Lake

Mendocino was at 45o/o capacity. ln Oceana Marin effluent volume was 0.551 MG for March

compared to 0.380 MG one year ago; a little higher than last year most likely due to greater

visitation due to COVID. Mr. Mclntyre added there was good irrigation discharge and overall

freeboard levels looked good. Under Safety and LiabilitY, we had 134 days without a lost time

injury. Under Utility Performance, Mr. Mclntyre reporled six copper laterals were replaced on

Ganey Court. On the Summary of Complaints and Service Orders, the Board was apprised that

total numbers are down 35% from March one year ago. Mr. Mclntyre commended staff for doing

a great job interacting with the public.

Director Petterle agreed that it feels good to read all the positive comments, and also

wanted to congratulate the team for putting their best effort forward. Director Joly concurred,

stating the District is blessed to have a courteous, professional and productive staff.

Director Joly noted Stafford Lake is at 51% capacity, and asked when staff will stop the

backfeeding into the lake. Mr. Mclntyre replied the District will stop backfeeding on April 30th and

by that time a little over 1,000 AF will have been backfed into Stafford Lake. Director Joly asked

when we will start up the treatment plant again. Mr. Mclntyre replied during the period of July

through October to make sure we have enough water when SCWA reduces delivery allotments.

Ms. Blue reported on the March 2021 lnvestments, where the District's portfolio holds

$27M earning a 0.54o/o average rate of return. She noted that during March the cash balance

increased by $2,355,972. She also noted the Local Agency lnvestment Fund (LAIF) interest rate

was 0.36%.

ACTION ITEMS

ADOPT RES UTION TO AMEND Y WATER CONSERYATION NCE 41

IN THE NOVATO SERVICE AREA

Mr. Grisso apprised the Board since the adoption of Ordinance 41, SCWA has indicated

that NMWD will likely see a 2Oo/o reduction in Russian River deliveries compared to deliveries in

2020. Mr. Grisso explained to adequately respond to the continued water shortage emergency

conditions staff recommended amending Section 4 of Ordinance 41to suspend new connections

to the system as of July 1,2021 and amend Section 6 of Ordinance 41 to include a "Stage 1' 20o/o

voluntary reduction in water use from May 1't to June 30th , a "Stage 2" mandatory 20% reduction

in water use from July 1't to November 1't and adding specific types of non-essential water use

restrictions in Stage 2, Mr. Grisso reminded the Board that in Stage 2 the drought surcharge

would go into effect July '1 through November 1,2021. He added there is a three day a week

limitation on watering landscape unless using drip irrigation or hand watering with a hose. He
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noted recycled water is not affected by the 20% reduction. Mr. Grisso added there will be

limitations on completely filling drained pools, restrictions on washing cars, and staff will provide

a proactive approach to help customers achieve these goals. Mr. Grisso informed the Board that

there will be communication about the prohibitions in the Spring Waterline Newsletter, on the

website and through social media. Additionally, there will be lawn signs for well water and

recycled water customers so people understand they are not using potable water. Mr. Grisso

stated there will be a form on the website so customers can submit water waste repoñs and also

use the AMI system to manage and conserve levels of compliance.

DirectorJoly asked if the suspension of new connections stads on July 1't and Mr. Grisso

confirmed. Director Joly asked when was the last time we enacted a drought surcharge. Mr.

Grisso replied in 2014. Director Joly noted Stage 2 will trigger the drought surcharge automatically

and asked what the charge will be. Mr. Grisso responded $1.00 per 1,000 gallons. Director

Grossi asked if the new connections affect those people already under contract or if it only affects

customers who have not submitted an application. Mr. Grisso replied that it does not affect

developer agreements approved by the Board before July 1 ,2021.

Jacob C. a resident of Novato, referred to the amendment to the Ordinance in reference

to filling pools and asked if he will be prohibited from filling his pool. He stated he recently invested

money in a new pool, and now he is wondering if that investment is lost. Mr. Mclntyre thanked

Mr. C. for the question and clarified that the pool prohibition relates to completely filling a drained

pool, not topping off the pool due to evaporation. Mr. C. responded with appreciation

On the motion of Director Baker, and seconded by Director Petterle the Board approved

adoption of Resolution 21-07 amending Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance No. 41 for

the Novato Service Area by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

ADOPT ENHANCED TER CONSERVATION PROGRAM INCENTIYES FOR DROUGHT

YEAR

Mr. Grisso reminded the Board of the approved adoption of revised resolutions 06-01 and

06-02 to enhance the water conservation program incentives during drought years. He stated the

updated Resolutions 06-01 and 06-02 includes current incentives and recommended enhanced

incentive options which include a 25-100% increase in either rebate amounts or the maximum

rebate level, with the exception of the Weather-Based lrrigation Controllerwhich is recommended
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to remain at the current level.

Director Joly thanked Mr. Grisso for his good work. He asked if staff would articulate this

information on our website so our customers understand what is available. He added, our

consumers may not know about our controller rebate and we could help them become more

interested and help to enhance conservation. Mr. Grisso replied there will be language in the

Spring Waterline Newsletter that will address the increase in rebates in addition to a push on

social media and on the NMWD website. Director Petterle stated he believes MMWD has a $2.00

per square foot lawn rebate, but it must be replaced with low irrigation landscape. Mr. Grisso

confirmed, noting our rebate has the same requirement.

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Baker the Board adopted

the revised Resolutions 06-01 and 06-02 to increase water conservation program incentives by

the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

SET PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSTDER VAL OF THE 2O2O URBAN WA TER

MANAGEMENT PLAN AND WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN FOR NOVATO

Mr. Grisso requested the Board approve setting a public hearing to consider approval of

the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Novato. He

stated the 2020 UWMP will include all of the information and analysis required by the Department

of Water Resources and the Water Shortage Contingency Plan will result in a stand-alone plan,

which is being coordinated with SCWA. He added the UWMP is due July 1 ,2021 and is required

by all agencies that serve more than 3,000 AF or have more than 3,000 connections. Mr. Grisso

noted therefore the 2020 UWMP would only apply to the Novato Service Area.

David Umezaki from EKI Environment & Water, lnc. gave a presentation on the water

demand analysis for the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan. Mr. Umezaki summarized the

projected potable water demands; savings from water conservation programs; future

conservation programs and status of UWMP sections. A general discussion ensued.

Director Petterle stated it would be nice to get a copy of the PowerPoint presentation in

the Board packet so the Directors can follow along and no parts are blocked out in the zoom view.

He stated in regards to the demand analysis there was no real indication that this is for Novato

only, it needs to have more clarification that it is not for the entire NMWD service area. Director

Petterle added he could see how consumers from West Marin may be confused. Additionally, he
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noted it would make sense to display the divisions on the District map and the Directors that

represent each division. Lastly, Director Petterle noted on page 1-1 of the 2020 Water Demand

Analysis and Water Conservation Measure Update, it should say Stafford Lake, not Safford. Mr.

Umezaki thanked Director Petterle for his input. Director Fraites noted on Zoom if you put the

person speaking in the far right then you can see the presentation information more easily.

Director Petterle thanked Director Fraites for his suggestion. Director Joly stated he found the

study very interesting and noted public supply is a big concern in Novato. He added in emails he

has received and through conversation with the San Marin residents in his district, people ask

about desalination and sources of supply. Director Joly noted this information still seems to be

under review. Mr. Umezaki replied Sections 6 and 7 are in draft form, þecause staff is waiting to

get more information from SCWA and once that is received it will be incorporated in the plan.

Director Joly stated the 12.60/o growth number is double the job growth number and with current

supply constraints and high housing costs he would be curious as to when the supply will impact

the quality of life. Mr. Mclntyre agreed that supply is an important issue but noted the projected

2045 demand is actually lower than historical demands in the early 2000's. Director Joly added

the fact that in 2045 the number is still below that of 2006 is pretty remarkable. Director Grossi

stated this is a good base study, however there are so many variables over the next five to thirty

years, not only with climate change and rainfall, but with the potential for ABAG to add 14,000

more units in Marin County by 2030. He noted we can't add units without requiring more supply.

Mr. Grisso announced the 2O2O UWMP draft will be presented at the June 1't Agenda,

and the public hearing will be held on June 15th.

On the motion of Director Joly, and seconded by Director Fraites the Board set the June

15,2021 regular Board meeting as the date and time to hold a public hearing to consider approval

of the 2020 Urban Water Management Plan and Updated Water Shortage Contingency Plan for

Novato by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

APPROVE RATE INCREASE LETTER TO NOVATO WATER & RECYCLED WATER

CUSTOMERS

Ms. Blue requested the Board approve the rate increase letter to the Novato Water and

Recycled Water customers. She reported the proposed commodity and bimonthly service charge

rate increase for Novato Water customers is 6% and the median single-family residential
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customer will see a $7.50 increase on their typical bi-monthly bill. Ms. Blue added, the proposed

commodity and bimonthly service charge rate increase for Recycled Water customers will be 6%

and customers with meters 1-inch and larger will see an additional charge of $24.1 1 added to the

bi-monthly fixed service charge. Ms. Blue noted the service charge increase conforms with the

proposed rates as shown in the 2020 Novato and Recycled Water Rate Study. She noted NMWD

rates are right in the middle in comparison to other agencies. Ms. Blue noted if approved by the

Board, these letters will be mailed out by April 30th.

Director Petterle stated the letter refers to a proposed rate increase, then reasons for

revenue increase. Director Petterle suggested to just use "rate increase" rather than confuse our

customers with "revenue increase". She agreed that it should only say rate increase and said she

will make the change before the notification is mailed out.

Director Joly asked if the letter should mention the investment in the AMI system since it

gives people more control of water usage and Director Fraites agreed. Ms. Blue agreed to make

the change. Director Grossi suggested to include the Novato Water Rate Comparison and also

post it on social media. Director Baker agreed, stating if provides customers with a better

perspective of how we compare to other agencies. Ms. Blue agreed and would make the change.

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Fraites the Board approved

mailing a letter notifying customers of a proposed Novato and Recycled Water rate increase and

upcoming public hearing by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

APPROVE RATE /ruCREASE LETTER TO T MARIN WATER AND OCEANA MARIN

SEWER CUSTOMERS

Ms. Blue requested the Board approve the rate increase letter to West Marin Water and

Oceana Marin sewer customers. She stated the proposed West Marin water rate structure

modifications will result in individual customer bills that may increase more or less than the 6%

global increase. Ms. Blue noted the typical residential customer, assuming no change in water

use, will see an increase of $8.00 on their bi-monthly bill. She noted this was based on the 2021

West Marin Rate Study that was presented by consultant Mark Hildebrand that addressed

changes in commodities rates and structural changes. Ms. Blue noted similar to Novato last year,

there are a lot of variables. Ms. Blue added even with the proposed increase, when compared to

other coastal water agencies West Marin's water rates are still second to the lowest. She added,
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a 5o/o rate increase, (a $5 increase per month), was proposed for Oceana Marin sewer customers.

Additionally, she stated Oceana Marin is higher than other agencies, due to the continued cost to

maintain the system and provide revenue for the necessary capital improvement projects.

Director Petterle stated if you look at the commodity rates some are going down and the

zone elevations are reversed for Zones 2 and 3 and that should be clarified. Director Grossi

suggested to just put in a sentence explaining this so the public understands this is not an error.

Ms. Blue confirmed that she would clarify the zone changes on the notification prior to mailing.

Director Petterle suggested perhaps in the future staff can figure out how to change the zone

numbers so they are consistent. Director Grossi asked if Mr. Hildebrand will be at the June 22nd

Board meeting. Ms. Blue stated that Mark Hildebrand will be at the June 22nd board meeting and

will provide a similar presentation to the one he did previously.

Director Joly asked about the rate comparison chart for Oceana Marin and wanted more

information. Mr. Mclntyre responded that the total cost includes the annual tax revenue and the

customer is only directly charged the sewer service charge. Director Joly asked if these

communities should consolidate since it is not sustainable with the small populations. Mr.

Mclntyre replied LAFCo routinely addresses the possibility of consolidation and he expects will

do so again for West Marin agencies in the future. Mr. Williams noted Oceana Marin has a

unique topographic and geographic setting with a challenging system and you cannot compare it

to other systems like Stinson Beach that is in a completely different setting.

On the motion of Director Fraites, and seconded by Director Petterle the Board approved

mailing a letter notifying customers of a proposed West Marin and Oceana Marin rate increase

and upcoming public hearing by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

RENEW DECLARATION OF LOCAL EMERGENCY RELATED TO COVID-1g PANDEMIC

Mr. Mclntyre reminded the Board that staff has been operating under paftial Emergency

Operations Center (EOC) activation. Mr. Mclntyre announced the District emergency planning

has been aggressively implemented since March 16,2020. Mr. Mclntyre stated walk in services

remain suspended. He noted the financial COVID-19 cost impacts through March 31,2021 was

-$175,000.00.

Mr. Mclntyre reported the latest news from the state is if current trends continue most of

the restrictions may be eliminated by June 15th. He noted there was some discussion that Marin
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County could move into the Yellow Tier this week. Director Petterle stated he heard that was no

longer the case. Mr. Williams stated he heard Marin County will stay in the Orange Tier for now

and possibly move to the Yellow Tier on May 3'd. Mr. Mclntyre added there are more shots in the

arms now and it seems like Marin County is they are doing a good job making vaccines available.

Mr. Mclntyre requested the Board find that there still exists a need to continue the State

of Emergency due to the COVID-19 pandemic as reflected by Resolution No. 20-07 .

On the motion of Director Joly, and seconded by Director Fraites the Board approved

renewal of the Declaration of Local Emergency Related to COVID-19 Pandemic by the following

vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

INFORMATION ITEMS

GALLAGHER WELL NO. 2 COASTAL PERMIT APPEAL

Mr. Mclntyre updated the Board on the Gallagher Well No. 2 Coastal Permit Appeal. He

reported the design for installation of Gallagher Well No. 2 is complete and staff is ready to move

forward with requesting Board approval for advertisement of the well installation phase, however

construction of Gallagher Well No. 2 is being suspended due to an appeal. He added staff is

consulting with legal counsel on the appeal and the next step will be for the Marin County Planning

Commission (MCPC) to hear the appeal. Mr. Mclntyre repofted the tentative MCPC hearing date

is Mary 24th. Mr. Mclntyre apprised the Board that District environmental consultant , ESA, will

prepare a response to the Save Our Seashore (SOS) appeal so that it can be submitted to the

Marin County Community Development Agency staff in advance of the MCPC Appeal Hearing.

Mr. Mclntyre informed the Board that even with the delay staff is moving fonruard with an

expanded welltesting study including Lagunitas Creek pre and post biological survey. He stated

he has asked ESA to develop a scope of work to conduct the study in advance of approval for the

construction of the permanent well. Director Joly asked with the delay of the permitting and

planning, how we were looking out for our 785 customers so that the salinity intrusion does not

become more onerous. Mr. Mclntyre replied staff will be providing a low saline water dispensing

station for customers on salt restricted diets, which was something that was not available last

year. Mr. Mclntyre added the District will continue to operate Gallagher Well No. 1 to keep salinity

levels as low as possible, noting however due to dry year conditions we are likely to have a higher

salinity level. Director Grossi agreed the District should move ahead with the testing and get that
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done. He stated he read the appeal and SOS seems to be appealing many things.

Director Fraites stated it is a serious situation out there, adding he does not understand

the motive behind it. He noted, according to the Marin lJ, MMWD is considering cutting water

releases into Lagunitas Creek because of the drought. He asked how this will impact us and

affect our well and salinity intrusion, adding the release was also supposed to help the fish. Mr.

Mclntyre replied Mr. Williams has joined the stakeholders' group and therefore be able to þetter

evaluate what MMWD is planning. Mr. Mclntyre assured the Board that staff will be keeping a

close eye on this to make sure it does not have an impact on our West Marin customers. Director

Joly asked to avoid further delay if there is a possibility to approach a third party to do arbitration

with SOS. Mr. Levin from the Point Reyes Station Village Association stated he began working

behind the scenes when his group became aware that there was going to be an appeal. Mr. Levin

stated SOS said they will continue to appeal and sadly we are all impacted and it will cost more

for everyone. Mr. Levin added the best approach is for Mr. Mclntyre to keep doing what he is

doing and pursue his efforts the best he can. Ms. Day also from the Point Reyes Station Village

Association commented in agreement with Mr. Levin.

MISCELLANEOUS

The Board received the following miscellaneous items: Disbursements - Dated April 8,

2021 and Disbursements - Dated April 1 5, 2021.

The Board received the following news articles: Marin lJ - Readers' Forum - North Marin

Water must suspend new hookups; Marin lJ - MMWD proposes mandatory water rules -LOW

RAINFALL IMPACT; Marin lJ - Hot race expected for Novato supervisor - 5th DISTRICT SEAT;

Point Reyes Light - MALT hires new leader; San Francisco Chronicle - Despite second dry year,

Newsom resists declaring a drought emergency; Marin lJ - Editorial - Awareness key plan for

Marin's water; and Marin lJ -'ONE DAY AT A TIME'- Marin County ranchers brace for driest year

in decades.

The Board received the following social media posts: NMWD Web and Social Media

Report - March 2021.

Director Grossi noted the social media numbers are picking up and commended Mr.

Grisso for a job well done.

President Grossi adjourned the meeting at 8:06 p.m.

Submitted by

Theresa Kehoe
District Secretary
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MEMORANDUM

To: Drew Mclntyre, General Manager April3O,2O21

From: Reviewed by: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

Prepared by: Nancy Holton, Accounting Supervisor and Nancy Williamson, Senior Accountant

Subj: lnformation -FY2O|21 March Financial Statement
t:\accountants\financials\stmlfy2 1 \md&a032 1 . doc

FISCAL YEAR PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET

CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY
Actual vs. Budget
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Non-Operating Revenue / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Other Sources / (Uses).

Cash lncrease / (Decrease)

" See Page B.

Mar-21
Actual
$1,322,829
2,098,774

6 790
($76e,1 55)

3 125 127

FY20t2',l
ActualYTD

$17,922,283
17,512,119

(1e4,6e0)

FY20t21
Budqet
$22,646,000

21,598,000
(1ee,000)

FYTD /
Budqet %

79o/o

81o/o

9Bo/o

25%

FY2l vs 20

Up/(Down)
1jYo

14o/o

650%

(63%)

(0"/ù

5o/o

7o/o

(63%)
(65%)
140o/o

(36%)
(100%)

15%

$215,474
4 484 368

$849,000
(4,817,000)

$2,355,972 $4,699 ($3,e68,000)

For the first nine months of fiscal year 2020-2021, the District generated a net income of $215,474 and
saw a net cash increase of $4,699,842. On a seasonally adjusted basis, Operating Revenue came in
7o/o ovêt budget and Operating Expense came in 9o/o over budget. fi2,223,471 (32%) of the Capital
lmprovement Projects Budget was expended this fiscal year. At month end the rat¡o of total cash to
budgeted annual operating expense (sans depreciation) stood at 151o/o.

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENTS BY SERVICE AREA
PRESENTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS

NOVATO WATER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / '1,000 gal
lncome / (Loss ) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / '1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue
FRC Transfer (to)/from Recycled Water
Caltrans Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions

Mar-2'l
Actual
$1 ,199,063

1,879,703

FY20t21
ActualYTD

FY19t20
ActualYTD

17 685

$15,860,417
15,440,789

(111,150)

914,431,314
13,578,776

(14,822)
($662,955) $308,478 $837,715

20,589
117

$6 45
($32 20)

($5.00¡

$1,651,089
$0

$0
($205,320)

$49,453

20,589
1,901

$6.27
$14 98

$0.1 6

$3,466,089
($7e3,e1e)

$8,1 00

$0

$812,935

20,546
1,818

$5.84
$40.77

$0 46

$1,44s,735
$785,838

$12,621
$205,320
$708,061

Consumption for the fiscal year to date was 5% more than the prior year same period. Total operating
revenue, which includes wheeling and other miscellaneous service charges, increased 10o/o

($1,429,103) from the prior year same period. Total operating expense was $1,862,012 more than last
year same period.

1



Memo - March Financial Statement
April 30, 2021
Page 2 of 3

The Stafford Treatment Plant produced 211 ¡ViG this fiscal year-to-date at a cost of $6,405/MG1 versus
$3,071iMG3 from SCWA. The budget for Stafford is 650 MG at a cost of $3,305/MG.

Staff time (hours) charged to Novato operations wàs 7o/o less than last year. Salary and benefit cost
was $4,294,166, which was 66% of the $6,514,000 budget for Novato operations.

The fiscal year net income (which includes non=operating items such as interest revenue and expense)
of $308,478 compares to a budgeted net income for the year of $546,000 and to a net income of
$837,715 for the prior year. $803,831 (160/o) of the Novato Water Capital lmprovement Project Budget
was spent versus $1,360,727 (32Yo) for the prior year. $3,466,089 in connection fees have been
collected ($486,000 is budgeted). Connection Fee reserves totaling $793,919 were transferred this
fiscal year from the Novato Water Fund to the Recycled Water Fund. The Novato Connection Fee
Reserve has a net deficit of $4,475,738 arising from transfers to the RW Fund in advance of
Connection Fee receipts. This is down from a net deficit of $6,275,222last year. That deficit will be
reimbursed by future Connection Fee revenue. The Novato cash balance increased $2,465,416 in
March, and stood at $20,705,309 at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of $13,079,000 at
fiscal year-end.

NOVATO RECYCLED
Year over Year Gomparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)

Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)

Deer lsland Production (MG)

Novato Sanitary Production (MG)

Las Gallinas Production (MG)

Potable Water lnput (MG)

Connection Fee Alloc from Novato
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions

($65,4e7)

Mar-21
Actual

$41,425
94,744

(12,178)

FY20t21
ActualYTD

$1 ,102,800
1 ,108,964
(151 ,453)

FY19t20

ActualYTD
$883,005

705,992
(3e4,501)

FY2l vs 20

Up/(Down)
25%
57%

(62%)

(2ïo/o)

2%

19o/o

4o/o

(53%)
24o/o

(41o/o)

85%

($157,617) ($217,488)

94
4.7

$6.1 I
0.0

10.6

1.1

2.3

$0

$0

g4

165.5

$6.24
3.0

'131.8

22.7
14.8

$o

$0

92

1 39.1

$5.97
6.4

106.3

38.3

8.0

$o

$0

165.5 MG was delivered to RW customers this fiscal year{o-date, 19o/o more than the prior year.
Operating revenue was 25o/o more than last year. Total operating expense was 57o/o mora than the prior
year same period. The recycled water was produced at a cost of $2,17111\/rG2 (including potable water
consumed) versus $3,071/MG'from SCWA. The budgeted production cost of recycled water is
$2,023/MG.

The fiscal year net loss of $157,617 compares to a budgeted net loss for the year of $19,000 and a net
loss of $217,488 for the prior year same period. None of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget has
been expended this fiscal year-to-date.

The Novato Recycled cash balance stood at $5,493,608 at month end, $4.2M of which amount resides
in restricted reserves for debt service, the Deer lsland Facility Replacement Fund and the Recycled
Water Capital Replacement and Expansion Fund.

1 Stafford production cost = TP op expense ($766,924) + SRF loan interest ($148,457) + plant depreciation ($436,036y 211 MG produced
2 Recycled Water production cost = purchased water cost ($245,303) + treatment expense ($9 795) + Deer lsland RW Facility SRF loan
¡nterest ($31,445) + Deer lsland plant depreciation ($86,939)/ 172 MG produced
3 SCWR production cost per MG = O&M charge ($2,512) + debt service charge ($207) + Russian River conservation charge ($3ZO¡ + Russian
River projects charge ($27)

2



Memo - March Financial Statement
April 30, 2021
Page 3 of 3

WEST MARIN WATER
Year over Year Compar¡son
Ooerating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)

lncome/ (Loss) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions

Mar-21
Actual

$59,409
106,580

(302)

FY20I21
ActualYTD

9752,677
731,654

29,482

FY19I2O

ActualYTD
FY2l vs 20

Up/(Down)
(3%)

31o/o

(63%)

(83%)

0o/o

(5%)

1%

(83%)
(B2o/o)

$778,147
558,141

78 985

($47,473) $50,506 $298 991

783
55.0

$11.44
$381 85

$5.44
$o

$o

784
4.7

$9.03
($60.55)
($10.01)

$o

$0

784
52.0

$11.54
$64.42

$0 97

$0

$o

Consumption for the fiscal year was 5% less than the prior year. Operating revenue was 3% less than
last year.

Operating expenditures were $173,513, or 317o more than the previous year same period. The fiscal
year net income of $50,506 compares to a budgeted annual net income of $237,000 and to a net
income of $298,991 for the prior year same period. $1,383,428 (93%) of the Capital lmprovement
Project Budget was expended this fiscal year-to-date, and no connection fees were collected ($23,000
is budgeted). The West Marin Water cash balance decreased $99,375 in March and stood at $406,314
at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of $386,000 at June 30,2021.

OCEANA MARIN SEWER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Monthly Sewer Service Charge
lncome / (Loss) / Active Account
Connection Fee Revenue

Mar-21
Actual

$22,932
17,747

FY20t21
ActualYTD

$206,388
230,712

38,431

FY19t20
ActualYTD

$195,858
'181 ,640

FY21 vs 20

Uo/lDown
5%

27o/o

(10%)

(75%)

0o/o

844o/o

585 42 926

$6,770 $14 107 957,145

235
$e8

$28 81

$o

235
$878

$60.03
$0

234
$e3

$244.21

$o

Operating revenue of $206,388 was 5% more than the previous year due to the 5o/o rate increase
effective July 1 , 2020. Operating expenditures were 27o/o $49,072 more than the previous year. The
fiscal year-to-date net income of $14,107 compares to a budgeted annual net income of $85,000 and to
a net income of $57,145for the prior year. $36,212 (12%o) of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget
has been expended this fiscal year-to-date.

No connection fees have been collected ($0 ¡s budgeted). The Oceana Marin cash balance decreased
$13,855 in March and stood at $343,428 at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of $387,000
at June 30,2021.
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2O2'I

ASSETS
Cash & lnvestments
U n restricted/U ndesignated
Restricted Cash lttote t¡
Connection Fee Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
AMI Project Loan Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
Tax Receipts Held in Marin Co Treasury
STP SRF Reserve-Marin Co Treasury
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Designated Cash 1ruote z¡

Liability Contingency Fund
Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

Total Cash
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

Net Receivables - Consumers
Accrued Water Sales
Accounts Receivable-Other
Prepaid Expense
Reimbursable Small Jobs
lnterest Receivable
lnventories
Deposits Receivable

Total Gurrent Assets

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

$6,496,575 $5,104,238

$0
0
0

'1 ,840,100
1,561,481

633
1,046,431

614,299
275,773

$1,430,370
535,006.03
4,658,025
2,500,000

$1,331,485
504,1 63

4,658,025
2,500,000

h

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$1,020,829

$o
0
0

1,840,100
1,561,481

0
0

614,299
275,773

$0
8,126

0
0

1 000

$29,461
86,389

6,1 13
0
0
0
0
0

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
NIARIN
SEWER

$103,099 $268,409

5

$0

046,431

0
0
0
0
0
1

0
0

$o
0
0
0
0

77
0
0
0

$0
0
0
0
0

56
0
0
0

A

$1,066,372
'1 ,157,956

261,893
291,978

79,997
50,277

699,339
23 274

$973,080
936,989
118,429
290,327

79,997
50,277

699,339
23 274

$98,885
16,753

0
0

187,000

$9,440
134,577

0
0
0
0
0
0

$54,390
0

137,351
1,651

0
0
0
0

$0
5,964

0
0

69 000
$406,314 343,428

5,940 000 5 511 000
898,693
$49,967 $49,967

Market Value of Cash & lnvestments $26,948,660 $20,705,309

Gurrent Assets

$0 $0 $0
$5,493,608 $406,314 $343,428

804496412$

t:\accountants\f nancials\stmtfyu\finfyv.xlsAl2T 12021 8.04 AM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021

NOVATO
WATER

$524,996
2,079,140

$2,604,136

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWERTOTAL

$524,996
3,309,010

$3,834,006

$o $0 $o
1,229,870 0 0

$1,229,870 $0 $0

Loans Receivable
Employee Loans (Note 3)

Other Long Term Receivables 1ruote +¡

Loans Receivable

Property and Plant
Land & Land Rights
Dam, Lake, & Source Facilities
Treatment Facilities
Storage Facilities
Transmission Facilities (1 6"+¡
Distribution and Pumping Facilities
Sewer Mains, Pumps, & Laterals

Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (Note s)

Net Property and Plant

Buildings and Equipment lNote o¡

Buildings
Office Equipment
Laboratory Equipment
Trucks & Automobiles
Construction Equipment
Tools, Shop Equipment
Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (ruote s¡

Net Buildings and Equipment

Gonstruction ln Proqress
Developer
District

Total Construction in Progress
Net Utility PIant

Deferred Outflow of Resources-GASB68
Deferred Outflow of Resources-GAsB75

TOTAL ASSETS

$1,473,091
5,675,845

22,604,626
24,593,098
29,405,627

107,958,366
258 111

$192,968,764
(62,557,454)

$2,119,365
840,251
313,376

1,287,718
974,660
220 890

$5,756,261
(4,511,040)

7,018,176
138,674,706

2,795,641
341,851

$1,368,872
5,183,433

'18,625,907

20,844,117
29,283,304
70,593,976

0

$1.45,899,608
(52,330,415)

$2,119,365
840,251
313,376

1,287,718
974,660
220,890

$5,756,261
(4,511,040)

3,510,587
98,325,001
2,795,641

341 851

$0
0

2,666,198
1,643,458

0
31,455,96'1

0

$35,765,617
(4,840,058)

0

470,660
31,396,219

0
0

$103,411
492,412
454,159

2,105,523
122,324

5,908,429
0

$9,186,257
Ø.262.138\

2,756,188
7,680,307

0
0

$808
0

$2,117,282
(1,124,843)

858,362

1158,,2

0
0
0

1

$0
0
0
0
0

0

(¡
$130,41 1 ,309 $93,569,192 $30,925,559 $4,924,119 $992,439

$0 $0

$0
0
0
0
0
0

$0
0
0
0
0
0

$0
0 0

$1,245,221 $1,245,221

$1,275,822
5,742,354

$0 $0

$1,275,822 $0 $0 $O

2,234,765 470,660 2,756,188 280,741

$0

280,741
1,273,179

0
0

$8,230,639 11,809,999s176,225,949 $127,943,650 $38,241,661

ti\accountants\flnancials\stmtfysvlnfyu.xls4l2T 12021 8:O4 AM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF Ë.IET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021

LIABILIT¡ES AND NET ASSETS
Gurrent Liabilities
Trade Accounts Payable
Reimbursement Prog. Unclaimed Funds
Loan Debt Principal Payable-Current
Bank of Marin Principal Payable-Current
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan-Current
Accrued lnterest Payable-SRF Loan
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Payable
Deposits/Performance Bonds
Unemployment lnsurance Reserve (Note B)

Workers' Comp Future Claims Payable
Payroll Benefits (Note 9)

Deferred Revenue
Total Current Liabilities

Flestricted Liabi lities
Construction Advances

Total Restricted Liabilities
Long Term Liablilities (Note 7)

JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan Payable
STP Rehab SRF Loan
RWF SRF Loan
RWS North/South Expansion SRF Loan
RWS Central Expansion SRF Loan
Bank of Marin Loan
Net Pension Liability @6130120
Total OPEB Liability (Note 2)

Total Long Term Liabilities
Deferred lnflow of Resources-GASB 68
Deferred lnflow of Resources-GASB 75

TOTAL LIABILITIES
121 829 121 829

$54,923,529 $39,192, r 41

NOVATO
WATER

fi1,714,212
186,832
858,581
341,603
275,000
47,921

9,307
330,309
22,954
21,682

978,711
0

$4,787,110

9548,424
$548,424

$3,555,000
7,132,774

0
0
0

3,933,937
1t3,653,187
4,658,025

$32,932,923
801,855

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

$47,658
11,100

0
50,143

0
0
0

39, I 95
0

797
33,950

0

OCEANA
MARIN
SIEWERTOTAL

$1 ,812,919
197,932

1,656,255
391,746
275,000
164,807

9,307
372,504
22,954
23,440

1,057,562
68,796

$6,053,222

$623,424
$623,424

$3,555,000
7,132,774
1,510,788
6,015,730
6,286,299
4,511,396

13,653,187
4,658,025

$47,323,199
801,855

$51,049
0

797,674
0
0

116,886
0
0
0

656
3'1,760

0

$998,026

$0
$o

$0
0

1 ,510,788
6,015,730
6,286,299

0
0
0

$13,812,818
0

0

$'14,810,843

$o
0

0
0
0

0
0

3,000
0

305
13,142
68 796

O)

$182,844

$75,000

$85,243

$o

$577,459
0
0

$835,302 $85,243

$75,000

4775

$0

$0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

$o
0
0
0
0

Ão

0
0

$0
0
0
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021

Net Assets
lnvested rn Assets
Contributions in Aid of Construction
Grants in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

Total lnvestment
Restricted Reserves
Connection Fee Fund
Bank of Marin Prqect Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Designated Reserves
Liability Contingency Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Operating Reserve Fund
Earned Surplus - Prior Yrs
Net lncome/(Loss)
Transfer (To)/From Reserves (see betow)

Total Restricted & Designated
TOTAL NET POSITION

Transfer (To)/From Reserves
Connection Fee
AMI Project Fund
Liability Reserve
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
Maintenance Reserve
RWF Replacement Fund
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
(Gain)/Loss WC Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
Operating Reserve Funo

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCE

98,885
0

15,956
0

187,000
81,596
50,506

189,582

0
0

5,659
0

69,000
378,582

14,107
(2,101)

TOTAL

$86,311,370
13,637,997
42,171,543

$142,120,909

($5,36e,0ee)
0

1 ,840,100
1,561,481

614,299
275,773

1,430,370
2,500,000

5'1 1,566
2,759,513
5,940,000

(33,038,563)
215,474
(59,401)

($20,818,48e)
$121,302,421

NOVATO
WATER

$77,683,138
426,448

28,587,492
$106,697,079

(94,475,738)

1,331,485
2,500,000

482,481
2,759,513
5,51 1,000

(26,240,076)
308,478

(122,712)
($17,e45,569)
$88,751 ,510

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$5,810,128
9,96'1,904

10,727,115
926,499,147

$0
0

1 ,840,100
1,561,481

614,299
275,773

173,000
(7,258,665)

(157,617)
(124,170)

($3,068,329)
$23,430,818

WEST MARIN
WATER

$2,138,348
3,163,585
2,163,254

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$679,755
86,060

693,681

$265,261
$1,724,757

$7,465,187 $X,459,496

I99,($($6e3
0
0
0
0
0

375
0
0
0
0
0

86)
0
0
0
0
0

$0
0
0
0
0
0
0

01)
0

0
0

7,470
0

__¡

rorar rransrer# 
--ffi 

---l$##rql

9,851)
$7,395,337

$189,582
_ (2,000)

:-($2,101-

$38,24'1,661 $8,230,639 $1,809,999

$o
0
0
0
0

(1 1e,038)
ô

(e,186)
213,823

$o
0

0
0
0
0

(8,667)
19,955

$o
0
0
0
0

19,038)
0

(132)
0

$0
0
at

0
0
0

(286)
193,868

(4,000)

ç176,225,949 6127,943,650
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS STATEMENT. ALL SERVICE AREAS COMBINED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021

vln
Actual

Ànnr r¡l

Budset
YTD/

Budget %
Þriar YTll

Actual
OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charge
Sewer Service Charge
Wheeling & Misc Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Source of Supply
Pumping
Operations
Water Treatment
Sewer Service
Transmission & Distribution
Consumer Accounting
Water Conservation
General & Administrative
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

NET OPERATTNG TNCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATTNG REVENUE(EXPENSE)
Tax Proceeds
lnterest Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue
Bond & Loan lnterest Expense
Miscellaneous Expense
Capital Contribution Expense-NSD & LGVSD

TOTAL NON-OP REVENUE(EXPENSE)

OTHER SOURCES(USES) OF FUNDS
Add Depreciation Expense
Connection Fees
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Marin County Club Loan Principal Pmts
StoneTree RWF Loan Principal
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Capital Equipment Expenditures
Capital lmprovement Projects
Bond & Loan Principal Payments
Change in Working Capital

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

917,922,283 $22,646,000

$13,561 ,310
3,890,092

206,388
264,493

$16,330,000
5,610,000

276,000
430,000

$12,081,884
3,728,226

195,858
282,356

83%
690/o

75%
620k
79%

$6,147,608
446,672
820,392

1,444,316
145,391

2,433,794
332,'138
254,548

2,608,427
2,878,831

$6,286,000
567,000
857,000

2,628,000
178,000

3,694,000
683,000
408,000

2,520,000
3,777,000

$16,288,324

$4,413,898
503,002
675,252

'1 ,651 ,1 1 0
117,834

2,263,238
349,303
246,841

2,264,235
2,539,835

98%
79%
96%
55%
82o/o

66%
49%
62%

1O4o/o

760/o

81o/o

810%
0o/o

15%
32%
57%

917,512,119

$41 0,1 64

$66,743
242,874

56,232
(55e,018)

(1,520)
0

$21,598,000

$1,048,000

$15,024,550

$1,263,774

$65,920
441,478
'1 15,678

(602,4e6)
(2,280)

(305,711)

$1 18,000
316,000
'135,000

(748,000)
(20,000)

0

39o/o

57%
774/o

42o/o

75%
8%

760k
681o/o

0o/o

($1e4,6e0) ($1eg,ooo) 98% ($287,412)

N Er r NCOME(LOSS) --ZTWT $849 000 25% $976,362

$2,878,831
3,466,089

0
86,060
31,'158

0
8,100

0
(105,041)

(2,223,471)
(1,357,609)

$3,777,000
509,000
647,000

0
0
0

1,000
205,000

(6ee,000)
(6,862,000)
(2,395,000)

0
-fs4FTiFõõt

--T$3-,s--6-8,0-ooI

700.251

$2,539,835
1,445,735

0
0

30,725
1,081,103

12,621
205,320

(285,1 05)
(1,886,054)
(1,528,122)
1,296,614

$2,912,672

$3,889,034

$4,484,368

$4,699,842

I

cAsH TNcREASE(DECREASE)

lr\accountanls\financials\slmlfyl o\finfyl 0 xlsIbudget vs. aclual]



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT AND CASH FLOW BY SERVICE AREA

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT

Operating Revenue

Operating Expense
oPERATTNG TNCOME(LOSS)
Non-Operating Revenue/(Expense)

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Developer I n-Kind Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contributions
MMWD Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FEMA/CAL OES Grant-OM Treatment Pond
FRC Transfer

CAPITAL CONTRfBUTIONS
Prior Period Adjustments

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Position June 30, 2020
Net Position March 31. 2021

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Net Income/(Loss)
Add back Depreciation
Cash Generated From Operations

Other Sources (Uses) of Funds
Connection Fee Revenue
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Capital Assets Acquisition
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Marin Country Club Loan Principal Pmts
Principal Paid on Debt
Consumer Receivables Decr (lncr)
Construction Advances (Decr) lncr
Other Assets Decr (lncr)
Other Liabilities (Decr) lncr
Trade Accounts Payable (Decr) lncr
Connection Fee Transfer
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Net Cash Provided (Used)

MV Gash & lnvestments June 30,2020
MV Cash & lnvestments Mar 31,2021

$410,164 $419,628
(194,690) (1 I 1,150)

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$17,922,283

17,512,119

$15,860,417

15,440,789

$1,102,800

1 108 964
($6,1 64)

(151,453)

9752,677

731,654

$206,388

230,712
$21,024

29,482
($24,324)

38,43'l

$215,474

$812,935
8,1 00

0
3,466,089

86,060
0

$812,935
8,1 00

0
3,466,089

0
(793,919)

$o
0
0
0

86,060
0

$308,478 ($157,617) $50,506 $14,107

I793

$0
0
0
0
0
0

$0
0
n
n

0
'19

$4,373,1 84

0

$4,588,658
116,713,763

$3,493,205
0

$3,801,684
84,949,826

$793,919
0

$636,301
22,794,516

$0
0

$50,506
7,344,831

$86,060
0

$1 00,1 67

1,624,590

$121,302,421 $88,751,510 $23,430,818 $7,395,337 91,724,757

$215,474
2,878,831

$308,478
2,100,229

($157,617)
595.559

$50,506
149,764

$1 4,1 07
33.278

$3,094,305 $2,408,708 $437,942 9200,270 $47,385

$o
0
0

(1,383,428)
0
0
0

(36,452)
81,424
73,500

288,783
4,789

29,684
0

($e41,700)

$3,466,089
0

86,060
(2,328,512)

8,1 00
0

31 ,1 58
(1,357,609)

433,059
76,419

2,467,267
(191,928)

(1,084,566)
0

$1,605,537

$3,466,089
o

0
(908,872)

8,1 00
0
0

(940,032)
130,786

12,919
2,153,946

(63,877)
(1,1 17,355)

(7e3,e1e)

$1,947,785

$o
0
U

n

0
0

31 ,1 58
(381,125)
275,239
(10,000)
93,937

(201,686)
3,1 05

793,919
$604,546

$o
0

86,060
(36,212)

U

0
0
0

(54,3e0)
0

(6e,3e8)
68,847

U

0

($5,ooa¡

$4,69e,842 $4,356,493 $1,042,488 ($741,431) $42,2e2

s22,248,817 $16,348,817 54,451,119 $1 147.745 $301 ,1 37

$26,948,660 $20,705,309 $5,493,608 $406,314 $343,428

I
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021
MARCH YEARTO DATE

2021 ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Hydrant Meter Up/Down Charges
Backflow Service Charges
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Wheeling Charges - MMWD

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Source
MainUMonitoring of Dam
Maint of Lake & lntakes
Maint of Structures
Maint of Watershed
Water Quality Surveillance
Fishery Maint
Erosion Control
Ground Water Well Monitoring
Purchased Water
Purchased Water-Backfeed

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Operating Expense - Pumping
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power

$1 ,199,063 $15,860,417

$1,465
358
143

0
36

214
14

664
0
0

413,478
435,934

$852,306 $5,887,635 99o/o

$6,577
5,333

22,047
3,863

36
6,954

93
1,333

603
0

5,298,500
542,296

$8,660
7,681

30,489
12,4s4

0

18,508
1,642

0
62

0
4,107,839

0

$762,508
(6,47e)

415,981
0

495
0

600
12,880

526
12,551

$11,979,516
(52,067)

3,673,193
0

4,600
126

3,1 60
1 13,698
20,382

$10,669,484
(47,554)

3,531 ,9'17
54,154
4,900

333
3,600

1 11,865
29,154
73,462

$14,431,314

$4,187,335

$0
23,590

156,344
247,858

$427,792

117 809

83o/o

72o/o

69o/o

0o/o

66%
13%
63o/o

80%
620/0

120o/o

79o/o

60%
38o/o

17o/o

19o/o

1o/o

17o/o

1%

$0
6,052
9,172

51,483

$0
32,218
30,419

322,673

92o/o

0o/o

101o/o

27%
95o/o

79o/oPUMPING $66,707 $385,310
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry EquipmenUControls Maint
Leased Lines

$28,665
40,658

3,664
3,833

$187,967
292,634

45,462
48,353
12,777

115%
114o/o

81o/o

51o/o

64o/o

100o/o

$172,815
306,740

29,717
47,997
12,493566

OPERATIONS $78,386 $587,1 92 $569,761
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021
MARCH YEARTO DATE

2021 ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
WATER TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Water Treatment
Purification Chemicals
Sludge Disposal
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Water Quality Programs
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Water Quality Supervision
Laboratory Supplies & Expense
Customer Water Quality
Lab Cost Distributed

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Safety: Construction & Engineering
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Maint of Mains
Leak Detection - Mains
Backflow Prevention Program
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Single Service I nstallations
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Collection Expense - Agency
Billing & Consumer Accounting
Contract Billing
Stationery, Supplies & Postage
Online Payment Processing Fees
Lock Box Service
U ncollectable Accou nts
Office Equipment Expense
Distributed to West Marin (4.1%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

9123,729 $1,238,349

$4,474
12,818
5,358

10,533
6,435

1 1,580
13,233
7,989

33,783
2,074

11,082
5,270
2,108

(3,008)

$126,358
132,255

87,1 33
70,699
83,535

168,712
98,232
64,154

276,649
21,820
64,606
45,187
19,251

(20,241)

$139,545
209,230
191 ,438
81J02
86,556

174,448
121,625
84,779

292,904
33,238
58,405
49,308
30,288

(1e,004)

$57,517
10,170
27J38
12,932
6,646

23,644
0

8,545
2,489
1 ,710
4,925
1,404

27,745
29,029
28,427

3,009
7,484
4,509

85%
41o/o

21o/o

57o/o

79o/o

91o/o

630/o

67o/o

8oo/o

48o/o

90o/o

55o/o

31o/o

81o/o

58o/o

83%
360/o

87Yo
78o/o

78o/o

51o/o

318o/o

88%
57o/o

71o/o

8%
80o/o

48o/o

44o/o

88%
119%
82o/o

65o/o

74o/o

5 562

$464,897
96,359

215,910
124,148

34,083
191 ,991

3,887
97,739
8,120

82,497
142,707

15,503
176,355
'100,599

345,269
31,547

1 10,655
29,561
62,986

$1,533,862

$434,128
96, I 68

154,871
124,712
32,755

222,713
45,960
72,012
10,731

128,30'1

122,652
5,857

130,724
68,1 85

324,107
22,612
83,980
55,1 59
41,230

$262,885 $2,334,811 $2,176,857

$1J22
0

134
16,242

1,360
4,955
8,514

912
570

1,625
(1,42e)

11%
0o/o

68%
75%
82o/o

99%
74%
75o/o

325o/o

17%
84o/o

560/o

$16,052
18,395

555
'185,046

11,236
37,019
51,780

8,262
7,053
7,005

(12,645)

$11,411
0

1,364
161,213

14,757
54,550
44,641

8,262
16,253
'10,970

(12,633)

$310,788 $329,757$34,005
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021
MARCH YEAR TO DATE
2021 ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

WATER. EONSERVA-TION
Residential
Commercial
Publ ic Outreach/l nformation
Large Landscape

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Directors Fees
Legal Fees
Human Resources
Auditing Fees
Consulting Services/Studies
General Office Salaries
Safety: General District Wide
Office Supplies
Employee Events
Other Administrative Expense
Election Cost
Dues & Subscriptions
Vehicle Expense
Meetings, Conferences & Training
Recruitment Expense
Gas & Electricity
Telephone
Water
Buildings & Grounds Maint
Office Equipment Expense
lnsurance Premiums & Claims
Retiree Medical Benefits
(Gain)/Loss on Overhead Charges
G&A Applied to Other Operations (5.9%)
G&A Applied to Construction
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)

GENERAL & ADMIN¡STRATIVE

Depreciation (Note s)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$34,706

922,552
284

10,673
1,196

59%
14o/o

120o/o
25To
64o/o

7 4o/o

53o/o

61o/o

38%
23%
77o/o

48o/o

30o/o

9o/o

39o/o

1o/o

1060/o

76%
31%

75o/o

88o/o

58o/o

137o/o

64o/o

67%
79o/o

30%
7 5o/o

54o/o

244%
102o/o

73o/o

84o/o

$149,312
5,1 69

71,723
15,187

9142,681
2,728

72,053
7,118

-$.ul55-$3,747
976

6,827
0

3,208
115,311

3,807
1,291

0
2,814

0

192
676

15,412
0

2,770
692

0

3,349
9,032

10,322
17,486

(72,13e)
(11,s44)
(32,51e)
113,219

$30,477
11,092
33,793

9,800
64,863

923,131
27,653
13,292
1,128
5,903

250
105,211

6,084
59,688
19,592
28,401
6,178
1,751

80,833
90,285

103,986
157,677
(42,44e)

(109,022)
(258,e75)
001 273

$2,371,894

2,100,229

$15,440,789

$241,391

$27,789
9,744

27,874
15,'151

120,207
808,035

34,928
20,402

9,060
5,1 05

0
82,651

6,084
96,809

1,105
28,344

5,147
1,549

41,342
107,239
78,978

142,656
(121,307)
(97,224)

(2ee,623)
949,687

$194,526

232,454

$1,879,703

$2,101,731

2,010,291

$13,578,776

oPERATT NG TNCOME(LOSS) ($680,640) $419,628 230/o $852,537
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021
MARCH YEARTO DATE
2021 ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
AGTUAL

NON.OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
Workers'Comp Fund
Conservation lncentive Rate Fund
Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Proj Fund
Funds Held in County Treasury

MMWD lnterconnection Agreement Loan
Total lnterest Revenue

Rents & Leases
Other Non-Operating Revenue
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin AEEP Loan lnterest Exp
STP SRF Loan lnterest Expense
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

($41,853)
21,633

2,317
0

39
0

60,352

$21 ,313
86,025

9,250
0

309
6,171

28o/o

172o/o

2060/o

142o/o

75o/o

27o/o

$34,990
178,837
20,956

0

1,061
13,407

060 3s2
s42,488

7,022
195

5,656

$183,420
62,663
14,132

(26,278\

$249,251
69,025
31,023

074
$233,937 890/o $359,372

1

$55,360

$12,263
16,221
9,19'r

0

$1 13,200
148,457
82,717

712

$121,537
163,958
87,380

1,319
@

$837,7'15

75o/o

760/o

7 5o/o

4%
72o/o$37,675

NET INCOME(LOSS) ($662,e55)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME(LOSS)
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer to/from Recycled Water
Prior Period Adjustment (Note 12)

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$79,168,973
837,715
708,061

12,621
205,320

1,445,735
785,838

0

$83,164,262

$345,087

$308,478 19o/o

810o/o

0%
1019o/o

-87o/o

$84,949,826
(662,955) 308,478

49,453 812,935
0 8,100

(205,320) 0
1,651,089 3,466,089

0 (7e3,919)
00

-BBFiFiõ-
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021
MARCH YEARTO DATE YTD/
2021 ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIORYTD
ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Recycled Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charges
Water Loads
Account Turn-on Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Purchased Water - NSD
Purchased Water - LGVSD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power

PUMPING
OPERATIONS
Supervision ee g
Operating Expense - Operations
Potable Water Consumed
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry EquipmenUControls ftlaint

OPERATIONS
WATER TREATMENT
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Cathodic Protection
Customer Service Expense
Storage Facilities Expense
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Backflow Prevention Program
Maint of Meters
Maint of Mains
Maint of PB Service Lines

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

$41,425 $1,102,800 850/o

ç14,827

$29,096
11,829

500
0

91,032,728
69,272

800
0

84o/o

119o/o

90o/o

760/o

86%

$830,716
51,905

300
84

771
$191,680

53,624

$883,005

$159,405
53,605

$16,598 $245,303 $213,010

700
$0

232
0

$0
545

2,490

0o/o

1B%
B3o/o

43o/o

87o/o

32o/o

1005%
1160/o

22o/o

287%

34o/o

43o/o

65o/o

9To

6%
360/o

jYo

0%
0o/o

154o/o

0o/o

138o/o

15o/o

69To

0%
0o/o

4060/o

$0

3 181
$232

$987

$3,035

$11,343
4,176

150,691
11,599
2,698

$180,506

$1,350
6,495
1,950

365
187

$3,881

$8,554
6,024

50,631
663

0

2,31
0
6
0
n

$3,303 $65,873

$2,748
520

0
1,119

601

$0
725

0
0
2

$727

($1so¡
0
0

394
0

3,318
1B

0
0
0

908
0

$10,347

($Bz¡
0
0

1,540
0

9,635
1,642
3,466

0
0

4,058
139

$4,987

$81 1

0
0

831
0

5,315
600

2,547
0
0

3,282
0

$4,488 þ:zU,392 35o/o $13,386
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021
MARCH YEARTODATE YTD/
2021 ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Distributed from Novato (0.2o/o)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRAT¡VE
Legal Fees
Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (2.4%)
GAS868 Adjustment

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciatiorì (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

oPERATTNG r NCOME(LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
RWF Replacement Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Comp Fund
StoneTree RWF Loan

Total Interest Revenue
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON.OPERATING REVENUE

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE
RWF SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Expansion SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense
Capital Contribution Expense-NSD&LGVSD

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions
State Prop 50 Grant
IRWMP Prop 84 Grant
Water Smart Grant
FederalARRA Grant
FRC Transfer to/from Novato

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$0
0

4,826
925

$0
3,250

39,092
6,197

$140 91,228

$270
0

44,049
8,275

$140 91,228 123%
123%

7 5o/o

414o/o

860/o

8Bo/o

94o/o

(5%)

$944
$944

$5,751

63,505
$94,744

$52,594

595,559
$1,108,964

$48,539

355,371
$705,992

($53,318) ($6,164) $177,013

$33
8,387

37
957

$5,062
32,788

149
8,575

8o/o

$0

71o/o

31o/o

$39,639
65,452

355
17,545

$9,415
0

$46,574
0

9122,991
0

$9,415

$3,558
18,036

0
0

$31,445
'166,582

0
0

75o/o

73o/o

73o/o

5254%

$122,991

$35,648
176,133

0

$46,574 31o/o

305 711
NON.OPERATING EXPENSE $21,593

NET TNCOME(LOSS) ($65,4e7)

$198,027

157 617

$22,794,516
(157,617)

0
0
0
0
0

793,919
--T23.750,8T8-

s517,492

($217,488)

(65 ,497)
0
0
0
0
0
0

$23,421,587
(217,488)

0
0
0
0
0

-87o/o (785,838)w
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021

MARCH

2027
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

AETUAL
OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Backflow Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY

Operating Expense
Maint of Structures
Water Quality Surveillance
Purchased Water - MMWD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Structures and Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equip
Electric Power

$59,409 9752,677

$46,564
(3,736)
16,582

0
0

0
0

$635,808
(35,475)
147,626

0
105

18
4,595

$649,505
(20,567)
144,404

336
95

0
4,37592o/o

80%

23o/o

46%
0%

51o/o

960/0

111%
96%

130%
93o/o

78%
63%
99o/o

87o/o

74o/o

0o/o

11o/o

$2,436
265

6,841
0
0

$3,663
1,632
6,943

0
2,432

$778,147

$2,680
1,388
9,299

14
171

$9,541 $14,670 64o/o $13,552

$858
8,705

$5,139
22,001

$7,180
34,428
29,721

OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maintenance Expense
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Leased Lines

WATER TREATMENT 
OPERATIONS

Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Laboratory Services
Water Quality Supervision
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMENT

2 706 31 187
PUMPING $12,270 $58,328

3 138

$11,872 $52,695

s32,726

$7,929
2,897

358
338
350

$19,445
16,791

1,617
11,704

$11,202
14,802

873
9,658
3,084

$71,329

$3,744
12,668

0

I,040
2,819
1,963
4,698
1,446
1,728

44
2,577

$16,899
42,521

2,232
2,072

18,114
20,86'1

35,601
8,380

20,049
10,609
'18,285

$10,556
20,437

2,867
308

7,558
14,716
30,098

5,373
1,682
2,474

154o/o

17Oo/o

45o/o

207o/o

181Yo

87%
99%

120o/o

501%
212o/o

87o/o

131o/o

$39,619

16 193
2,261

16

$195,620
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021

MARCH
2021

YEAR TO DATE
AETUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

AETUAL
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

52,777
9,039
3,825

28
16,789

0
867

0

3,134
4
0

3,435
2,459

25,066
1,457

0

610
0

9,099
$4,988 $78,591

$1,260
0

180

$2,440 $18,693

Water Conservation Program $3,266 $29,968
TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION $3,266 $29,968

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Supervision & Engineering
Facilities Location - USA
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves
Valve Operation Program
Maint of Mains
Water Quality Maintenance
Maint of Backflow Devices
Backflow Dev I nspection/Survey
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants
Hydrant Operation
Single Service lnstallation

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

WATER CONSERVATION

Legal Fees
Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note s)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

539
996
524

0

$ 35%
7 5o/o

77o/o

$5,446
9,447
6,625
7,137

23,740
28

705
0

2,887
0
0

1,057
845

16,847
629

1,222
0
0

(3,620)

740
0
0
0

0

0
0

,596
0

449
0

0

0
0

144

$8,366
0

10,326

84%
0o/o

43o/o

0o/o

39o/o

o%
0%

57o/o

82o/o

860/o

73o/o

o%
61%
0o/o

152o/o

66%

105o/o

o%
79o/o

85o/o

$72,995

$6,552
0

10,5321

$1,553
1,315
5,197
4,896

$1,823
39,643
47,438
44,423

$17,084

$5,450333o/o

333%

91o/o

113o/o

77o/o

2221o/o

135o/o

80%
101%

$5,450

$o
0

42,589
43,822

$12,961

16,517

$106,580

$133,326

149,764

$731,654

$86,411

139,440

$558, I 41

oPERAT|NG TNCOME(LOSS) ($47,171) $21,024 10% $220,006
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021

MARCH
¿U¿1

YEAR TO DATE
Atg I UAL

YTD/
E UU|Jtr I -/o

PRIOR YTD
AU I UAL

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - FRC
lnterest - Self-lnsured WC Fund
lnterest - Bank of Marin Project Fund
Rents & Leases
Tax Proceeds - OL-2 G.O. Bond
Tax Proceeds - PR-2 Tax Allocation
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPER,ATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE

BEGINN¡NG FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
¡/r/^\Àl-rDlE l lTEr\ /^ 

^ 
DrT^ rvvtt I t\luv I LU vñT I ¡^L

Gallagher Ranch Streambank Grant
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
Connection Fees

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$6,959
0

307
1,448
5,464

2
32,309

1

$39,460
1,99ô

701
17,840
5,305

5

31,909
2

$1 ,310

$1,800
0

$16,617
391

70o/o

57o/o

68%

760/0

77o/o

19o/o

0
77
26

0
0

85
0

0o/o

$1,800 $17,008

NET TNCOME(LOSS) ($47,473) $50,506

$1,498 $46,490 $97,217

$17,840
392

$18,232

_$3e8Égl_

(47,473)
$7,344,831

50,506

0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$6,685,965
298,991

$7,395,337 $6,984,956
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021

MARCH

2421

YEAR TO DATE

AT/ I UAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

/\U I UAL
OPERATING REVENUE
Sewer Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SEWAGE COLLECTION
Supervision & Engineering
lnspection
Maps & Records
Operating Expense
Facilities Location
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Maint of Lift Stations
Maint of Manholes
Maint of Sewer Mains
Electric Power

SEWAGE COLLECTION
SEWAGE TREATMENT
S on eeflng
Operating Expense
Maint of Equipment
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from l.lovato
Electric Power

SEWAGE TREATMENT
SEWAGE DISPOSAL
Operating Expense
Maint of Pump Stations
Maint of Storage Ponds
Maint of lrrigation Field

SEWAGE DISPOSAL
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Collection Expense - County of Marin
Distributed from Novato (0.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

$22,932 $206 388

$22,932 $206,388
75o/o

75o/o

71o/o

67o/o

10o/o

10o/o

37o/o

54%
71Yo

$195,858
$195,858

$676
0
0

1,895
0

811
370

0

0
1,281

$25,265
0

56
11,051

1,757
3,075

17,392
0

0

9,959

$31,370
0
0

12,477
3,1 98
4,664

29,675
0

11,493
14,096

131o/o

Oo/o

96%
80o/o

93o/o

424o/o

0o/o

383%
108%
147%

31/o
17o/o

690/o

88o/o

171o/o

560/o

$5,032 $106,972 $68,554

$4,095
2,096

11,774

$256
$771

393
807
+zo

1 315

$256
$5,814

1,514
3,444
1,769

10,263

$o
$8,595

4,225
4,107
2,210

10,728

-z0F6t
$3,970 $23,060

$935
148

0
439

$8,491
4,656
1,395

818 1 450
51,521 $15,360 $19,415

$350
'1 

,1 69
$0

109
$351

0781

$1 09 $1,429 $1 ,518

19
t:\accountants\flnâncials\stmtfyu\f infyu.xls4 127 12021 A:05 AM



OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021

MARCH
t^.t4

YEAR TO DATE

^r^Tt 
I 
^ 

Iñv ¡ 9ñL

YTD/
Þt tñ^ETo/uugvL I /o

PRIOR YTD

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Legal Fees
Distributed from Novato (1.1o/o)
Liability lnsurance
GAS868 Adjustment

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note s)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE
oPERAT|NG TNCOME(LOSS)

NON.OPERATING REVENUE
Rents & Leases
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - Self lnsured WC Fund
Tax Proceeds - OM-1/OM-3 Tax Alloc
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON.OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
lnterest - Advance from Novato (Note 1l)
County O&M Tax Collection Fee
County Tax Administration Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense
GAS868 Adjustment

NOhI-OPERATING EXPENSE

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET INCOME(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Contribution in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

FEMA/CAL OES Grant-OM Treatment Pond
PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS 1ruote rro¡

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$0
0

1,921
184

1 ,313

$o
0

15,543
1,584

10,425

938%

70o/o

8Oo/o

$27,553

34,733
$181 ,640

$14,218

135o/o
$250
8,988

251
34,007

0

$43,496

$569

$57,145

$1,522,727
57,145

s1,579,872

$18,762
878

17,535
1,603

11 836

$5,1 85 ($24 ,324)

$3,417

3,698

$17,747

$50,613

33,278

$230,712

175o/o

690/o

99o/o

(58%)

560/o

61o/o

$0
1,468

27
90

0

$250
4,056

109
34,432

0

$1,585 $38,848

$0
0
0

569
0

$o
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

$o
0

0
417

0

$0 9417

NET INCOME(LOSS) $6,770 $14,107 13%

6,770
$1,624,590

14,107

0
0

86,060
0

s1,724,757
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021
t:\accountants\f inancials\stmtfy21 \f cpm032 1.xlsl equip

MARCH
2021

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 20t21 (OVER)

BUDGET UNDER Notes

I OPERATIONS/MAINTENANCE
a. Metals Analyzer
¡. Meter Maintenance Program

2 VEHICLE & ROLLING EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES
a. 5-Yard Dump Truck
b. 9,000 GVWR Hyd Dump Trailer
c. 14,000 GVWR Tilt Deck Trailer
o. Cart-Away 1 Yard Concrete Mixer

TOTAL EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

Notes:
(1) Replacement item

$o $61,053 $142,000 $80,947

$0 $61,053
0 57 000 57

$85,000 $23,947 t

0 000

$o
0
0
0

$0
7,724
9,352

26,913

$135,000
11,000
17,000
25,000

135,000 r

3,276
7,648

(1,e13)

$

$0 $43,989

$0 $105 041

$188,000

$330,000

$144,011

$224,959
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Novato Recycled

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARGH 31,2021

West Oceana YTD
Marin Marin Total

Annual YTD Prior
Budget Budget% YTDActual

OPERATING EXPENSE

Salaries & Benefits
Water Purchases
Depreciation
Materials, Services & Supplies
Consulting Services/Studies
Chemicals
Electric Power
Vehicles and Equipment (Distrib)
Tools & Supplies (Distrib)

Retiree Medical Expenses
Water Conservation Rebates
lnsurance & Claims
Office Supplies & Postage
GASB 68 Adjustments
Overhead Charges (Gain)/Loss
Distributed Costs (Lab,G&A,ConsAcctg)

Total Operating Expense

lnterest Expense & Other

Total Expense

Warehouse, Shop & Yard

Salaries & Benefìts
Materials, Services & Supplies
Depreciation
Distributed Costs

Total WH, Shop & Yard

District Capital Outlav
Salaries & Benefits
Equipment Expenditures
Debt Principal Payments
Materials, Services & Supplies

Total District Capital Outlay

Developer Funded Proiects
Salaries & Benefits
Materials, Services & Supplies

32 Total Developer Projects

Total

OT
TO

Ghange
1

2

4
Â

b

7

It

10

11

12

IJ

14

15
'16

17

$4,294,166
5,298,500
2,100,229
1,950,804

64,863
87J33

417,527

148,564
174,690
157,677
16,856

103,986
67,842

1,001,273
(42,44e)

(400,871)

$48,014
245,303
595,559
155,894

0
1,350
4,440
2,117
2,548

0

0

0

0
8,275

0
45,465

$1 ,108,964
198,027

$o
0

381,125
0

$o

$1,688,'116

$256,833
0

149,764
79,570
39,643

2,232
52,048
12,742
18,151

0

200
0

0
44,423

0
76,049

$731,654
17,008

$88,981
0

36,452
1,294,447

$521
452

5972

$2,169,513

$54,190
0

33,278
64,575
18,762

0
21,565

3,580
2,710

0
0

1,603
0

11,836

0
18,613

9230,712
417

$6,947
0
0

29,265

$4,653,203
5,543,803
2,878,831
2,250,842

123,268
90,714

495,580
167,002
198,100
157,677

'17,056

105,589
67,842

1,065,805
(42,449)

(260,744)

$139,951
283,834

49,666
(473,450)

$o

$336,459
105,041

1,082,609
1,887,012

$190,315
374,173

$564,488

$22,048,265

$4,608,720
4,320,849
2,539,835

1,596,047
123,457
197,053
435,097
185,448
94,344

142,656
4,288

80,563
109,200

1,O10,132
(121,307)
(301,833)

$'15,024,550
465,260

$1 61 ,1 50

$238,941
$117,495
(517,585)

$339,264
285,1 05

1,329,407
1,546,790

$243,912
480,685

$724,597

$19,714,973

$6,360,000
5,985,000
3,777,000
2,093,000

'145,000

484,000
513,000
325,000
180,000
172,000
104,000
173,000
102,000

0
(39,000)

(374,000)

$17,512,119 $20,000,000
560,538 870,000

73%
93o/o

76%
108%

85%
19%
97%
51%

110o/o

92%
160/o

61%
67%

109%
70o/o

88o/o

64%

51%
83%
0%

77%

52o/o

30%
48%
29o/o

91%
307%

171%

7 1o/o

Q o/o

28%
13%
41 o/o

-0 o/o

-53%
13 o/o

-9%
109 o/o

10%
297 o/o

31 o/o

-37 %

-65 o/o

-13 o/o

16%
20 o/o

16 o/o

-13 o/o

18%
-57 o/o

-8%

-o%
-63%
-18%
22 o/o

-2 o/o

-21%
-22 o/o

-22 o/o

11 o/o

N]
N)

18

19

30

3l

$15,785,875 $1 ,306,992 $748,661 $231 ,129 $18,072,657 $20,870,000 87% $15,489,809

$15,440,789
345,087

$139,951
283,834
49,666

(473,450)

$o

$240,531
105,O41
665,032
563,299

$189,794
373,721

$563,515

$17,923,294

20

21

22

¿5

24

25

zô
27

28

29

$0
0
0
0

$0
0
0
0

$o
0
0

0

6277,000
341,000

0
(618,000)

$o

$645,000
355,000

2,279,O00
6,418,000

$209,000
122,OOO

$331,000

$30,898,000

$o $o $0 $o

$1,573,904 $381,125 $1,419,880 $36,212 $3,411,121 $9,697,000 35o/o $3,500,566

$o
0

$0
0

$0

$267,34133

8:57:13PM 4t26t2021 S:\Sagesoftware\SAcE1 00V201 9\MAs90\Reports\'1 PAS ExpCategory FY21.rpt



Year on Veh# ned

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
VEHICLE FLEET ANALYSIS

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021
Fiscal Year to Date

se' ' G"i

Vehicle Cost Mile

L¡fe to Date FYTD21 FYTD2o

2003
2004
2007
2008
2008
2008
2010
2010
2010
2012
2012

$0.43
$0.46
$0.42
$0.78
$0.79
$0.37
$0.50
$0.49
s0.47
$0.61
$0.56
$0.69
$0.43
$0.29

tz 2Q14
tq 2015
ts 2015
rc 2015
n 2016
ta 2017
rg 2016
zo 2018
zt 2018
zz 2019
zz 2019
z¿ 2019
zs 2O19
zø 2019
zt 2019
ze 2020
zg 2020
go 2020
zt 2020
sz 2020

$0.46
$0.22
$0.1 5
$0.1 6
$0.28
$0.1 8
$0.36
$0.1 6
$0.30
$0.29
$0.00
$0.28

r 1999
z 2002
g 1999
¿ 2006
s 2009
ø 2012
t 2015
a 2Q17
e 2Q19

Dodge Dakota 4x4
Chev C1500 Xtra Cab
Chev Colorado
Ford F250 4x4
Ford F250 4x4
Chev Colorado 4x4
Ford F150 4x4
Ford Fl50
Ford Fl50
Ford F250
Ford F250
Ford F150
Ford F250 4x4
Ford Escape 4X4
Ford F150 4X4
Nissan Frontier
Ford Escape 4X4
Nissan Frontier
Ford Cargo Van
Dodge Ram 2500
Chev Colorado 4x4
NISSAN ROGUE
NISSAN ROGUE
NISSAN FRONTIER
FORD F-150 2WD
FORD F-150 4x4
CHEVROLET COLORADO 2WI
FORD F25O 4X4
FORD F25O 4X4
FORD F150 2WD
FORD F150 2WD

Ford F350 WSvc Body
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
Ford F550 3-Yd Dump "
lnt'l 4300 Crew
Peterbilt 325 Crew
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
Ford F350 4x4
FORD F55O 3 YD DUMP

49
54

504
505
506
509
511
512
513
515
516
517
518
520
521
522
523
524
526
527
528
531
53¿
Eaa

534
535
536
537
538
539
540

6,398
0
0

465
702

5,1 81
3,232
6,102
3,346
5,1 55
6,546
3,915
5,742

14,144
5,724
1,476
3,707
6,993
6,808
7,953
3,654
3,988
9,321
6.253

440
3,977

281
2,780
2,664
3,647
5,608
6,1 91

$3,313
($o¡
$39

$1,531
$1,250
93,217
$1,555
$1,882

$899
$2,353
$4,1 84
$1,469
$2,012
$5,071
$1,810

s271
$978

$3,070
$1,633
$3,664

$81 7
$599

$1,459
ç1,782

$1 62
62,197
$r,r 39
$3,664
$1,125

$414
$1,600

125,323
109,681
89,496

107,766
80,413

117,091
94,883

120,980
90,851
76,389
82,159
19,680

100,079
96,648
49,994
52,200
28,314
38,097
22,726
26,417
11,952
15,1 13
11,123
10,238
2,073

10,774
7,288

12,921
3,879
1,765

138,814
113,O92
98,786
51,605
41 ,749
47,826
46,330
40,843

$0.51
$0.35

$0.s0
$0.76
$0.69
$0.67
$0.74
$2.99
$0.62
$0.35
s0.77
s0.42
$0.47
$0.54
$0.34
$0.62
$0.30
$0.37
$0.63
$0.30
$0.58
$0.29
$5.21
$2.85
$0.00
$0.00
$0.57

$1.57
$2.11
$0.00
$2.59

$14.43
$0.00
920.77
$0.00

7V

STP
Pool
Pool
Maintenance
STP
Engineering
STP
Elec/Mech
Construction
Reed
Castellucci
Kurfirst
Ocodhain
Arendell
Watkins/Shop
Roberto
Lab
Bynum
On-Call
Rupp
Stompe
Clark
EngMtr Consv
Castellucci
Grisso
STP
Rodriguez
Kehoe, Chris
STP
Pool
LeBrun

$1,757
$0
$0
$o

$1 61

96,247
$959

$3,269
$1 ,918
$6,153
$8,526
$7,302
94,424
$6,020
$1,887

$1 65
s1,478
$7,322
$1,338
$8,355
$2,292
$1,492
$4,617
$8,092
$1,973
$2,852
$1,838

$12,626
$896
$1 96

($1,556)
$0

($3e)
($1,531)
($1,08e)
$3,031

($5s6)
$1,387
$1,019
$3,800
94,342
$5,832
$2,412

$948
$76

($1 07)
$500

ç4,252
ç4,252
($2e5)

$4,691
$1,475

$893
$3,1 58
$6,310
$l,811

$65s
$699

$8,962
($22s)

($o.s+¡
($1.86)
(52.42)
$0.49

$0.52
($0. t s¡
$0.00
$3.29
$1.78
$0.62
$0.48
$0.31
$0.27
$0.46
$0.64
$0.38
$0.35
$0.36
$0.32
$0.1 8
$0.26
$0.44
$0.24

N)
(¡)

$0.34
$0.38
$0.32
$0.44
$0.51
$0.62
$0.45
$0.32
$0.25
$0.35
$0.41
$0.33
$0.33
$0.42
$0.63
$0.00
$0.30

.00

.75

.00

.61

.16

.44

.32

.63

.29

$0
$1

$0
g2

$2
$1
$1

$0

885
075
048
305
879
765
717

b
7
2
5
1

5

Bergstrom
BreiVCrew

19
44
52

503
508
514
519
525

Pool
Construction
Construction

Rupp
Sjoblom
Davenport

$469
$5,253

$381
$12,01 I

$1,962
$4,1 96
$6,698
$5,036

$434
$15,001

$364
$14,280
$18,956
$12,740
$12,040
$11,872

($es¡
$9,748
$2,261
$2,261

$16,994
$8,544
$5,342
$6,836

$1.07
$1.32
ù r.Jo
$4.32
$0.74
$1.15
$1.19
$0.81

530 Construction J 370 12 181

t 
E*pense amount shown excludes deprecìat¡on (approx¡mately $81 ,OOO for FY21 ).

$7/hr and the recovery rate for veh¡cles 1ìon and over is $14lhr. An additional 50% ¡s charged to developer projects to reflect the faÌr market value of the vehicle be¡ng used.
3 Purchaø M ìn & W 32.S milæ. Milåse sM is@lincurd si¡ø Disddpurcha*.

72



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DETAIL

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021
t:\accountants\financ¡als\stmtfy2 1\[cpm0321.xls]water @nseNation

Description
NOVATO
a. Residential

t Cash for Grass
z Landscape Effìciency Rebates
s Fixtures Purchases
n Washing Machine Rebates
5 Demonstration Garden lmprovements
o Toilet Rebate SF
z Toilet Rebate MF
a Residential Audits
s High Efficiency Toilet Distribution
to Water Waste Ordinance Monitoring
r Swimming Pool Cover Rebate
tz ET Controller Rebate
le Administration
r¿ New Development Wtr Cons Program
ts Demand Offset Rebate Program
to Grant Administration
tz Hot Water Recirculation Rebate
ra Residential Fill Station
19 UWMP

b. Commercial
1 Toilet Rebate Program
2 Commercial Audits

c. Public Outreach/l nformation
r Fall Newsletter
2 Spring Newsletter
3 Summer Newsletter
4 Public Outreach I H2rJ Fa¡t
5 Marketing
o Public Outreach/Leadership Novato

d. Large Landscape
1 Large Landscape Audits
z Large Landscape Budgets
a Large Landscape lrrig Efficiency Rebates
¿ CIMIS Station Maintenance
s Administration-Large Landscape

TOTAL NOVATO WATER CONSERVATION

WEST MARIN WATER
a. Water Conservation Program

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION EXPENDITURES

JUNE 2O2O 2021 TOTAL BUDGET UNDER COST

1-7700-01

1-7700-02

1-7700-03

1-7700-06

1-7700-07

1-7700-11

1-7700-12

1-7700-13

1-7700-15

1-7700-16

1-7700-17

1-7700-19

1-7700-08

1-7700-20

1-7700-21

1-7700-23

1-7700-24

1 -7700-25

1-7700-35

1-7700-26

1-7700-27

$436,415
24,907
53,5'19

351,148
55, I 05

I ,019,555
'18,507

474,729
242,177

92,739
3,547

41,010
1,650,751

116,121
3,843
3,300
2,491

66,421
0

67,561
35,572

$1,022
0
0

193
0

1,951
0

851
0

3,816
0

892
9,499
1,560

0
0

75
0

2,694

$1 0,1 31
610

0
2,347

0
14,750

65
5,728

0
4,836

0
6,616

73,623
10,212

0
0

'150

0

$35,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
1,000

18,000
2,000

65,000
0

7,000
1,000
5,000

130,000
15,000
2,000
1,000
2,000

0
0

10,000
9,000

$24,869
4,390
5,000
2,653
1,000
3,250
1,935

59,272
0

2,164
1,000

(1,616)
56,377
4,788
2,000
1,000
1,850

0
(13,61s)

10,000
6,272

(2,273)
4,953

0
(3e,542)
13,809

0

$446,546
25,518
53,519

353,495
55,1 05

1,034,304
18,572

480,457
242,177

97,575
3,547

47,626
1,724,374

126,334
3,843
3,300
2,641

66,421
'13,613

67,561
38,300

99,731
108,006
20,290

292,738
174,098

11,327

1-7700-24

1-7700-29

1-7700-30

1-7700-31

I -7700-32

N)À

'1-7700-33

1-7700-34

1-7701-02

1-7701-03

1-7701-05

1-7701-O4

13.613

1-8672-16

1-4672-17

1-7700-04

1-7700-05

1-7700-22

89,458
103,959
20,290

236,197
172,908

11,327

0
3,843

0
6,688

142
0

0
0

2,728
0

10,273
4,047

0
56,542

1,191

8,000
9,000

0
17,000
15,000

0

0
284

1-8653-02

1-7702-01

't-7702-02

1-8653-01

1-7702-03

1-7702-04

91,788
40j23
14,960
19,760

103,892

0
204

0
0

992

3
1

4,
2,

0
0
0

474
0

000
000
000
000
000

3,000
526

4,000
1,938

91,788
40,597
14,960
19,82262

582

$'1 17,535 $3,266 $29,968 $9,000 ($20,e68) $147,503

6 74
661

418 11

706 000 420165

2-5166-00

$1 17,535 $3.266 $29.968 $9.000 ($20.968) $147.503



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31,2021
tlaccounÞnß\nnâncraßßtmÍyzì {veñs.f slmar zl

COST THRU
JUNE 2O2O

II,TARCH

2021
FYTD

TOTAL
FY 20t21
BUDGET

$0
0

790
296
204

35,277.31
152

0
2,912

0

6,280
0

U

0
2,135

0
15,997

(OVERYUNDER
BUDGET

846,152
(8,612)

137,340
0
0

8118,247

$0
264

276,168
68,635

0
0

$109,936

ttJ

910,000
0

150,000

70,000
80,000

0
0

0

201 ,1 88
8,612

0
0

82,024
41,497
56,685

TOTAL
cosT

1-7189-00

1-7183-n

1-7183-00

1-VA3-O1

1-7't 86-00

1-71 93-00

1-7194-OO

1-71 95-00

Descript¡on
1 PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

a. Main/P¡peline Replacements
1 Replace 12" Cl Pipe (785LF) S. Novato Blvd
z Replace Plastic thin Walled Pipe < 4-inch
s Replace Plastic thin Walled Pipe-Scown
+ Replace Plastic thin Walled Pipe-Wilson
s Replace Plastic thin Walled Pipe -Glen Rd & Vonderworth
6 Replace Cl Pipe-Grant Ave
z Replace 6" ACP Pipe (810') Glen Rd
e Redwood Blvd Pipe Lowering
e Novato Blvd Widening Diablo to Grant
to Other Main Replacements (60+ years old)

o. Main/Pipeline Add¡tions
1 San Mateo lnleíOutlet Pipe (2,200')
2 Loop SouthiNorth Zone 2-lndian Valley Campus
3 Other Main/Pipeline Additions

c. PB Service Line Replacements
t Repl PB in Sync w/City Paving (30 Svcs)
z Other PB Replacements (80 Svcs)
s Repl PB-San RamonruivianA/erismo (47)
+ Repl PB-Vineyard/San JoaquinA/Vilson/Brooke
s Repl PB-San Marin Drllgnacio Blvd

d. Relocations to Sync w/City & County CIP
1 Other Relocations

TOTAL PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

e. Aqueduct Replacements & Enhancements
I MSN B2-Utility Agreement Costsl
2 AEEP Post Construction Costs

$o
0

15,329
0
0

5,665
0
0
0
0

$o
0

127,081
16,089

1,986

$100,000
150,000

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

200,000

$100,000
150,000

(127,081)
(r 6,08s)

(1,e86)
(62,847)

(8,123)
(1 0,507)
(11,628)
200,000

$0
0

142,410
16,089

1,986
68,512
8,123

10,507
11,628

U

62.847
õ
0
1

123
507
628

0

'1-7150-00

1 -7 1 91-00

1 -71 39-x
1-7123-v

1-7123-28

1-7123-29

1-7139-23

0

0
0

0

0

0

63,848
8,612

0
U

82,O24
41,497
56,685

U

70,000
80,000

(82,024)
(41,497)
(56,685)

1-8737-v 0 70 000 0

N)(¡
1-7118-02

1-7118-11

1-6600-96

1-6600-s
'1 -6600-97

1-6600-92

1-660G.34

1-6600-83

1-6600-40

l-6600-39

1-6600-72

1-6600-87

$8,1 00
160

$87,259
tt

6,239
0
0

$5,850 $23,6r 9

(1 73)

$0
0

($8,100) $126,347
21

$0
0

2 SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
1-7007-14 a. Detector Check Assembly Repair/Repl 1-r+ry4
1-7oeo-04 b. Anode lnstallations lrsolyr¡
1 -7 17 B-oo c. Asset Management Software Procu remenUl m plementation
1-7i36-00 d. Facilities Security Enhancements
1-71eo-oo e. San Marin Aqueduct Valve Pit (STP to Zone 2)
1-7188-00 f, Watershed Property-Vineyard Fence

TOTAL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
3 BUILDINGS, YARD, & S.T.P. IMPROVEMENTS

1-6501-44

a. Administration Building
r OfficefYard Building Renovaiion

b. Corp YardMarehouseiConstruction Office
r Other Yard Improvements

c. Stafford Treatment Plant
t Leveroni Creek Embankment Repair
2 Other Treatment Plant lmprovements
e Efficiency lmprovements
¿ STP-Chemical System Upgrades
s STP-High Service Pump #3 Replacement
6 F¡lter Underdrain/Media R&R
z STP-Upgr Plant Water Booster Pump Station
a STP-Replace Chlorine Control System
s SïP-Discharge/Treatment
10 STP-Coat Top of Concrete Clearwells

TOTAL BUILDING, YARD, & STP IMPROVEMENTS

1-6502-47

45,724
0
rì

68,996
15,803

0
0

10,787
0
0

1,020
0
0
0

0
12,002
4,814

0
358

4.321

192,000
100,000
100,000
75,000
20,000
20,000

0

0
0
0

$0
0
0
0
0

0

020
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

459

$100,000
10,000

25,000
110,000

0

$12,741
10,000
(6,23e)

25,000
1 10,000

$1,000,000

0

't 16 050

$976,381

t/J

190,980
100,000
100,000
75,000
20,000

7,998
(4,814)

0
(358)

(4.321\

$87,259
264

282,407
68,635

0

017

$133,554

0

46,744
0

0
68,996
15,803
12,002
4,814

10,787
3s8

4.321

0

s251.419 $7,328 s45.961 $1.507.000 $1.461.039 $297.380



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING MARGH 31,2021
llaccounÞns\lnancraßEtmtryll [vens_lslmar z]

Description JUNE 2020 2021 TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET COST

4 STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

a. Tank Construction
1-6207-20 r Old Ranch Rd Tank Replacement

b. Tank Rehabilitation
1-7170-oo 1 Hydropnuematic Tank Repairs
i-61i2-24 c. Lynwood Pump Station Motor Control Center
1-6141-oo d. Crest P.S.(Design/Const)iReloc School Rd P.S.

e. Other Tank & PS lmprovements
TOTAL STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

5 RECYCLED WATER

$142,752 $17,137 $109,725 $500,000 $390,275 $252,477

$534,828 s17,137 $127,733 $1,505,000 91,377.267 $662,562

a. Other Recycled Water Expenditures $0 $o $0 $100,000 $100,000 $0
$0

6 WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

0
0

0
0

TOTAL RECYCLED WATER $0 $0 $0 $100,000 9100,000

15,145
1 50,067
226,865

0

0

0
18,008

0

$789,51 8
180,069

0
335,832

736
38,047

168
8,361
5,310
2,743

22,643
383 428

$3,950
0

32,262

30,000
400,000
550,000

25,000

30,000
400,000
531,992
25,000

$210,482
(1 05,069)

50,000
(75,832)
99,264

(38,047)
(1 68)

(8,361)
(5,310)
(2,743)

(22.643)

$36,050
25,000

192,738

15,145
150,067
244,873

0

$1,368,282
262,685

1,455
722,658

33,093
'113,923

8,636
8,361
5,310
2,743

22,643

$81,763
9,489

189,489

N)
o)

2-6263-20 A.

2-6609-20 b.

2-8829-00 c.

2-718s-oo d.

2-4912-OO e.

2-7123-27 L

2-6130-23 g.

+6133-20 h.

2-7192-oo i.

2-7183-02 j.

2-6602-24 k.

$578,764
82,616

1,455
386,826

32,357
75,876

8,468
0
0
0
0

$5,513
51,119

0
0

0
U

0

0
0

22,643

$o
0

1,857

$1,000,000
75,000
50,000

260,000
100,000

0
0
0

0
0
0

$40,000
25,000

225,000

Replace PRE Tank #44 (25K Gal w/125K Gal)
New Gallagher Well #2
PB Replace in Sync w/County Paving
Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization'?
Lagunitas Bridge Pipeline Replacement
PB Replace-SR1 PT Reyes Caltrans
Olema PS Wireless to Tank
PRE P.S. #2 Pump¡ng Equipment
Repl PRE 2" Galvanized Pipe-Balboa, Drakes View, Baywoo(
Repl Thin Walled Pipe < 4"-Blackberry Ln
Well #2 Rehab

TOTAL WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

7 OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM
e-8672-28 a. lnfiltration Repair (Manhole Relining)
8-7085-05 o Tahiti Way Lift Pump Replacement
B-7173-oo c. OM Treatment Pond Rehab-404 Grant-FEMA3

TOTAL OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM

$1 166 5bu

$77,813
9,489

157,227

000 01 572 $2,549 788

ç244,529 $1,857 $36,212 $290,000 $253,788 $28A.741

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDTTURES $2,838,290 9169,640 $2,223,471 $6,862,000 $4,488,529 $5,061,761
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COST THRU MARCH FYTD FY 20/21 (OVER)/UNDER TOTAL
Description JUNE 2020 2021 TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET COST

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2021

8 LESS FUNDED BY GRANTS, LOANS & REIMBURSEMENTS
(Accrued)/Deferred

a. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment B21 ($26,372) $0 ($4,058) $0 $4,058 ($30,430)
b. Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization2 0 0 75,566 (385,000)
c. OM Treatment Pond Rehab-404 Grant-FEMA3 0 (1,393) 61,863 (225,000)

FUNDING BY OTHERS (ACCRUED)/DEFERRED ($26,372) ($1,393) $133,371 ($610,000) $4,058 ($30,430)
Received

a. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment B21 ($116,642) $0 ($4,042) $0 $4,042 ($120,684)
b. Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization2 0 0 (411,398) (385,000) $26,398 ($411,398)
c. OM Treatment Pond Rehab-404 Grant-FEMA3 0 0 (86,060) (225,000) ($138,940) ($86,060)

FUNDING BY OTHERS RECEIVED ($116,642) 0 ($501,500) ($610,000) ($1,228,142) ($618,142)
NET PROJECT EXPENDITURES $2,695,277 $168,248 $1,855,342 $5,642,000 $3,264,445 $4,413,190

CIP SUMMARY-GROSS EXPENDITURES: Current Month FYTD Total
FY 20/21 
Budget

FYTD/ 
Budget%

Novato Water Capital Projects $88,508 $803,831 $4,987,000 16%
Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects 0 0 100,000 0%
West Marin Water Capital Projects 79,275 1,383,428 1,485,000 93%
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects 1,857 36,212 290,000 12%

Gross Capital Improvement Project Outlays $169,640 $2,223,471 $6,862,000 32%

CIP SUMMARY-NET EXPENDITURES: Current Month FYTD Total
FY 20/21 
Budget

FYTD/ 
Budget%

Novato Water Capital Projects $88,508 $799,789 $4,987,000 16%
Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects 0 0 100,000 0%
West Marin Water Capital Projects 79,275 1,047,596 1,100,000 95%
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects 1,857 12,016 65,000 18%

Net Capital Improvement Project Outlays $169,640 $1,859,400 $6,252,000 30%
Notes to Capital Improvement Projects Schedule:

(1) Funding provided 100% by Caltrans.
(2) Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization-$411,398 funded by others ($336,398K NRCS, $42,500K MALT, $25K MMWD, $7,500 Gallagher Family Trust)
(3) OM Treatment Pond Rehab-Project to be funded at 75% by grants. Eligible project costs are budgeted at $2.2M (75%=$1.425M). Also includes loans for 
      capital projects of $250K in FY22.

CONSULTING SERVICES/STUDIES
1-4055-00 a. Stafford Lake Sanitary Survey $26,396 $0 $17,041 $0 ($17,041) $43,437
1-4057-00 b. Local Water Supply Enhancement Study 0 0 0 25,000 25,000 0
1-4077-00 c. Potter Valley Project FERC Relicensing 12,071 428 4,478 10,000 5,523 16,548
1-7140-00 d. Dam Safety Emergency Action Plan 96,878 0 3,433 10,000 6,567 100,311
1-7140-01 e. Stafford Dam EAP & Inundation Mapping Updates 14,367 0 3,368 10,000 6,632 17,735
1-4050-01 f. Urban Water Management Plan 17,053 1,100 29,524 50,000 20,476 46,576
1-6501-43 g. Electronic Document Management System 4,427 0 0 60,000 60,000 4,427
8-4080-00 h. Oceana Marin Sewer System Management Plan 0 0 18,762 50,000 31,238 18,762

i. Stafford Lake Sediment Survey 0 0 0 60,000 60,000 0
2-4082-00 j. West Marin Water Rate Study 0 1,315 39,643 35,000 (4,643) 39,643

k. Design Report (Eagle Dr & Hayden Hydro-P System Upgrades 0 0 0 20,000 20,000 0
1-4078-00 l. COVID Impacts-Safety 6,303 0 109 0 (109) 6,412
1-4079-00 m. COVID Impacts-Bldg Maintenance 0 0 13,177 0 (13,177) 13,177

$177,494 2,843 $129,534 $330,000 $200,466 $307,028
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North Marin Water District Financial Statement Notes
Notel-RestrictedGash
Connection Fee Fund: Cash available from collection of Connection Fees. The fee is charged to
developers based upon the estimate of cost necessary to construct capacity to serve the new development.
These funds are restricted by law for expansion of the water or sewer facilities within the service area where
the development occurs. Funds are disbursed from the Connection Fee Reserve as expenditures are
incurred to increase system capacity to serve new development. The fund balance accrues interest
monthly.

Bank of Marin Project Fund: The District received an $B million loan from the Bank of Marin in October
2011 to fund the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. The 2O-year, 3.54o/o annual percentage rate loan
requires monthly payments of $46,067 and will be fully amortized on 1012712031. ln June 2012 the Board
authorized reallocating $1 million of this loan to West Marin Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed
for previous loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects and the remainder to fund the Solids Handling
Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant. The unexpended fund balance accrues interest monthly.
The West Marin Fund was depleted in November2020 and the Novato Fund was depleted in January 2021.

Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund: The State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan agreement required the
District to agree to establish and maintain a Water Recycling Capital Reserve Fund (WRCRF) for the
expansion, major repair, or replacement of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Treatment Plant. The WRCRF
is maintained in compliance with the "Policy for lmplementing the State Revolving fund for Construction of
Wastewater Treatment Facilities" in effect at the time the agreement was signed by the District. The
September 2003 Recycled Water Master Plan prepared by Nute Engineering recommended limiting the
reserve to fund replacement of the RWF electrical and mechanical equipment (including transmission
pumps) as they wear out. The cost of said equipment was $1,483,000 which, at Nute's recommended ô%
interest rate factor and 25-year life, renders an annual funding requirement $115,000. The fund balance
accrues interest monthly.

Recycled Water Gapital Replacement and Expansion Fund: The 201I lnteragency Agreements for
Recycled Water between NSD, LGVSD & NMWD require that any payments to the Distributor (NMWD) by
the End User (Consumers) in excess of actual costs (marginal payments) shall be deposited in this fund.
Operation and Maintenance Costs are defined as the actual cost of: labor (including general and
administrative overhead plus tools and supplies normally applied), equipment and vehicle charges,
consumables (such as chemicals and electrical power), and spare parts and/or replaced components
necessary to reliably treat and deliver recycled water to the End Users. Operation and Maintenance Costs
do not include costs for major capital replacement or process changes. A payment of $305,71'1 was made
to Novato Sanitary District in December 2019 for the Clearwell lmprovement Project,

Tax Receipts held in Marin County Treasury: Balance of tax proceeds collected and disbursed by the
County of Marin for repayment of the Olema (OL-2) general obligation bond debt. The County credits
interest to these funds quarterly.

STP SRF Reserve Fund - Marin County Treasury: The 2004 Stafford Treatment Plant State Revolving
Fund (SRF) loan agreement requires the District to build a Reserve Fund equal to one year of payments
(91,044,474) in the Marin County Treasury during the first ten years of the 2O-year repayment period. Every
January 1 and July 1, commencing January 1,2010, the Districtdepositswith the County 10%of thesemi-
annual SRF payment. This Reserve Fund was fully funded at6130119. The County credits the fund with
interest quarterly, which is applied to the semi-annual payments, and will use the Reserve to pay the last 2
semi-annual SRF loan payments.

RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreements for the
seven Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loans made for expansion of the Recycled Water System
distribution system require that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service
($614,299) prior to the construction completion date.
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RWS Gentrat SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreement for the Clean
Water State Revolving Fund Loan made for expansion of the Recycled Water System distribution system
requires that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service ($275,773) prior to the
eonstruetion completion date.

Note2-DesiqnatedCash

Liability Gontingency Fund: Established in 1986 when the Districtfirstelected to self-insure its general
liability risk. This reserve was funded with $'1 million initially and $200,000 annually thereafter until it reached
a balance of $2 million. ln FY98 the West Marin Water System was included in the fund and built-up a
proportional reserve of $74,000 over several years. Commencing FY93, $1 million of the reserve was made
available to fund loans to eligible employees under the District's Employer Assisted Housing Program. ln
August 2008, $500,000 was transferred into this reserve from the Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation
Fund and made available to fund Employer Assisted Housing Program loans. Currently there is $525,000
in Employer Assisted Housing Loans outstanding (see Note 3). ln March 2005, $652,400 was expended
from the fund to purchase a home at 25 Giacomini Road in Point Reyes Station. The home is currently
rented. ln 2006, $8,885 was added from the sale of surplus property in West Marin. The fund balance does
not accrue interest.

Workers'Compensation Fund: Commencing July 2019, the District switched from self-insuring its
workers'compensation liability to lstdollar workers'compensation insurance with Zenith lnsurance
Company. The premium for 1st dollar insurance is higher than staying with the SIR plan, but the risk of $1M
out of pocket costs is eliminated.

Retiree Medical Benefits Fund: NMWD pays the cost of health insurance for retirees between the ages
of 55 and 65 and spouse under any group plan offered by CaIPERS. The retiree must be at least 55 and
have a minimum of 12 years (for employees hired on or before September 30, 2018) and a minimum of 20
years (for employees hired after September 30, 20'18) of NMWD service at the date of retirement. NMWD's
eorrtribution toward the chosen plan is capped in the same manner as all other NMWD employees in the
same class. Coverage terminates for the spouse when the spouse becomes eligible for Medicare, or for
both the retiree and spouse when the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare. When the retiree or spouse
becomes eligible for Medicare, NMWD pays up to the couple annuitant rate, which is capped at $3,830 per
year ($319/month). ln August 2003, NMWD transferred $2.55 million ($2.3 million for current retirees plus

$250,000 for future retirees) from unrestricted cash into a reserve to fund this obligation. ln 2010 the Board
directed staff to add $1,500 per employee annually as a payroll overhead to accrue and accelerate
amortization of this liability. The accrual is maintained as a Long-Term Liability entitled Total OPEB Liability.
|n2020 an Actuarial Analysis calculated NMWD's total actuarial liability at $4.7 million. The Retiree Medical
Benefits cash fund earns interest monthly.

Maintenance Accrual Fund: Established in FY91 to provide a source of maintenance money for
replacement of treatment, storage, transmission and distribution facilities as they wear out. The annual
contribution from operating reserves was initially $200,000. Net polybutylene claim settlement proceeds of
$671,060 were closed into the fund in FY93. ln FY94 the annual contribution was reduced to $100,000.
The District's goal is to build a reserve equal to 10o/o of the net book value of Novato's existing plant,
currently $7.0M. Funds are borrowed from the Maintenance Accrual Fund to offset the shortfall in

unrestricted Cash & lnvestments. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Operating Reserve Fund: This reserve, comprised of four months of budgeted operating expenditures
(less depreciation) as recommended by the District's financial advisors, serves to ensure adequate working
capital for operating, capital, and unanticipated cash flow needs that arise during the year. Funds are
borrowed from the operating Reserve Fund to offset the shorlfall in unrestricted Cash & lnvestments. The
fund balance does not accrue interest.
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Note3-EmploveeLoans

Housing Loans: The District's Employer Assisted Housing Program allows up to $300,000 to be loaned to
an employee for a period of up to '15 years for the purchase of a home within the District service territory
that will enable the employee to respond rapidly to emergencies affecting the operation of the District.
Repayment is due upon sale, termination of employment, or other event as described in the Program.
lnterest on the loan is contingent upon and directly proportional to the appreciation in value occurring on
the purchased property. There are two employee-housing loans currently outstanding totaling $525,000: a

$250,000 loan dated March 2015, and a $275,000 loan dated June 2018.

Note 4 - Other Lonq Term Receivables

ln 2015 the District entered into an agreement with Marin Country Club for their share of the pipeline
extension to provide recycled water for the Marin Country Club Golf Course. ln 2016 the District received a
$6.6 million 3O-year 1.0% SRF loan to finance the Recycled Water Central project, and Marin Country Club
agreed to pay the District $ 1 ,265,295 in bimonthly payments of $8,142 at 1 .0% over 30 years for their share
of the pipeline extension. Marin Country Club also agreed to pay $430,463 of the District's local share of
the project in bimonthly payments ol$8,242 over 10 years at2.Bo/o, which is the Novato Potable Fund's
weighted average cost of debt. The payments will coincide with Marin Country Club's water service
payments. Marin Country Club paid the 10 year loan in full in December 2018. The final payment from Marin
Country Club for the 30 year loan is due in November 2047.The Marin Country Club also owes the District
$189,402.89 in previously unbilled water receipts due to a recording error in their 6' AMI meter. $89,990.87
of this amount was paid by Marin Country Club in October 2020 and the remaining balance due of
599,412.02 will be re-paid in $2,000 monthly installment payments and will be paid in full March 2025.

Note 5 - Depreciation

/ìSSetS are asstgfìeu ¿i uselut ilTe ua5eu ofì uunsutl¿il.tof15 wil.fr r.f re ut5tf rur. vilrer Efrgilrggf ¡rilu ij survey ur

other water agencies. Depreciation in computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
the various classes of property as follows:

Facilitv Life (Yearsl

Aqueduct...... . 150

Dam............ 100

Buildings & Structures... 40

Mains...... 50
Pumping Equipment..... 25
Water Treatment Equipment.. 20

Storage & Transmission (16"+) Facilities... 50
Distr¡bution Facilities (includes Pump Stations) .. . ..... 50
Office,Laboratory,Construction&ShopTools&Equipment................. 10

Vehicles 1 ton or greater. . . ... . .. 10

All othervehicles......... 5

Sewer Mains... 40
Sewer Pumps. 10

Note 6 - Capitalization Policv
The Government Finance Officers Association Guide for State and Local Governmenfs recommends that
a capitalization policy incorporate a minimum threshold of $5,000 and an estimated useful life of at least
two years. lt also cautions that federal grant and loan requirements prevent the use of capitalization
thresholds in excess of $5,000. Thus NMWD's capitalization threshold is $5,000.
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Note 7 - Bond & Loan Servicinq Schedule for Fiscal Year 2020-2021

FY21

lssue
Date

Original Payment Final
Pmt

lnterest
Expense

Principal
Paid

6t30t21
Outstanding

BalanceServ¡ce Area Description Rate Amount Due

1 Novato

2 Novato

3 Novato

4 RWTP

5 RW North

6 RW South

7 RW Central

SRF Loan
STP

Bank
Loan

Marin

Chase
Loan

Bank

SRF Loan

SRF Loans (4)

SRF Loans (3)

SRF Loan

$4,302,560

$4,375,605

$5,361 ,952

$7,1 30,503

6120 6t19t27

Varies Varies

Varies Varies

12t19 12t31t47

Recycled Water Total

$231,551

$205,002

$248,874

$208,715

$1 ,510,788

$2,752,334

$3,548,055

$6,497,101

2004 2.39% $16,528,850 7t1 &1t1 7t1t29 $196,033 $848,442 $7,564,614

2011 3.54Yo $7,000,000 ZTthlmo 10127131 $149,51 1 $332,531 84,191,417

2018 2.69% $4,600,000 3t1 &911 311133

Novato Total

$1 10,290 $270 .000 $3.830.000

$455,834 $1,450,973, $15,586,031

2006

2013

2013

2016

2.4Yo

2.60/0

2.2o/o

1.0o/o

$41,816

$76,891

$83,532

$67,058

$269,297 $894,142 $14,308,278

Bank
Loan

Marin
I WM Water 2012 3.540/0 $1,000,000 2Tthlmo 10127131

West Mar¡n Water Total

$21,946 $48,812 $614,949

$21,946 $48,812 $614,949

FY21 Total $747,077 $2,393,927 $30,509,258

1. ln April 2004 the California State Depaftment of Water Resources approved a 2.39% 2l-year loan for
reconstruction of the Stafford Water Treatment Plant. The project was completed in FY09 with repair
of the Outlet Tower Sluice Gate. lnterest paid during construction totaled $1,636,378. The loan
covenants require an annual reserve fund contribution of 9104,447 (10% of the annual debt service
obligation) be deposited into the Marin County Treasury during each of the first ten years of the
repayment period. Debt service is funded 25% by Facility Reserve Charges. The first payment was
made in December 2009.

2. ln October 2011 Bank of Marin made a 2}-year 3.54o/o (APR) loan of $B million to fund the District's
share of the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project, See Note 15 below, and note to loan 9 above.

3. ln March 2018 Chase Bank made a 15-year 2.69% (APR) loan of $4.6 million to fund the District's
Automated Meter lnformation system Project.

4. ln August 2006 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.4o/o 2}-year loan of
$4,264,545 for construction of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Facility. With the addition of $38,015 in
Construction Period lnterest, the loan principaltotaled $4,302,560. The projectwas completed in June
2007 , and the first payment was made June 19, 2008.
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5. ln July 2011 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of four 2.60/0 20-
year loans which totaled $4,375,605 for the Recycled Water North Service Area Expansion Project.
The projects were completed on October 31, 2012, and the first payment was made in November of
2012.

6. ln March 2012lhe California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of three 2.2o/o

2}-year loans totaling $5,361,952 for the Recycled Water South Service Area Expansion Project. The
projects were completed on September 4,2013, and the first payment was made in December of 20'13.

7. ln May 2016 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 1.0% 3O-year loan of
$7,130,503 forthe Recycled WaterCentral ServiceArea Expansion. The projectwill be completed in
December 2017, and the first payment was made December 31,2018.

8. ln June 2012 the Board authorized reallocating $1 million of the Bank of Marin loan to West Marin
Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed for loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects and
the remainder to fund the Solids Handling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant. See note
to loan 2 above.

Note I - Unemplovment lnsurance Reserve

NMWD uses the "Reimbursable Method" of paying for Unemployment Costs. Under this method, the District
reimburses the State Employment Development Department for all unemployment benefits paid on our
behalf. The reserve is maintained at an amount equal to the higher of the average claim amount paid over
the last 5 years or 52 times the maximum weekly benefit amount (currently $450 x 52 = $23,400).

Note 9 - Pavroll Benefits

Payroll Benefits payable includes payroll taxes; vacation, sick, and holiday leave; Section 125 payments;
cancer, long term care and disability insurance premiums; union dues; and employee benefit fund.

lI9te lU-l¡ltere5tr()@

@ementdistrictexpendsallofitsUndesignatedFunds,itshallborrowfundsfromthat
improvement district's Board Designated Fund reserves to meet ongoing requirements. ln the event an
improvement district expends all of its Board Designated Fund reserves, it may receive a loan from the
Novato lmprovement District in an amount sufficient to meet its ongoing requirements. Restricted Funds
shall not be used to finance ongoing normal operating expenses.

No interest shall be paid by an improvement district on funds borrowed from that improvement district's
Board Designated Fund reserves. lnterest on loans from the Novato lmprovement District shall be paid by
the recipient district to the Novato district based upon the outstanding loan balance at the close of the
previous accounting period. lnterest shall be calculated at the higher of. 1. The weighted average interest
rate of Novato improvement district debt (2.760/o at 6130120)', or 2. The average interest rate earned on the
District treasury since the close of the previous accounting period; plus $50 per month.

Note 11 - Budqet Auqmentations

Note l2 - Prior Period Adiustment

Note l3 - Explanation of Financial Statement Components

The District's financial statement is comprised of four components: 1) Statement of Net Position, 2) Sources
and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined, 3) lncome Statement and Cash Flow by
Service Area, and 4) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

The Statement of Net Position (page 4) reports the District's assets and liabilities and provides information
about the nature and amount of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the District's
creditors (liabilities). The difference between assets and liabilities is reported as nef position. Over time,
increases or decreases in the fund balance may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of the District is improving or deteriorating.
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The Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined (page B) compares fiscal
year-to-date performance against the Board approved annual budget - presented in the adopted budget
format. This Sources and Uses of Funds Statement varies from the income statement in that it includes
capital expenditures, debt principal repayment, connection fee revenue, and cash infusions from debt
issuance.

The lncome Statement and Cash Flow by Service Area (page 9) presents the net income (loss) for the
fiscal year-to-date (FYTD) period for each of the District's four service areas. The income and expenses on
this report are presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and comply
with Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements. Accordingly, all ìncome and expenses
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. This statement measures the success of each service area's operations and can be
used to determine whether the service area has successfully recovered all costs through user fees and
other charges.

Also included at the bottom of page 9 is a statement of Cash Flow by Service Area. The primary purpose
of this statement is to reconcile in an informative manner the difference between the net income/(loss) for
period of each service area with the resultant change in cash balance that occurred over the same period.

Notes to the Financial Statements (page 28) provide a summary of significant accounting policies and
assumptions and other information of value to the financial statement reader.

Other Supplementary lnformation includes Detail lncome Statements presented in accordance with
GAAP for each of the four service areas (pages 10, 14, 16, 19). These statements present income and
expenditures in close detail for further analysis. Other supplementary schedules of note include the Vehicle
Fleet Analysis (page 23), Equipment Expenditures (page 21) and Capital lmprovement Project
Expenditures (page 25), which show outlays to date, compared with budget authority.

Note 14 -Gonnection Fee Transfers from Novato Water To Recvcled Water

The following Connection Fee (FRC) reserve amounts have been transferred to the Recycled Water fund

ExpansionLocalshare SRFRWF Expansion Transfer
I

BPGL Loan
North South Central NËnn RA Loan SRFLoan Repaynent CIP Totâl

I

Executed

FYOT

FYOE

FYO9

FYtO $rgg,osgÌ
FY11

FYtz $zgg,¿zat $zos,soo'
FY1 3

FY14

FY1 5

FY16

FY17

FYl 8

FY1 9

FY2O

FYz1

$7zg,s2so 94,024

$tz,sggt (ç4,024

$0 $66,729

$362,524

$5,071 ,512

929,725

$50,478

$150,455

$75,'198

$t gg,gt gn

$1 r s,8830

$3'15,023

$63,035

$ga,zag*

ç102,842

$r g+,osoo

$38,908

$6,966

$0

Qaa aoÊ

ç22,795

622,795

$22,795

$22,795

922,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

822,79s

$22,795

$0

9464.572

$500,529

$614,299

$ot +,zgg.

$ot¿,zgg* $3o,oazo

$01¿,zgg*

$890,072

$350,287 ($1,046,471) $1 ,084

$zgg,gt go

$29,725

' $7s,zls
$173,250

$231,652

$156,1 14

$637,656

$802,390

$1,550,200

$688,916

$806,664

$ 1 ,230,940

$5,747,513

(91,248,922)

($68e,600)

$793,919

$ 1 33,659

$ 1 ,970,400

$1,550,200

$688,e'16

$806,664

$1,230,940

$5,747,s13

($1,248,e22)

($68e,600)

$793,9 r I

$ 1 33,659

$r ,'175,Ogeo

{sz,ooef
$soz,ggot

$1,550,200

$088,916

$806,664

$1,230,940

$5,747,513

(91,248,e22)

($68e,600)

$793,919

v

T

!c

I

!{
$236,291

ïr
$0

Y

Y

{$z,t oa,zssf

$5,499

$603,428 $1,006,589 $3,337,s09 $1,314,7s1 $223,539 $5,456,575 " $0 çtt,ttt "ç,tz,oso,16l $10,983,690 g10,983,690
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Note l5 -Debt Service Coveraqe Ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio is the ratio of net income/(loss) plus interest expense, depreciation, and
connection fee revenue for the fiscal year to the sum of the fiscal year's principal and interest payments on
the District's total debt.

FY17 FYIS FY19 FY2O FY21

Net lncome/(Loss)

Depreciation

lnterest Expense

Connection Fees

Total Available For Debt Service

$597,600

$3,416,507

$757,935

$1,034,585

$1,860,520

$3,434,069

$833,1 97

$1,455,400

$1,159,000

$3,528,000

$850,000

$733,000

$1,830,000 $849,000

$3,486,000 $3,777,000

$806,000 $748,000

$340,000 $509,000

$5,806,627 $7,583,186 $6,270,000 $6,462,000 $5,883,000

AnnualDebt Service 92,527,021 $2,201,451 $3,129,000 $3,139,000 $3,141,004

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2.30 3.45 2.01 2.06 1.87
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Item #6

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors April30,2021

Tony Williams, Assistant General Manager/Chief Engineer æ
Contract Amendment for Engineering Services - White and Prescott
RINON JOB No ISSUES\Consultânts\White&Prsscott\FY2o-21\Agmts_BOD Memos\W&P FY20-21 Contract Amend No. 4 BOD Msmo 5-2l.doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: Authorize General Manager to amend the Consulting Services
Agreement with White and Prescott

$30,000 (no budget augmentation necessary)

To:

From:

Re:

FINANCIAL IMPAGT:

Backoround

At the September 18,2018 meeting, the Board authorized a new Consulting Services

Agreement between the District and White and Prescott for miscellaneous engineering services.

At the May 21,2019 meeting the Board authorized a contract amendment for $30,000. At the

February 3,2020, a second contract amendment for $30,000 was authorized. A cost breakdown

by task for the $30,000 FY18-19 contract plus $60,000 amendments is summarized as follows:

Starting Contract Amount $30,000

Carryover from FY16-17 Contract $500

Adjusted Contract Balance $30,500

Contract Amendment 1

Contract Amendment 2

Adjusted Balance on Contract

Projects (billings to date)

MSN B2|AEEP Easement Support

Old Ranch Road Tank Site

Crest Pump Station

PRE Tank 1 Survey

PRE Tank 4A

Surplus Property Review

Landsea Homes

Hamilton Village

Park-A-Pup

Recycled Water Central- City of Novato Easements

Vineyard Rd Maintenance Agreement

Starbucks

1758 lndian Valley Rd

Atherton Place

$30,000

$30,000

$90,500

<$41,190>

<$21,465>

<$5,120>

<$3,420>

<$2,920>

<$2,700>

<$2,070>

<$1,665>

<$1,395>

<$1,360>

<$1 ,1 70>

<$675>

<$450>

<$450>

o
(ú
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Avesta

McPhails Commercial Development

Residence lnn

Novato Public Library

20 Leveroni

Blue Barn

Jerry's Deli

Pt. Reyes Treatment Plant

Total Billings to date

Balance on Contract

<$360>

<$270>

<$270>

<$225>

<$225>

<$1 35>

<$1 35>

<$1 35>

<$88,345>

$2,1 55

Expenditures

FY18-19 and FY19-20 White and Prescott expenditures currently total $88,345 leaving a

balance of $2,155 on the contract. Although the contract amount has not been completely

expended, planned expenditures coupled with the following upcoming tasks and future CIP or

Developer project support, make a contract amendment necessary:

. On-going High/Low Pressure Notices Support $5,000

. On-going Easement Support $5,000

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board authorize the General Manager to amend the Consulting Services

Agreement with White and Prescott in the amount of $30,000.





MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Tony Williams, Assistant General Manaoer/Chief Enoineer 4fly'

Item #7

April 30, 2021To:

From

Re: Contract Amendment to General Services Agreement - Associated Right of Way
Services
RINON JOB No ISSUES\Consultânts\Assoc Right of Way Serv¡æs\BOD Memos_Agmts_Am6ndments\ARws GSA Cont Amond 2 BOD mêmo 5-21.doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize General Manager to amend the General Services
Agreement with.Associated Right of Way Services

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $25,000 (no budget augmentation necessary)

Backoround

At the February 6, 2019 meeting, the Board authorized a new Consulting Services

Agreement between the District and Associated Right of Way Services (ARWS) for

miscellaneous right of way services. Contract Amendment 1 was issued to ARWS for a time

extension to their contract. This request is to approve a second contract amendment for

continued miscellaneous right of way services on an as needed basis. A cost breakdown by

task for the $25,000 contract is summarized as follows:

Starting Contract Amount $25,000

Contract Amendment 1 (time extension)

Projects (billings to date)

New GallagherWell No. 2

Balance on Contract

Task Orders Recently lssued

New GallagherWell No. 2

NMWD Surplus Properties

$0

<$5,133 >

$19,867

<$7,000>

<$3,000>

Remaining Balance Available $9,867

Expenditures

ARWS expenditures and issued task orders currentlytotal $15,133 leaving a balance of

$9,867 on the contract. Although the contract amount has not been expended, planned

expenditures coupled with the following upcoming tasks and other future needs make a contract

amendment necessary:

. Surplus Lands (appraisal) $9,000

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board authorize the General Manager to amend the Consulting Services

Agreement with ARWS in the amount of $25,000.
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Item #8

April 30, 2021To:

From:

Subject

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANGIAL IMPAGT:

MEMORANDUM

Approve Spring 2021 Novato "Waterline" Text

$8,000 (lncluded in FY 202012021 Budget)

Board of Director" 
O n

Ryan Grisso, Water Conservation Coordinator 0\(7
Approve Text for Spring 2021 Novato "Waterline", Volume 22, lssue 46
V:\l\4emos to Board\Spring 2021 Novato Waterl¡ne Text.doc

Draft text and design for the Spring 2021 Novato "Waterline", Volume 22, lssue 46 is at-

tached for your review. This issue focuses on the drought and includes a General Manager Mes-

sage on the current situation, a summary of water-use prohibitions for 2021 , and other water con-

servation offerings to the customers including the Watersmart AMI Portal access, Cash for Grass

Rebate, Mulch Rebate, and Drought Drive-up Event. Should any Board member have individual

comments please provide them to the General Manager at the Board meeting on May 4,2021 . ltis

expected the "Waterline"will be mailed in mid \Aay 2021.

RECOMMENDATION

Board authorize General Manager to approve final text and design of Spring 2021 Novato

"Waterline'i Volume 22, lssue 46.



Access Your Water Use

A WaterSmart Portal was developed as a part of the new AMI 
(Advanced Metering Infrastructure) system, and we encourage 
you to sign up and log in on the portal to get acquainted with the 
system and learn more about your water use. The portal gives 
customers access to hourly water use data and the ability to set 
up alerts for high use and leak events. Please visit the District’s 
new website at nmwd.com to learn more about accessing the 
WaterSmart Portal (and online bill pay). If you experience any issues 
registering or logging in to the WaterSmart Portal, please call 
415-897-4133, and a staff member can guide you through the 
process.

It’s a Drought – Save Water with Us!
Reduce Water Use by 20%
Drew McIntyre, General Manager

We’re asking Novato residents to do their part to save water, with 
a water-reduction goal of 20%. Winter’s extremely dry conditions 
resulted in only 8.6-inches of rainfall this year, less than one third of 
our average, and insufficient to generate runoff into Stafford Lake. 
Lake capacity has increased from a low of 29% in early February 
to just over 50% due to back feeding water from Sonoma County 
Water Agency (SCWA), to provide local supply this summer.

Sonoma’s Russian River water delivery system typically provides 
70-80% of our annual supply using water from Lake Sonoma and 
Lake Mendocino. Following a series of Drought Declarations, the 
Sonoma County Water Agency may reduce deliveries to retail 
water contractors, including North Marin Water District, by a 
minimum of 20% this summer.

In anticipation of this, the North Marin Water District Board of 
Directors declared a Water Shortage Emergency on March 16, 
enacted the Novato Water Shortage Contingency Plan and 
adopted an Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance (No. 41) 
prohibiting waste and non-essential use of water. 

On April 20, our Board of Directors amended Ordinance 41 calling 
on customers to reduce water use by 20% compared to the same 
period last year through voluntary (Stage 1) measures until June 
30 followed by mandatory (Stage 2) measures from July 1 through 
November 1. Reductions can be achieved by eliminating water 
waste and non-essential usage, and by reducing water applied to 
landscaped areas. 

Our Mediterranean climate results in year-to-year rainfall 
fluctuations. One of our strategic goals is to increase local supply 
and long-term supply reliability. North Marin Water District is 
participating in a Regional Water Supply Resiliency Study with 
SCWA to address this goal. We have also undertaken the largest 
Capital Improvement project in the District’s history, in partnership 
with Novato and Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary Districts, to increase 
our drought proof recycled water supply from 2% to over 10% of 
our summer water demands. 

In 2019, NMWD became one of the first California water districts to 
convert 100% of our water meters from manually read mechanical 
units to electronic units that offer hourly water usage monitoring 
and reporting. See below on how you can use the new WaterSmart 
Portal to view and monitor your water use. 

We hope all customers will help us to save water during this dry 
year, and thank you in advance for your cooperation.

Drought 2021: Summary of Prohibitions

•	 Gutter flooding (unreasonable irrigation overspray or 
irrigation run-off onto pavement, down a gutter, ditch or other 
drain.

•	 Failure to repair a controllable leak of water within a 
reasonable time.

•	 Washing privately-owned motor vehicles, trailers and boats 
except from a bucket and hose equipped with an automatic 
shut-off nozzle for a quick rinse.

•	 Washing down exterior paved areas.

•	 Re-filling an existing pool drained after July 1, 2021 or initial 
filling of a new pool after July 1, 2021 .

This list serves only a summary of the water use prohibitions 
in Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance 41. For the full 
list of prohibitions, please visit the website at nmwd.com. For 
questions on the water use prohibitions or to report a violation, 
call 415-761-8944 or email waterconserve@nmwd.com.

While we’re working to reduce overall water usage, residents 
do have options when it comes to garden watering. Watering 
of any landscaping is allowed when using hand held hose, drip 
irrigation system, or a container (for example, a watering can) 
with the following exceptions:

•	 Overhead/above ground irrigation is allowed 3 days/week:

•	 Odd numbered addresses can irrigate on: 
Monday, Wednesday and Friday

•	 Even numbered addresses can irrigate on: 
Tuesday, Thursday and Saturday

•	 Overhead/ above ground irrigation is only allowed during the 
hours of 7pm to 9am.

•	 Customers using more than 300 gallons per day who wish to 
use overhead/above ground irrigation must maintain a 20% 
reduction in water use compared to 2020. Unsure if you meet 
the 20% reduction requirement? Check your WaterSmart 
Portal at nmwd.com.

The Waterline
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Pay your bills online.
Visit onlinebiller.com/nmwd



Water Smart Savings Program

North Marin Water District wants to help customers use water efficiently. That’s why we’ve put all of our water saving promotions under 
one umbrella. The Water Smart Savings Program encompasses all you need to get started on saving water and saving money. 
Call 415-761-8944 for program details or visit nmwd.com.

Water Smart Home Survey
This free service includes thorough indoor 
and outdoor water efficiency checks. On hold 
during Covid-19, but will resume in 2021.

Water Smart Landscape Rebate
Rebates available for water efficient 
landscape equipment, such as a new drip 
irrigation system replacing a spray system 
or a rain shut off device.

Pool Cover Rebate
Rebates are available for replacement 
pool covers.

Cash for Grass Rebate
Get cash for removing irrigated and 
maintained lawn and replacing it with 
low water use plants. Pre-qualification is 
required.

High Efficiency Clothes Washer Rebate
NMWD offers a rebate to customers when 
they purchase a qualifying high efficiency 
clothes washer.

Rainwater Catchment Rebate
Rebate for collection and storage 
of rainwater.

High Efficiency Toilet Rebate
Customers who replace an old water-
guzzling toilet with a high efficiency toilet 
may be eligible for a rebate.

Weather-Based Irrigation Controller 
Rebate
Rebate for weather-based irrigation 
controllers that use weather data and 
site information such as plant type and 
sprinkler system output to automatically 
adjust watering times and frequency. 
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999 Rush Creek Place
PO Box 146
Novato, CA 94948

nmwd.com

Drought
Drive-up

Drought is here. Save Water.

From 9am

COVID safe 
procedures in 
place

Visit our drive-up for your FREE 
Drought Tool Kit

Free aerator, dye tab, shower 
head, bucket, nozzle and more!

June 12, 2021 
From 9am until 1pm

North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place
Novato, CA 94945

North Marin Water District Outdoor Programs to Help You Through the Drought
Ryan Grisso, Water Conservation Coordinator

Cash for Grass
North Marin Water District offers a cash incentive for replacing regularly maintained, 
irrigated lawns with District-approved low water use plantings on drip irrigation. The 
incentive has been increased for this drought period and we will now pay up to $100 
per 100 square feet ($1 per square foot) of lawn area if you replace it with qualified 
low water use planting (up to $800 per single family dwelling). Pre-qualification site 
visit and re-landscaping plan approval are required for participation. The District also 
has a ‘Lawn Be Gone’ program - visit nmwd.com for details.

Water Smart Landscape Efficiency Mulch Rebate
As a part of NMWD’s Water Smart Landscape Efficiency Rebate Program, mulch 
purchase and installation can be rebated at 50% the cost of approved mulch 
materials up to $200 (recently increased during this drought period). Please call 
415-761-8944 or email waterconserve@nmwd.com for details on participation.
Please remember to follow the Novato Fire Department’s guide for mulch application 
in proximity to your house. 





Item #9

To:

From

Subj:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Tony Wi I I ia ms, Ass i sta nt G M/C h ie f Engineer z3/
Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs)
RICHIEF ENG\M¡sc BOD Memos\5-4-2021\ADU\54-21 BOD Memo ADU lssuss Final.docx

April 30, 2021

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the report and direct staff to respond to customer
rnqurnes

FINANCIAL IMPAGT: None at this time.

Backoround

Recently, a few District customers have expressed the need for the District to "follow

MMWD's lead" and not collect any fees or charges for accessory dwelling units (ADUs) smaller

than 1,200 square feet, with the requirement that the applicanlowner occupy either structure. ln

general, Engineering staff receive regular inquiries regarding ADUs and associated District

regulations. The purpose of this item is to provide the Board and the general public with some

information on state legislation related to ADUs, comparison of other water providers, and to

present usage data obtained from actual meter readings,

Leqislation and Code

Over the last several years the California Legislature, apparently motivated by the housing

crisis, has enacted multiple pieces of legislation intended to facilitate the process by which local

agencies with land use powers approve ADUs and junior ADUs (JADUs) and, by restricting the

amounts that special districts providing water and service can charge for connecting ADUs and

JDUs to their respective systems, to make them less expensive to construct. ADUs are governed

by Government Code section 65852.2 and JADUs are governed by Government Code section

65852.22 (which defines a JADU as "unit that is no more than 500 square feet in size and

contained entirely within a single-family residence"). ln all, sixteen versions of section 65852.2

were enacted into law in 2019, one of which became operative on January 1,2020, and another

which would have become operative in 2025. Four versions of section 65852.2 were enacted by

AB 3182in2020, one of which became operative on January 1,2020, and anotherwill by its

terms become operative in2025.

Subdivision (f) of section 65852.2 prohibits the District from imposing "capacity charges"

(i,e., the FRC) and "connection fees" (as these two terms are defined in Government Code Section

66013) for certain ADUs in certain circumstances. Unfortunately, inconsistencies within

subdivision (f) - specifically between subdivisions (Ð(2) and (f)(4) and (f)(5) - have led to
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confus¡on among many potential applicants for water service trying to determine the

circumstances in which capacity charges and connection fees may be imposed on an ADU.

Section 65852.2 contemplates that ADUs can be "attached to" or within an existing or

proposed "structure" such as a primary dwelling, including an attached garage, a storage area, or

an accessory structure; or in a detached structure separate from the primary dwelling but on the

same lot as a primary dwelling. Section 65852.2 authorizes land use agencies to adopt a zoning

ordinance permitting ADUs that do not exceed 50% of the floor area of the primary dwelling

(attached) and do not exceed 1,200 square feet (SF) in total floor area (if detached). lf no such

ordinance is adopted, the agency has no discretionary review over such ADUs.

After approval of an ADU by the local land use agency (City of Novato or County of Marin,

as appropriate), section65852.2 prohibits the District from imposing a capacity charge (i.e., an

FRC) or a connection fee (including the cost for a new service lateral and meter) for the types of

ADUs listed below unless the applicant has requested a separate service line or meter:

o An ADU within the existing space of a single-family dwelling.

. An ADU within the existing space of an accessory structure (which may include an

expansion of not more than 150 square feet beyond the same physical dimensions as

the existing accessory structure, provided that the expansion shall be limited to

accommodating ingress and egress).

. An ADU within the proposed space of a single-family dwelling.

For ADUs other than those described in the bullets above, in accordance with Regulation

1, the District is allowed to require a separate service connection and to impose the FRC and any

associated new connection fees on the ADU, although subdivision (fX5) restricts the amount of

the connection fee or capacity charge that can be imposed in two respects:

¡ The fee or charge must "be proporlionate to the burden of the proposed accessory

dwelling unit, based upon either its square feet or the number of its drainage fixture

unit (DFU) values, as defined in the Uniform Plumbing Code adopted and published

by the lnternationalAssociation of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials, upon the water

or sewer sYstem"; and

o The fee or charge must "not exceed the reasonable cost of providing this service'"

These requirements are codified in District Regulation 1, The District, with the assistance of legal

counsel, previously prepared a flowcharl (Attachment 1) that describes the different scenarios

and whether a fee is charged as an aid to potential applicants.
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Comoarison with Other Aoencies

District staff examined how other water providers in the Bay Area handle ADU

applications. The table below provides a summary of the amounts of capacity charges imposed

on ADUs by various special districts providing water service.

Agency
ADU Water Service Capacity Charges*

Attached
(<50% of residence)

Detached
(within exist. structure)

New
Construction

North Marin WD $10,000 $10,000 $10,000

Mid-Peninsula WD $10,000 $10,000 $10,000

Alameda County WD $6,862 $6,862 $6,862

Contra Costa WD $10,669 $10,669 $10,669

City of Santa Rosa $7,545 $7,545 $7,545

Valley of the Moon WD $11,697 $11,697 $11,697

Marin MunicipalWD $7,040 $7,040 $7,040
*table only shows FRCs or related capacity charges imposed for ADUs that don't meet the con
described above (the first three bullets above) and represents FRCs or related capacity charges.

ditions for exemption

ln 2020, MMWD adopted Ordinance No. 446 providing applicants a "pass" on fees and

charges for ADUs that are entirely new construction (but not constructed with a new single family

home) and that are either (a) attached to an existing single family residence and less than 50%

of the square footage of the primary dwelling, or (b) detached from an existing single family

residence and less than 1200 SF in size, provided that the following additional conditions are met:

L The applicant is a current MMWD customer of at least 1-year of continuous service;

and

2. The applicant/property owner will occupy either the primary residence or the new ADU.

Consistent with section 65852.2, current District regulations, specifically District

Regulation No. 1, provide two options to an applicant seeking service from the District to an ADU

that is nof within the existing space of a single-family dwelling, the proposed space of a new single

family dwelling, or the existing space of an accessory structure (allowing for an additional 150

square feet for access) has two options: 1) obtain a new meter and separate service line to the

proposed ADU structure; or 2) if the existing meter and service line have capacity to provide

adequate service to the primary dwelling and the ADU, obtain "dual service" using the existing

service line to the property but installing a new meter for the proposed ADU.
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Water Usaqe for Existinq ADUs

One important element that the Board should keep in mind regarding ADUs in general is

water usage. The Engineering Department has been tracking water usage for ADU projects going

back to 2004 in the Novato Service Area. The average water usage for the 13 ADUs that were

anafyzed was 101 gallons per day (gpd), with usage ranging from a high value of 296 gpd to a

low value of 24 gpd. The purpose of the District's FRC is to obtain revenue commensurate with

the costs to provide capacity for new customers through existing and future water facilities in order

to remain in a position to reliably serve those new connections. The tracked data indicates that

ADUs do measurably impact the overall demand and resulting capacity needs of District's water

system, and that this impact will only grow as more and more are constructed over time. As noted

above, section 65852.2 recognizes than an ADU will place a "burden" upon "the water or sewer

system."

RECOMME NDATION

The Board direct staff to respond to inquiries about the application of the District's

regulations to applications for service to newly created ADUs.



e ilonTH tAnllt
WANR DFÏNKÍ

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Requirements

Attached or Detached from Main Residence

Did the applicant request a separate service line or meter?

YES

YES

NO

1. Detached & less than 1 ,200ft2.
2. Attached & less than 50% of the main

residence.
3. Approved by the City or County, as

appropriate.

ls the ADU:

ls the attached or detached ADU being created within
the existing space of an existing structure or as part of

a proposed new single-family dwelling? {t}

The ADU may be served by the existing meter if
adequately sized. Completion of a Water Service
Application is required to update District records.

No fees due

NO

NO

YES

Additionalwater meter will be
installed since the ADU is a

new structure
(regardless of size)

Fees

I
-{
o
-
mz
-{
A

(1) 150 ft2 expansion for ingress/egress only
allowed for detached ADUs.





To:

From:

Subject:

Item #10

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

Date: April3Q,2021

Approve ESA Consulting Agreement Amendment 2 Supplemental
Groundwater, Stream Flow and Biological Monitoring Services for New Gallagher
Well No. 2
rlfolders by job no\6OOO jobs\6609.20 new gallagh6r wêll #2\bod memos\esâ amend 2 envr ssrvs gall well 2 bod memo 5-4-21 .doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board authorize the General Manager to amend the
agreement with ESA

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $77,000 with a $8,000 contingency (Bulk of work is budgeted in

FY22)

Backqr,ound

The existing NMWD Gallagher Well No. 1 safe yield capacity of -140 gpm has

always been much less than the original expected capacity of 300 gpm. Gallagher Well No. 1

was constructed in 1993 and was idle until the Gallagher Well transmission pipeline was

constructed in 2015. For over three decades now, the District has been working on expanding

water supply sources that are outside the influence of salinity intrusion experienced at our two

Point Reyes Station (PRS) wells (at the former Coast Guard Housing property). Gallagher Well

No. t has proven to provide excellent quality water with very low salinity because the Lagunitas

Creek minimum water surface elevation at Gallagher Ranch is - 15 feet above mean sea level

and is not influenced by coastaltides,

While salinity intrusion at the PRS (aka Coast Guard) wells has been an ongoing

problem for many years, it has reached unprecedented levels during dry year conditions in 2020

and corrective action is needed as soon as possible. Constructing a second well at Gallagher

Ranch is imperative to achieve the original 1992 expected 300gpm supply from a source that is

outside the influence of salinity intrusion.

Consultinq Aoreement Historv

At the October 6, 2020 meeting, the Board approved an agreement with ESA for

permitting services to prepare an addendum to the 2009 Gallagher Wells and Pipeline Project

lnitial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (lS/MND) for an amount not to exceed $66,000

(including contingency). This task was completed in February, 2021. At the April 6, 2021

meeting, the Board approved a $50,000 amendment (including contingency) to ESA's

agreement to cover additional efforts expended by ESA including (1) preparing detailed
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response to comments received during the Addendum process, (2) providing support to staff in

developing a Water Development Plan as required in the MALT easement, (3) supplemental

staff report support and presentations to the Board, Lagunitas Creek Technical Advisory

Committee and Marin County Local Coastal Permit DZA Hearing, (4) regularly scheduled

weekly coordination calls designed to ensure timely permit coordination and (5) additional

efforts related to the Coastal Permit Appeal. At the time of Amendment No. 1 approval, staff

advised that Board that additional mitigation monitoring and reporting services including more

well testing, biological creek studies, additional coordination with Resource Agencies, would be

covered under a future amendment(s).

Amendment No. 2

This Amendment is requested to cover mitigation monitoring and reporling efforts

outlined in Mitigation Measure BR-2 as revised in the Gallagher Wells and Pipeline CEQA

Addendum approved by the Board at the March 2, 2021 meeting. More specifically,

Amendment No. 2 covers supplemental groundwater, Lagunitas Creek stream flow and

biological monitoring tasks as summarized below:

Task l. Supplemental Groundwater and Stream Flow Analysis - to further assess whether
groundwater pumping at the Gallagher Well Site causes a discernible change in gage height
and streamflow in Lagunitas Creek.

Task 2. Biological Resource Monitoring - establish baseline pre-project flow conditions within
Lagunitas Creek. Surveys will be conducted by two fisheries biologists over two survey days,
during which monitoring stations will be established across a range of functional habitat types
(e.9., riffle, pool, run).

Task 3. Draft and Final Technical Memos - Pre and Post Project Conditions- synthesize
the analysis and provide a technical memorandum, which will describe results of pump test and
field observations, instream habitat assessment observations, and conclusions. The TMs wilf
be updated at various pre and post project stages.

Task 4. Project Management - includes oversight of technical data collection, coordination of
access, project safety plan development, and bi-monthly conference calls, and up to 2 meetings
with stakeholders to present findings.

Recommendation:

That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a second amendment to

the ESA agreement for services related to the New Gallagher Well No. 2 Project for a not to

exceed fee of $77,000 plus an $8,000 contingency.





MEMORANDUM

Item #11

April 30, 2021To:

From:

Subject:

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

Renew Declaration of Local Emergency Related to COVID-19 Pandemic
l:\gm\bod misc 2021\renew covid êmsrgêncy dêclaration #26 4-30-21.doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Approve continuation of the local emergency resulting from
the COVID-19 pandemic as declared in District Resolution No.
20-07

-$174,735 as of March 31, 2021 (total fiscal impacts are
currently unknown)

On March 4, 2020, the Governor of the State of California declared a State of Emergency as

a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. On March 13,2020, the President of the United

States declared a National Emergency as a result of the threat of COVID-19.

On March 16,2020, the County of Marin by Order of the Health Officer issued a Shelter in

Place Order limiting the travel of all county residents and ordering county businesses to cease all

non-essential activities and to take further actions as described in said Orderthrough April 7,2020,

The order limits activity, travel and business functions to most essential needs.

On March 16,2020 the General Manger, as the District's Emergency Manager activated the

District's Emergency Operations Plan,

On March 19, 2020, Governor Newson issued Executive Order N-33-20 ordering all

individuals living in California to stay home at their place of residence, with certain exceptions for

critical services and other qualifying exceptions. This shelter-in-place order has no specified

termination date.

On March 31,2020, the County of Marin by Order of the Health Officer issued an extended

ShelterinPlaceOrderthroughMay3,2020thatismorerestrictivethantheoriginalorder. Thenew

order continues to provide an exception for the operations and maintenance of "Essential

lnfrastructure," which includes, but is not limited to, water, wastewater, and recycled water service,

Exemptions are also in place for Essential Government Functions, for certain "Minimum Basic

Operations," for emergency management functions, for certain narrowly prescribed "Essential

Business" functions, and for certain qualifying private construction, such as housing projects

meeting low-income needs.
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On April 29,2020, Marin County and the other six BayArea Public Health Officers issued a

new order effective May 4, 2020 through May 31,2020. Marin's public health order concerning use

of face coverings does not have an end date and will remain in place until further notice. Under the

May 4th Shelter-ln-Place order, construction activities, certain businesses that operate primarily

outdoors, and some outdoor activities will be allowed to resume with specific conditions.

On May 15,2020, Marin County issued a new order allowing a limited number of additional

businesses and activities to resume operations subject to specified conditions. ln particular, office

spaces were allowed to resume operation on June 1,2020 subject to strict compliance with specific

Marin County requirements. This new order has no end date and is to remain in effect until

rescinded or superseded.

On July 13, 2020 Governor Newson issued a statewide order to dial back on recent

loosening of restrictions due to a significant increase in the number of confirmed cases. As a result,

various activities in Marin County were once again closed down, including: office space for non-

essential operations, indoor malls, hair salons/barbershops and indoor seating at restaurants.

On September 15, 2020, Marin County successfully appealed to the California Department of

Public Health (CDPH) to move into Tier 2 in the state's COVID-19 response framework. Moving from

Tier 1, or "widespread" COVID-19 community risk (or purple) status, to the Tier 2 "substantial" (or

red) status risk category allowing more businesses to reopen.

On October 27 ,2020 Marin County was notified that California was moving the county from

Tier 2 or "substantial risk" status to the Tier 3 or "moderate risk" level due to fewer daily cases, and a

reduction in the positivity rate.

On November 16, Governor Gavin Newsom announced that CDPH officially moved Marin

County from orange Tier 3 ("moderate risk") to the more restrictive red Tier 2 ("substantial risk") on

its Blueprint for a Safer Economy. The step back comes just three days after the Marin County

Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) notified local businesses and agencies about

preemptive restrictions to stem the virus' spread locally.

On December 3, 2020 Governor Newsom announced that all sectors other than retail and

essential operations will be closed in regions of California when less than 15% of intensive care unit

(lCU) beds are available under a new Regional Stay Home Order. Marin County proactively

implemented the State's Regional Stay Home Order at noon on December 8th and the state officially
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issued said Order to Marin County (as part of the Bay Area region) on December 17tr,

On January 25,2021, CDPH lifted the Regional Stay-Home Order for the Bay Area and

statewide. All 1 1 counties in the Bay Area, including Marin, thereby moved into the purple (or Tier 1)

stage within the State's " Safer Econom

On February 23,2021, the State has announced that Marin County will move from

"purple"(Tier 1) to "red" (Tier 2) status in the Bl,ueprint for a Safer Economy effective Wednesday,

February 24. Ihe move from Tier 1 or "widespread risk" status to the less restrictive Tier 2 or

"substantial risk" level is based on consecutive weeks of progress in Marin's COVID-19 case

statistics.

On March 11 ,2021, the state opened up additional segments as eligible for the COVID-19

vaccination. This includes utility workers who have been reclassified as Emergency Service workers

which includes water and wastewater workers and support staff (all NMWD employees)

On March 24th 2021, Marin moved from the Red status (Tier 2) to Orange status (Tier 3).

This move relaxed indoor operation restrictions for a number of sectors. Non-essential offices may

now reopen again.

On April 6, 2021, Governor Newsom announced that California will lift nearly all of its

restrictions on business and gathering on June 15,2021,

On April 7th, the Board of Directors approved Resolution No. 20-07 proclaiming the existence

of a local emergency, granting the General Manager to take actions necessary for emergency

response due to the COVID-19 pandemic until the State of Emergency is terminated.

Since April 21,2020, the Board of Directors has, at every regular meeting, approved

continuation of the local emergency resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic as declared in District

Resolution No. 20-07.

District emergency planning has been aggressively implemented since March 16, 2020. The

District's current COVID-19 Preparedness and Response Plan has been prepared to maintain

optimum health and safety working conditions. As a result of the Plan, the District has adopted

various housekeeping and physical distancing protocols and also instituted modified work schedules

as appropriate. lnitially approximately 50% of the District's staff were physically separated as much

as possible by rotating shifts and having some employees work from home, but all critical operations

needed to maintain essential services continue. Relocation of additional staff back to the District

buildings, and certain other projects and activities has occurred and the District is now operating
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w¡th 86% of staff on-site or in the field full time. The balance of staff are teleworking from home with

most coming into the office at least one day each week. Walk-in customer service is still

suspended. A summary of key emergency actions taken and current estimated costs is provided in

Attachment 1.

As the COVID-19 emergency continues in our service area, Staff is requesting the Board find

that there still exists a need to continue the State of Emergency reflected by Resolution No. 20-07.

RECOMMEND

Approve continuation of the local emergency resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic as

declared in District Resolution No. 20-07.



Emergency Actions Su m mary

Emergency Operations Team Actions

o Water treatment plants have been closed to all non-essential staff and the public; expanded social

distancing and safety measures for essential plant staff.

o Public lobby in the District Administration building has been closed and customers have been

provided with alternative methods for communicating with District staff.

o Developed guidelines for social distancing in the office and in the field; distributed guidance to all

employees and posted social distancing protocol at facility entrances,

¡ Developed an initial rotational schedule for operations and maintenance staff to reduce staffing

density on-site and minimize the number of employees on duty while completing essential work,

(This approach reduced productivity, but improved the likelihood of healthy backup staff.)

. During initial response, shifted -50 percent of employees to rotating schedule and/or rotating

work currently -15% of employees are on full or partial temporary teleworl< assignments,

o Procured additional District cell phones for field staff to have better access to District

communications and direct contact with supervisors.

o Disinfected District vehicles and reconfigured vehicle assignments to accommodate single

occupancy to allow for social distancing, including re-deployment of vehicles scheduled for

a uction.

. Suspended discretional water service turn-offs for the duration of the emergency declaration.

o Continuing coordination with local agency, county and state contracts to share information and

implement best practices.

r Participating in weekly multi agency coordination calls through Marin County Office of Emergency

Services (OES).

o Updating public website, messaging and social media posts as necessary including messages on

suspension of walk-in services and water safety and reliability.

o Spring 2020 Waterline newsletter, direct mailed to all customers, included COVID-19 messaging

with information on water safety and reliability.

o Posted magnetic signage on vehicles to inform public to respect distancing around crews,

o lssued guidance on face coverings in compliance with Centers for Disease Controland Prevention

and County recommendations; revised to address April 29 County order generally requiring

members of the public and workers to wear face coverings.

o Developed and rolled out an employee self-assessment screening questionnaire for use by any

District employee or vendor prior to entering a District workspace; self-assessment questions are

reviewed and updated as needed.

o Continue to procure necessary face coverings and personal protective equipment, including

disposable masks, face covering and N95 equivalent masks.

o Tracking customer delinquency and comparing to last year to asses potential revenue impacts.

Attachment l-
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o Developing a living "lessons learned" document.

. lnstalled hand disinfecting stations at District facilities.

. Expanded use of District's on-call requirements to ensure construction crew staff maintain their

work "bubbles" to ensure adequate back-up staff availability.

o lncreased janitorial services to include disinfection of frequently touched areas (door handles,

knobs, etc,).

o Modified work spaces to improve physical separation between staff'

o Developed a COVID-1-9 Preparedness and Response Plan and provided training.

o lmplemented a daily self-assessment reportlng program for all staff reporting to work.

o Modifying District office front lobby in preparation of re-opening walk-in services (Date to be

determined).

o lnstalled "No Touch" drinking fountains in both Administration Building and Construction Building.

General Manager Authorizations

o Extended vacation accrual maximums from July t,2O2O to September30,2020.

o Extende d FY 2019/20 vision insurance reimbursement eligibil¡ty from July L to August 3I,2020.
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PROCUREMENT EXPENSES

COVID Cost Summary

Vendor
Purchases

Procurement Type Total Purchase Order Amount Date

Durkin Signs &
Graphics

Magnetic "Social

Distance" Signs

5t,077 4/14/2020

Winzer
Corporation

Surgical Masks (2,000) S3,75i. 4/ts/2020

Boucher Law COVID Protection Plan +

Ongoing Support
5r2,778 3/2020-2/202r

JCA Construction Misc. Office Social

Distancing Modifications
5r3,177 6/3012020

Winzer
Corporation

Surgical Masks (2,000) S1,592 7 /6/2020

Novato Glass Plexiglass $3,969 6lel2o2o

Amazon Face Masks (12) 5s+ 6l30/2020

USA Bluebook Digital Forehead
Thermometers (2)

s218 7l3ol2o2o

Amazon DigitalThermometers
(20)

5744 6124/2020

Amazon Face Masks (1-20) $4os 8/20/2020

Wínzer
Corporation

Surgical Masks (2,000) $szo 1./1.412021

Total
Procurement

Amount To-Date 5g7,7gs
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lnternal Labor Expenses

lncreased on-call labor costs:

Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA)

Allows employees to take time off for COVID

medical reasons and/or childcare.

Payroll Collection Costs

Water Bill Deli uencv lmoacts

Customer Accounts Past Due (count)

Delinquent Balances %o Due on Account

Delinquent Balances 5 nue on Account

-587,900 thru February 28 2O2t

-594,500 thru March 31.,2021

-$33,soo thru February 28,2021.
-533,900 thru March 3I,2021

-$7,060 thru Februa ry 28,2021.
-$8,600 thru March 31,202'J.

312020 3/2021

3.6% 3.7%

LO% to.6%

S92,ooo Si-2g,ooo





Item #12

To:

From

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors April30,2021

Tony Wi I I ia ms, Ass ista nt G M/Ch ie t Engineer.$ë
Robert Clark, Operations/Maintenance Superintendent

NMWD Headquarters Upgrade Schematic Design Overview and Cost
RlFoldsrs by Job N0\6000 jobs\6501.44 NMWD Offlcs_Yard Bldg Renovation\BoD Mêmos\BOD Memo 5.4.21 NMWD HQ Upgrâde Schematicoesign.docx

Subj:

RECOMMENDED AGTION: lnformation Only

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None at this time.
(Design Services Agreement not to exceed $1,245,000
authorized at 1 1 I 17 12020 BOD Meeting)

At the April 6, 2021 Board meeting, staff provided an update regarding the progress of the

NMWD Headquarters Upgrade Project by Noll & Tam Architects (N&T) and the District's Building

Committee. ln accordance with the current project schedule, a Schematic Design submittal,

representing an approximate 25 percent level of design, is being finalized for Phase 1, new

laboratory building and Phase 2, renovation of the existing administration building. The current

cost estimate for construction (excluding soft costs) of these two Phases is currently $12,170,005

which is approximately 10 percent overthe Master Plan Conceptual Cost of $10,936,683. The

N&T team and the District's Building Committee recently met and identified project elements that

can be refined resulting in lower costs. Value engineering analysis and subsequent cost savings

is planned to achieve the constriction estimate in line with the original budget. ln addition, the

Building Committee is identifying elements of the projects that may be eligible for future grant

funding.

Key members of the N&T team will be providing a short presentation of the Schematic

Design elements and the current project cost estimate. The next phase of the Project is the Design

Development, the production of an approximate 60 percent level of design completion.
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PHASE 1

LABORATORY & SITE UTILITIES

PHASE 2

RENOVATE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING

SITE WORK & LANDSCAPING & SITE 

PAVING

SITE WORK

PAVING AREA

Phase 1 Phase 3

Phase 2

PAVING AREA
ELECTRICAL SERVICE

PHASE 3

FUTURE EXPANSION



MASTERPLAN PROGRAM

• New Water Quality Laboratory

• Flexible Board room and Public Space

• Individual Department Programs

• Planning for Future Expansion

Administrative Department
Building Circulation
Engineering Department
Water Quality Laboratory
Operations & Maintenance
Shared / Public Space

North

Recap of 2019 Masterplan



Administrative Department
Building Circulation
Engineering Department
Water Quality Laboratory
Operations & Maintenance
Shared / Public Space

North

Phase II

Phase I
Phase III 

(not in scope)

SCHEMATIC PLAN UPDATE

• 8 Building Committee 
Meetings

• 2 Site Visits

• 2 Lab Planning Sessions

• Schematic Design Cost 
estimate

NORTH



North

Water-Efficiency 
demonstration planting area

Bird/Bee Planting area

Dry Shade Planting Area

Stormwater Planting

Decomposed Granite

Pedestrian Concrete

Permeable Paver

SCHEMATIC LANDSCAPE PLAN



Arrival View from Rush Creek Place

Staff Arrival View from west parking area

Detail of Staff Entry between Lab and Admin

Detail of North outdoor space from Rush Creek Place



Estimated Total Project Cost for Schematic Design NMWD Headquarters

PHASE / SCOPE OF PROJECT SQUARE FEET 

(APPROX.)

CONCEPT PROJECT 

COST
Phase 1 - New Building Addition

New Water Quality Laboratory + associated site utilities, 

temporary surge space and associated site work

3,219 SF $6.5 mil

Phase 2 - Renovation Administration Building

Significant renovation of the existing administration building, 

de-mobilize temporary surge space and associated site work

9,830 SF $8.2 mil

Total Phase 1 & 2 Project Cost 13,049 SF $14.7 mil

Phase 3 – Expansion of New Building Addition

New office and work space for the Construction group and 

Operations & Maintenance departments, site work 

(Anticipated in 2027)

2,600 SF $3.7 mil

Total Phase 3 Project Cost $3.7 mil

Corporation Yard – Flood Mitigation

NMWD Scope of work under separate Contract
TBD

Roof Replacement Project Completed Previously

SQUARE FEET 
(APPROX.)

SCHEMATIC 
PROJECT COST

3,470 SF $8.1 mil

9,678 SF $7.8 mil

13,148 SF $ 15.9 mil

2,600 SF $3.7 mil

$3.7 mil

TBD



Project Value Engineering NMWD Headquarters

CONSTRUCTION COST 

REDUCTIONS

Goal:  Refine project scope to reduce cost by 10% to 12%

Structural Simplification Revise plan areas to reduce changes to existing seismic structural shear walls and reduce 

structural connections

Perimeter Landscaping Propose reduction to overall area of landscaping and irrigation system around buildings

General building finishes and 

materials Selection

Refine selection of finishes and exterior materials for better value 

Exterior Building Enclosure Reduce window area and select soffit and eave materials for value

NMWD Self Perform Utilities District to assess trenching runs and site utilities for work to be performed by District crews

Grant Funding Sources District to explore funding for essential facility and water conservation projects

Reduce Temporary Office Area District to review leasing fewer temporary office modular buildings and transition staff to 

remote working during construction

Design / Engineering 

Contingency

Project cost includes a 10% contingency for  design development of scope



Anticipated Project Schedule NMWD Headquarters

PROJECT SCHEDULE UPDATE Start End

Scheme Design January 2021 April 2021

Design Development/Confirm Entitlement Process May 2021 July 2021

Contract Documents August 2021 January 2022

City of Novato Permitting November 2021 February 2022

Project Bid and Contract Award February 2022 April 2022

Construction Phase 1 - Duration May 2022 May 2023

Construction Phase 2 – Duration May 2023 March 2024

Project Closeout February 2024 April 2024

Construction Phase 3 - Duration June 2027 March 2028



NMWD Headquarters

Questions?





Item #13

MEMORANDUM

April 30, 2021

rþ
Subj: lnitial Review - Capital Project FY 21122 &FY 22123 & Equipment Budget FY 21122

t:\ac\budgetw-2021.22\boârd msmos\capital & equ¡p budgelfy21.22boatdmemo rev¡ew docx

RECOII,IMENDED ACTION: lnitial Review and Provide Direction to Staff

FINANCIAL IMPAGT:
None at this time - C/P - $4.9M FY 21122 & $4.7M FY 22123
Gross Expenditure Budget Proposed for Consideration
Equipment - $295K FY 21122

Capital lmprovement Proiect Budqet (ClPì

Attached for review is the proposed FiscalYear2ll22 (FY22) and FY 22123 (FY23) Capital

lmprovement Project (ClP) expenditure budget. As in prior years, a comprehensive 2-year plan

is presented (Attachment 1), which includes the projects recommended for Novato Water,

Recycled Water, West Marin Water, and Oceana Marin Sewer. Also included is a debt service

schedule detailing the principal and interest payment required to fund prior and upcoming ClPs.

This comprehensive plan is developed to verify that adequate funding and staffing exists to

accomplish the 34 budgeted projects planned for FY22. For reference, Attachment 2 shows the

District wide 1O-year history of capital improvement projects which averages $8.5 million per year

including $3.7 million of internally (or "Pay-Go") financed projects.

The proposed two-year combined total project outlay, net of granUloan rate funding, totals

$9.5 million, which approximates the $9.5 million combined two-year budget adopted last year.

The proposed FY22 CIP budget includes 34 projects, which is one more than the number of

projects approved tor FY21. FYzl estimated actual CIP expenditures are forecast to come in at

$3.7 million.

---.Net Gash o-lLltSy-EAV:WI ". 1

To: Board of Directors

From: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controlle

Novato Water

Recvclæl-Wqtqr .l 450,000

WM Water (20*9,9.-o-qì.- 
¡

510,OOO:

. $B,Bso,o-oo ! $7,522,000 1 $.1,9?q,Q99J

OM Sewer

Proposed
FY22 &FY23

Adopted
FY21&FY22

200 000

-... l,4.4q,.-o-Q9 J

* 355,000 I

lncrease I

(Decrease) |

000

(1,649,000) I

155 000

Total $s6o14og l- $eélz4ss I s84.ooo I

*West Marin is scheduled to borrow $1 .5M from Novato Water to cover CIP expenditures

spanning'lromFY2l-23. Cash outlay in FY21 estimated at $1.4M. Negative cash outlay in

FY22&23 due to timing of projects and timing of when the loan will be provided to WM to
maintain sufficient cash flows.
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Below is a summary identifying the significant projects (totaling $400,000 or more)

proposed to be undertaken over the next two fiscal years. An explanation of each FY21 project is

incorporated into the attached CIP detail listing.

Proiect FY23

NMWD H U ps rade $7,950_,0

Old Ranch Road Tank No. 2

-N"oy_q!p._.Pjyd,w_1Qe¡jng, Dj"g"b!-o to-_ -Gran\-(!, !001) I ._ 290-1000

Lynwood RecoaUseismic Upgrade :

1130q'09-0 j -._ 1' 520,000

1,0_0-0,000 i ... 21000,00.0..

San Mateo 24" lnleVOutlet P ipe (2,200') 850,000

Replace Cast lro-n Pipe - Atherton Ave. (RW) 50,000-, 350,000 ; 350,000 i

Oceana Marin Treatment Pond Rehab 1,450p0_0 i ?05p00- ì 499109-0 
i

New Gallagher Well #2 (WM) 631,000 j

Lagunitas Creek B¡ldge Pip-e Replacement (WM) i 400,000 52 000 ; 477,OOO

Other Projects 2,0 000 2 019 000

Gross Outlay ì 11t -2p0,00! 1 12Ín6j0g_0 ¡. ZS,S1.G,OOO.. 
i

Less Loan/Grant F undlns r (Q,p=zÞ'gp=q) 1 ß,:!qq,999) ì {]gs?qpaE

Novato Potable Water's CIP expenditure plan, when viewed over the current fiscal year

and the next five years, averages $4 million annually in internally funded projects, which is

consistent with the S-year plan as established with the Board approved 2020 Novato and

Recycled Water Rate Study.

Reviews of the District wide budgets will occur on May 18 and June 1 which will include

the CIP budgets. The Novato and Recycled Water budgets (including the CIP budgets) are

scheduled for approval on June 15, 2021. The West Marin Water and Oceana Marin Sewer

budgets (including the CIP budgets) will be also be reviewed on May 18 and June 1 with budget

approval scheduled for June 22. Board comments and concerns are valued and will be addressed

and incorporated into the budget where applicable.

Equipment Budqet

Also attached for your initial review is the proposed FY 21122 (FY22) Equipment Budget

(Attachment 3). The proposed budget totals $295,000, which is $35,000 lower than the FY21

Equipment Budget of $330,000. FY21 estimated actual expenditures are forecast to come in at

$240,000.

i $-3,575,00-0

; 1'600'p,0-Q

0ò j $16,200 000 i

i ..... 2,3-]oo,0_"0-g i

I
I

)

I

i- : 420,000 ì

- ì e24,ooo j

I

1

I
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A significant purchase included in the proposed budget is $135,000 to replace the cab and

chassis on the Peterbilt 335. Additionally, a metertesting bench and equipmentfor $120,000 is

included. Accompanying this memo is a chart showing ten years of equipment purchases history

(Attachment 4). The Equipment Budget will also be reviewed, within the District wide budget, at

the May 18 board meeting with approval scheduled for June 1 5, 2021.



NMWD DRAFT BUDGET

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS t:\ac\budget\fy-2021.22\budget final fy 21.22\supporting schedules fy 21.22\cip fy21.22\[5 yr cip fy22-27.xlsx]5 yr cip

FY22 FY23 FY22 & FY23 Project Description

1. PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

a. Main/Pipeline Replacements
1.7189.00 1 Replace 12" CI Pipe Novato Blvd (785LF) -                    $50,000 Replace 60 year old Cast-Iron-Pipe that has a high frequency of breaks and is at 

the end of its useful life.
1.7183.00 & .01 2 Replace Plastic Thin Walled Pipe < 4-inch $150,000 $150,000 Ongoing systematic replacement of all plastic TW pipe < 4-inch.

1.7195.00 3 Novato Blvd Widening - Diablo to Grant (4100LF) $200,000 $1,300,000 Replaces 60 year old cast iron pipe and replaces 50+ old ACP with 12" PVC; Joint 
project with City and Novato Sanitary District.

4 Other Main Replacements (60+ years old) $200,000 -                     Unplanned repairs/replacements for failing mains.
$550,000 $1,500,000

b. Main/Pipeline Additions
1.7150.00 1 San Mateo 24" Inlet/Outlet Pipe (2,200') $850,000 -                     

2 Loop Mariner Way to Redwood Bl. $125,000 -                     
3 Loop Los Robles Rd and Posada Del Sol -                    $125,000
4 Other Main/Pipeline Additions $150,000 $150,000 Misc. Projects to loop dead end mains

$1,125,000 $275,000
c. Polybutylene Service Line Replacements

1.7139.xx 1 Replace PB in Sync w/City Paving (30 Services) $70,000 $70,000 Ongoing systematic replacement of PB services in advance of City paving 
projects.

1.7123.xx 2 Other PB Replacements (40 Services) -                    $80,000 Ongoing systematic replacement of PB services.
$70,000 $150,000

d. Relocations to Sync w/City & County CIP
1.8737.xx 1 Other Relocations $70,000 $25,000 Relocate facilities for yet to be identified City/County Projects.

$70,000 $25,000

TOTAL PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS $1,815,000 $1,950,000

1 of 7

ATTACHMENT 1



NMWD DRAFT BUDGET

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS t:\ac\budget\fy-2021.22\budget final fy 21.22\supporting schedules fy 21.22\cip fy21.22\[5 yr cip fy22-27.xlsx]5 yr cip

FY22 FY23 FY22 & FY23 Project Description

2. SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

1.7007.14 a. DCA Repair/Replace-FY21 (~14/yr) $100,000 $100,000 Ongoing program to replace old assemblies

1.7090.04 b. Anode Installations-FY21 (150/yr) $10,000 $10,000 Place anodes on copper laterals for corrosion protection. Prioritize bad sand sites

1.6313.20 c. Pressure Reducing Station - Harbor Drive $25,000 -                     
1.6302.21 d. Pressure Reducing Station - Blackpoint $25,000 -                     
1.7136.00 e. Facilities Security Enhancements -                    $25,000
1.7190.00 f. San Marin Aqueduct Valve Pit (STP to Zone 2) $150,000 -                     Piping/Valve modifications to allow downtown Zone 1 water (from STP) to supply 

San Marin pump station.
g. Other System Improvements -                    $200,000

TOTAL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS $310,000 $335,000

3. BUILDING, YARD, STP IMPROVEMENTS
a. Administration Building

1.6501.44 1 NMWD Headquarters Upgrade (Note 1) $3,575,000 $7,950,000 50-year-old building requires significant upgrading; Phases 1 - 2 shown
$3,575,000 $7,950,000

b. Stafford Treatment Plant
1.6600.69 1 Dam Concrete Repair (Apron) $50,000 -                     Ongoing patch repairs as needed.
1.6600.96 2 Leveroni Creek Embankment Repair (Note 2) $175,000 -                     Repair/stabilize culvert embankment under access road to STP/IVGC.

3 Concrete Apron Overlay -                    $100,000
1.6600.xx 4 Other Treatment Plant Improvements $50,000 $50,000 Miscellaneous plant improvements.

1.6600.92 5 STP - Chemical System Upgrades (Tank R&R) $75,000 $75,000 Ongoing replacement of original chemical storage tanks (circa 2006) that are at the 
end if their useful life.

1.6600.83 6 Filter Underdrain/Media R&R $20,000 $20,000 Filter underdrain inspection and media replacement for each filter unit (one per 
year).

$370,000 $245,000

TOTAL BUILDING, YARD, STP IMPROVEMENTS $3,945,000 $8,195,000

2 of 7



NMWD DRAFT BUDGET

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS t:\ac\budget\fy-2021.22\budget final fy 21.22\supporting schedules fy 21.22\cip fy21.22\[5 yr cip fy22-27.xlsx]5 yr cip

FY22 FY23 FY22 & FY23 Project Description
4. STORAGE TANKS/PUMP STATIONS

a. Tank Construction
1.6207.20 2 Old Ranch Rd Tank No. 2 (100k gal) $1,600,000 -                     Award construction in FY21, construction complete FY22

$1,600,000 -                     
b. Tank Rehabilitation

1.7170.00 1 Hydropneumatic Tank Repairs $30,000 -                     Ongoing program to inspect/Repair the 7 tanks in compliance with State Code.

2 Garner Tank Recoat (0.1 MG) -                    $170,000
3 Lynwood Recoat/Seismic Upgrade (0.85MG & 0.5MG) -                    $1,000,000

$30,000 $1,170,000

1.6112.24 c. Lynwood P.S. Motor Control Center $400,000 -                     Move motor controls above-ground.
1.6141.00 d. Crest PS (Design/Const) /Reloc School Rd PS $375,000 -                     Replace School Rd PS with new facility on Bahia Drive.

e. Davies PS Upgrade - $50,000
f. Fire Flow Backfeed Valve Nunes Tank - $200,000

$775,000 $250,000
TOTAL STORAGE TANKS/PUMP STATIONS $2,405,000 $1,420,000

TOTAL NOVATO SERVICE AREA $8,475,000 $11,900,000

5. RECYCLED WATER
5.7162,xx a. Replace CI in Atherton Avenue (1320LF) $50,000 $350,000 1950's era cast iron pipe re-purposed for RW. Sliplining maybe used.
5.7162,xx b. Other Recycled Water Expenditures $50,000 - Retrofit existing potable irrigation customers to RW.

TOTAL RECYCLED WATER PROJECTS $100,000 $350,000

3 of 7



NMWD DRAFT BUDGET

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS t:\ac\budget\fy-2021.22\budget final fy 21.22\supporting schedules fy 21.22\cip fy21.22\[5 yr cip fy22-27.xlsx]5 yr cip

FY22 FY23 FY22 & FY23 Project Description

6. WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM
2.6263.20 a. Replace PRE Tank #4A (25K gal w/125K gal) -                    -                     Replace and upsize redwood tank destroyed in Vision Fire with concrete tank.
2.6609.20 b. New Gallagher Well #2 $631,000 -                     Permit and construct 2nd well at Gallagher Ranch.
2.8829.xx c. PB Replace in Sync w/ County Paving $50,000 -                     For 25 replacements.
2-7185-00 d. Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization (Note 3) $4,000 $4,000 Monitoring costs over 5 years.
2.8912.00 e. Lagunitas Creek Bridge Pipe Replacement (Caltrans) $400,000 $52,000 Relocate/replace 8-inch water main across Lagunitas Creek Bridge.

f. Miscellaneous Water System Improvements -                    $200,000
TOTAL WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM PROJECTS $1,085,000 $256,000

7. OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM
8.8672.28 a. Infiltration Repair (Manhole Relining) $40,000 $40,000 Ongoing work to identify and repair collection pipelines to prevent rainwater from 

leaking into the system.
8.7085.05 b. Tahiti Way Lift Pumps Replacement $100,000 -                     Replacement of Lift Pumps

8.7173.00 c. OM Treatment Pond Rehab (Note 5) $1,450,000 $205,000 Hazard mitigation project to armor the existing earthen treatment pond berms to 
minimize storm erosion and damage due to earthquakes. 

d. North St. Lift Station Bypass -                    -                     

e. Sewer Force Main Improvements -                    $125,000 adding isolation valves or other appurtenances in the 3,000+ LF FM to allow for 
repairs in the system

TOTAL OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM PROJECTS $1,590,000 $370,000

4 of 7



NMWD DRAFT BUDGET

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS t:\ac\budget\fy-2021.22\budget final fy 21.22\supporting schedules fy 21.22\cip fy21.22\[5 yr cip fy22-27.xlsx]5 yr cip

FY22 FY23 FY22 & FY23 Project Description
SUMMARY - GROSS PROJECT OUTLAY

Novato Water $8,475,000 $11,900,000
Recycled Water $100,000 $350,000

West Marin Water $1,085,000 $256,000
Oceana Marin Sewer $1,590,000 $370,000

GROSS PROJECT OUTLAY $11,250,000 $12,876,000

LESS FUNDED BY LOANS/GRANTS/OTHER
a. Office/Yard Building Refurbish (Note 1) ($3,575,000) ($7,950,000)
b. WM Novato Water Loan to WM (Note 3) ($1,350,000) (200,000)        
c. OM Treatment Pond Rehab (Note 4) ($1,450,000) -                     

TOTAL LOAN/GRANT FUNDS ($6,375,000) ($8,150,000)

SUMMARY - NET PROJECT OUTLAY
Novato Capital Improvement Net Project Outlay $4,900,000 $3,950,000

Recycled Water $100,000 $350,000
West Marin Water ($265,000) $56,000

Oceana Marin Sewer $140,000 $370,000
NET PROJECT OUTLAY $4,875,000 $4,726,000

Total Number of District Projects 34 27
Novato 5-Year Average of Internally Funded Projects FY21/22-FY25/26 $4,070,000

RW 5-Year Average of Internally Funded Projects FY21/22-FY25/26 $150,000

West Marin 5-Year Average of Internally Funded Projects FY21/22-FY25/26 $250,000

Oceana Marin 5-Year Average of Internally Funded Projects FY21/22-FY25/26 $240,000

5 of 7
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CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS t:\ac\budget\fy-2021.22\budget final fy 21.22\supporting schedules fy 21.22\cip fy21.22\[5 yr cip fy22-27.xlsx]5 yr cip

FY22 FY23 FY22 & FY23 Project Description
NOVATO POTABLE WATER DEBT SERVICE

a. STP SRF Loan $1,044,000 $1,044,000
b. AEEP Bank Loan $482,000 $482,000
c. Advanced Meter Info Retrofit Loan $378,000 $376,000
d. Admin Building Renovation Loan (Note 1) 1,238,000     1,238,000      

$3,142,000 $3,140,000
NOVATO RECYCLED WATER DEBT SERVICE

e. Deer Island Facility SRF Loan $273,000 $273,000
f. RW North Expansion SRF Loan $282,000 $282,000
g. RW South Expansion SRF Loan $332,000 $332,000
h. RW Central Exp SRF Loan (Net of MCC) $227,000 $227,000

$1,114,000 $1,114,000

WEST MARIN WATER DEBT SERVICE
i. TP Solids Handling Bank Loan $153,000 $234,000

$153,000 $234,000
OCEANA MARIN SEWER DEBT SERVICE

j CIP Financing -                    $33,000
$0 $33,000

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE $4,409,000 $4,521,000

NET PROJECT OUTLAY & DEBT SERVICE $9,284,000 $9,247,000
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NMWD DRAFT BUDGET

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS t:\ac\budget\fy-2021.22\budget final fy 21.22\supporting schedules fy 21.22\cip fy21.22\[5 yr cip fy22-27.xlsx]5 yr cip

FY22 FY23 FY22 & FY23 Project Description

STUDIES & SPECIAL PROJECTS
1.4057.00 a Local Water Supply Enhancement Study -                    $150,000
1.7039.02 b Novato Water Master Plan Update $95,000 -                     
1.6501.43 c. Electronic Document Management System $60,000 -                     

d. Lynwood/San Marin Zone 2 Pumping Study -                    $30,000
e. Cathodic Protection Master Plan $20,000 -                     
f. Pump Efficiency/Hydraulic Study $30,000 -                     

 $205,000 $180,000

Note 1 - $16.2M NMWD Headquarters Upgrade is proposed to be funded by 20 year 3.5% Bank Loan.
Note 2 - Project developed as part of October 2017 Feasibility Assessment prepared by Prunuske Chatham, Inc.
Note 3 - Loan from Novato Water - As included in the 2021 WM Water rate study - to be paid back with interest.
Note 4 - Project to be funded at 75% by grants. Eligible project costs are budgeted at $2.2M (75%=$1.425M). Also includes loans for capital projects of $250K in FY22.
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ATTACHMENT 2

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 e/a 22 Budget 23 Budget
Debt/Grant Financed $3,062 $12,676 $4,285 $6,351 $7,090 $0 $0 $411 $6,375 $8,150
Internally Financed $1,393 $3,321 $1,341 $5,999 $3,901 $3,871 $3,135 $4,084 $4,875 $4,651
Total $4,455 $15,997 $5,626 $12,350 $10,991 $3,871 $3,135 $4,495 $11,250 $12,801

$0

$4,000

$8,000

$12,000

$16,000

NMWD Capital Improvement Project Expenditures
All Districts Combined

04/27/21

Thousands

FY 14‐23 Average Total CIP = $8.5 million
FY 14‐23 Average Internally Financed Expense = $3.7 million

t:\ac\budget\fy-2021.22\budget final fy 21.22\supporting schedules fy 21.22\cip fy21.22\[5 yr cip fy22-27.xlsx]chart data



NMWD DRAFT BUDGET

EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES
Fiscal Year 21/22 Budget

Approved Description
1 OPERATIONS/MAINTENANCE

12106.01.00 a. Meter Maintenance Program $120,000
$120,000

2 Engineering
12106.01.00 a. File Management System $40,000 Replace flat filing system 

$40,000

3 VEHICLE & ROLLING EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES Rolling Stock to be Transferred & Auctioned or Description
12104.01.00 a. $135,000 Replace Peterbilt 335 (#508) cab and chassis

$135,000

Total $295,000

RECAP

Adopted 
Budget 
2020/21

Estimated 
Actual 

2020/21

Proposed 
Budget 
2021/22

Equipment $142,000 $61,000 $160,000
Rolling Stock $188,000 $179,000 $135,000

$330,000 $240,000 $295,000

Peterbilt 335 (#508) cab and chassis

T:\AC\Budget\FY-2021.22\Budget Final FY 21.22\Supporting Schedules FY 21.22\Equip21.22Equip21.22
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ATTACHMENT 4

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 est 22 Budget
Info Systems $33,346 $0 $8,050 $0 $0 $0 $8,600 $0 $0 $0 $0
Rolling Stock $103,057 $146,305 $161,834 $172,989 $48,812 $141,044 $58,143 $92,730 $138,170 $178,989 $135,000
Other Equipment $53,724 $43,764 $32,884 $23,231 $26,374 $77,802 $6,131 $25,849 $146,935 $61,053 $160,000
Total $190,127 $190,069 $202,768 $196,220 $75,187 $218,846 $72,874 $118,579 $285,105 $240,042 $295,000

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

10 Year History of Equipment Purchases
4/27/2021 t:\ac\budget\fy-2021.22\budget final fy 

21.22\supporting schedules fy 

10 Year Average - FY12-FY21
Info Systems $6,000
Rolling Stock $124,000
Other Equipment $49,000

Total $179,000





MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Robert Clark, Operations / Maintenance Superintendent

FY 20121Third Quarter Progress Report - Operations/Maintenance
X:\MAINT SUPU021\BOD\Q3 -2120 O&M update.doc

Item #14

April 30, 2021To:

From:

Subject:
/4L

RECOMMENDED AGTION: lnformation

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None

Novato

With 8.56 inches of rain or 32 percent of average rainfall during this rainfall season Stafford

Lake reached a maximum elevation of 178.4 feet or 29o/o of full capacity (overflow elevation is 196

feet). Beginning on February 18th Stafford Lake has been filling via a back feed from surplus SCWA

water and at the end of March the lake reached an elevation of 183.6 feetor 45o/o of full capacity. The

back feed will continue through the end of April is expected to reach 186 feet or 53% capacity.

Operations staff performed STP maintenance tasks including repairing the filter drain and

replacing the filter media in treatment train #3 and replacement of all granular activated carbon. Staff

completed annual Bay Area Chemical Consortium bid program for four primary treatment plant

chemicals including Ferric Chloride, Chlorine, Sodium Hypo Chloride and Sodium Hydroxide. Staff

completed the biannual ground water well inspections in Tomales and Novato as part of the Marin

County ground water basin monitoring plan,

Maintenance staff completed scheduled tasks this period including replacement of direct

buried TM line with a wireless connection for the San Antonio tank site, There are seven remaining

leased lines that will need to be addressed in the future. Expansion of our new asset management

program (NexGen) continues with reoccurring maintenance program tasks and equipment data

population. District employee Kyle Bergstrom was transferred into the Maintenance group from the

Construction group, as an Apprentice Electrical Mechanical Technician.

The2020 Cross Connection Control (CCC) annual report was completed; highlights from the

CCC program include; 90% completion of 2,128 backflow device tests and 100o/o completion of the

commercial fire services testing. City of Novato and Novato Unified School District completed all

device testing requirements again this year. Efforts continue towards updating the CCC program

with focus on new program tracking software and addressing water front property CCC device

installations.

West Marin Svstem / Oceana Marin

Operations staff spent significant time in the West Marin system managing the water quality

from the wells. Gallagher well requires an annual cleaning to help maintain flow and the Coast

Guard wells had their S-year cleaning scheduled for this low winter demand period. lncreased



FY 20121Third Quarter Progress Report
April30, 2021
Page 2

sed¡ments in the Gallagher pipeline have led to high turbidity which the plant cannot treat and

required staff to flush the 1.25-mile pipeline. Annual maintenance at the Point Reyes Treatment

Plant also included cleaning of the contract chamber. Maintenance staff replaced Oceana Marin lift

station pump #2 otherwise Oceana Marin was affected by a few PG&E maintenance outages.





To:

From:

Subject:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Tony Williams, Assistant GM/Chief Engineer /3/r1/
Vineyard Road Maintenance Agreement Update
RICHIEF ENc\Misc BOD Memos\54-2021\Vlneyard Rd Mainwineyard Roâd Maint Agreomont BOD mêmo.doc

Seven Landowners (1 share each)

District (3 shares)

Horse stables (5 shares)

Item #15

April30, 2021

lnformation Only

None at this time.
(Payment for $1,041.00 recently made for maintenance work)

$2,429.00

$1,041.00

REGOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPAGT:

Beginning as early as2007 after direction from the Board, staff have been working with the

various stakeholders involved with the dirt road extension of Vineyard Road, past the end of the

County-maintained limit. The stakeholders are the various properties owners that either borderthe

existing roadway easement or rely on the roadway easement to access their properties from the

County terminus to the intersection with Meadow Lane. The roadway is approximately 2,250 feet

long and approximately 40 feet wide. A total of nine properties owners (including NMWD) plus the

Marin County Open Space District currently makeup the stakeholders involved as shown on the

attached map (Attachment 1). The goal is to enter into a longterm Road Maintenance Agreement

with all stakeholders that clearly identifies roles and financial responsibilities for the roadway

maintenance as well as the scope of the maintenance.

ln the interim period without a formal agreement in place, and in accordance with past

practice and Board direction, the District will continue to contribute with either a financial contribution

or using District materials, equipment and labor, to periodic maintenance of the extension of

Vineyard Road across District watershed property. Recently a payment of $1,041 was made for

maintenance to begin this month. The planned work includes grading of the roadway, including

resloping of existing drainage ditches, placement of new gravel surfacing and application of a dust

palliative. The contribution is based on the District's proportion of the total of cost of work ($5,250).

Contributions by other stakeholders is summarized below:

735.001

Total: $5,250.00

Note that the Marin County Open Space District declined to make a financial contribution for

this cycle of maintenance activities. However, discussions with them have resumed recently

regarding a longterm maintenance agreement between all the stakeholders who use the roadway

easement. Visitors to the Open Space District's lndian Tree Preserve use a portion of roadway

easement for parking and access to one of the trailheads. The hope is that a formal Vineyard Road

Maintenance Agreement will be developed this year that all parties can agree to and that it will be

brought back to the Board for final execution.
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VINEYARD ROAD MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT OWNERSHIP TABLE

OWNER NAME

CLEONI A. GAUSE TRUST

CLEONI A. GAUSE TRUST

GEORGINA L. KRE-IZ

CLEONI A. GAUSE TRUST

GLASS FA[4ILY TRUST

DENNIS R, CASH TRUS-T

RONALD lr4, and THERESA B. C00K TRUST

HERITAGE PARK LLC

R0BERT and l\¡ARGARET l\¡0RRlS0N

ROBERT C, CRATTY TRUST

NORTH MARIN COUNTY WATER DìSTRICT

IIARIN COUNTY OPEN SPACE DISTRICT

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.

121-140-11

121-140-12

121-140-13

121-100-14

12141A15

121114-18

121-114-19

121-110-21

121-110-23

121-110-24

121-110-34

121-1'10-35VINEYARD ROAD MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT STAKEHOLDERS





Item #16
DISBURSEMENTS . DATED APRIL 22, 2021

Date Prepared 4120121

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Pavable To For Amount

P/R*

90374.

90375.

90376.

EFT-

1 All Star Rents

2 Amazon/Genuine-Hardware

Associated Right of Way
Services

Athens Administrators

AÏ&T

Automation Direct

7 Bank of Marin

Caltest Analytical Laboratory

CDW-Government

Cinquini & Passarino

11 Clipper Direct

Net Payroll PPE 4115121

Federal & FICA Taxes PPE 4115121

State Taxes & SDI PPE 4115121

Pension Contribution PPE 4115121

February Bank Analysis Charge (Lockbox $912
& Other $347 Less lnterest $70)

Propane (16 gal)

Key scan Card Reader for Lab ($123),
Webcams (2) ($168), Chlorine Reagent Pillows
(1,000) (STP) ($4Sz¡, Milriamp Meter ($7Zt¡,
Megohmmeter for E/M ($163) & Misc Supplies
and Equipment ($284)

Prog Pymt#6: Right of Way Real Estate
Services for Gallagher Well #2 (Balance
Remaining on Contract $19,868)

March lndemnity Review Fee

Leased Lines

Programmable Logic Controller for San Antonio
P/S

Bank of Marin Loan Principal & lnterest (Pymt#
114 of 240) Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project

Lab Testing (W.M.)

Wireless Ergonomic Mouse

Prog Pymt#5: PRE Tank 4A Survey (Balance
Remaining on Contract $13,578)

May Commuter Benefit Program

Employees

lnternal Revenue Service

State of California

CaIPERS

US Bank

9142,152.80

64,553.91

14,594.00

38,444.70

$1 ,189.75

67.10

1,902.24

1,275.00

105.00

66.68

292.95

46,066.67

2,164.40

55.50

1,555.00

204.00

3

4

5

6

B

I

10

*Prepaid Page '1 of 3 Disbursements - Dated April 22, 2021



Seo Pavable To For Amount

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Comcast

Digi-Key

Evoqua Water Technologies

Frontier Communications

GHD

Goerndt, Alfred

Grainger

HERC Rentals

April lnternet Connection

Cell Modem Antennas (2)

Service on Deionization System

Leased Lines

Prog Pymt#19: Engineering Services for the
Oceana Marin Pond Rehab Project ($1,SOt¡
(Balance Remaining on Contract $12,691) &
Prog Pymt#4: Old Ranch Rd Tank No. 2 Design
Services (914,497) (Balance Remaining on
Contract $25,728)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Miscellaneous Maintenance Tools & Supplies

Utility Truck Rental (4 Weeks)

144.92

104.73

360.68

1,444.50

15,798.44

100.00

955.27

2,581.72

7,770.00

6,003.81

447.00

598.30

2,718.50

8,084.98

46.45

177.08

920.00

437.15

20 Hildebrand Consulting Preparation of Drought Surcharge Memo
($4,830), Prog Pymt#6:2021West Marin Rate
Study ($1,260), & Prog Pymt# 2: Financial
Model Training ($1,680) (Balance Remaining on
Contract $2,205)

21 lnfoSend March Processing Fee for Water Bills ($1,359),
Postage ($3,ttZ¡ & March Support Fee ($872)

22 lntellaprint Systems 2nd Quarter Maintenance Engineering
Scanner/Copier

Jim-n-i Rentals Trench Plate Lifters (2)

Kiosk Creative Prog Pymt#19: District Directed Communication
Support (Balance Remaining on Contract
$18,073)

Lincoln Life

Mallory Safety and Supply

Marin lndependent Journal

Deferred Com pensation 4 I 1 5121

Sales Tax Adjustment from Previous lnvoice

Ordinance 41 & Declaration of a Water
Shodage Emergency Ads (3/4 & 3125)

Nationwide Retirement Solution Deferred Compensation 4115121

Office Depot Copy Paper (Letter & Tabloid Size) (95 reams)

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

*Prepaid Page 2 of 3 Disbursements - Dated April 22, 2021



Seo Pavable To For Amount

31

32

33

30 Pace Supply

Pacific Coast Cutters

Parkinson Accounting Systems

PES Environmental

Point Reyes Prop Mgmt Assn

Quadient

R&B

SMART

Soiland

Sonoma County Water Agency

SPG Solar

Township Building Services

TPx Communications

USA BlueBook

Man

Corp Stops (20) ($446) & Couplings (22)
($2,923)

Saw Cut Pavement (Grant Ave)

Accounting Software Support

Prog Pymt#9: Consulting Services Gallagher
Ranch Well#2 Project (Balance Remaining on
Contract $24,013)

April HOA Fees (25 Giacomini Road)

May Postal Meter Rental

Cement Lined Pipe (20') ($1,128), Elbows (3)
($1,200) & Flange Adaptors (3) ($1,996)

Easement Access @ Golden Gate Crossing

Rock (24 tons) ($489) & Asphalt (6 tons) ($58)

March Contract Water

March Energy Delivered Under Solar Services
Agreement

March Janitorial Services

April Telephone Charges

Tube & Roller Assemblies (STP) ($393) &
Chemical lnjection Quill (PRTP) ($131)

HydrochloricAcid, Standards (2) ($71) &
Reagent ($62) (Lab)
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

'1/ lolaoat

2cs Qo7

3,368.53

1,432.50

585.00

3,465.00

75.05

143.09

4,324.61

848.95

547.87

814,412.67

13,051.36

2,035.48

712.71

523.72

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44 VWR lnternational
184.59

$1,209,094.36

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $1,209,094.36 are hereby approved and
authorized for payment.

*Prepaid

ler Date

Page 3 of 3 Disbursements - Dated April 22, 2021



DISBURSEMENTS . DATED APRIL 29, 2021

Date Prepared 4127121

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance

with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Payable To For Amount

90377 US Bank Card

1 Alpha Analytical Labs

American Family Life lns

ATT

Autoworld

Bay Area Barricade Service

ChromaGraphics

B Core Utilities

9 DeGabriele, Chris

10 Fedak & Brown

11 Ferguson Watennrorks

Webinar "Management Skills for Support Staff"
($00¡, City of Novato "No Parking" Signs (200)
($3OO¡, AWWA D3-D4 Review & Math Webinars
(Simpson) ($3SO¡ & Reference Book
"Submersible Verlical Turbine Pumps" ($20¡,

Board of Professional Engineer Recertification
(Mclntyre) ($1AO¡, Zoom for Board Meetings
($13) & 1st Quarter State Payroll Tax Return
Filing ($37)

Lab Testing

ApTiIAFLAC Employee Paid Benefit

April lnternet Connection

Trailer Brake Controller ('18 Dodge Ram)

Sign Posts (6) (Vineyard Rd)

Vision Reimbursement

Notice of Public Hearing Novato Postage
($3,0+S¡ & Notice of Public Hearing West Marin

Postage ($2e+¡

Consulting Services: March lT Suppofi ($6,000¡,
SCADA Maintenance ($1,700), Maintenance on

Recycled Water Reports ($5OO¡ & CORE Billing
Maintenance ($625)

Prog Pymt#12: Consulting Services for
Office/Yard Building Refurbish & Gallagher Well
#2 Projects (Balance Remaining on Contract

$29,284)

March Progress Billing (FY21 FinancialAudit)
(Balance Remaining on Contract $17,969)

2

3

4

5

6

7

$1 ,054.17

55.00

3,085.53

90.25

737.26

181 .96

368.00

4,179.00

8,825.00

3,308.16

776.00

AMI Watersmart PortalAnnual Fee (4121-3122) 14,000.00

*Prepaid Page 1 of 3 Disbursements - Dated April 29,2021



Seq Pavable To For Amount

12

13

18

19

20

21

22

14 Grainger

15 Home Depot

16 Kaiser

17 Kiosk Creative

Mallory Safety and Supply

McMaster-Carr Supply

McPhail Fuel

Mitchell, Gary

NMWD Employee Association

Pace Supply

Preferred Alliance

Scott Technology Group

State Water Resources Control

SWRCB Accounting Office

Syar lndustries

United Parcel Service

30 Univar

Safety Supplies

FY21 Property, Excess Liability, Puþlic Official
Errors & Omissions, Employee Fidelity & Auto
Physical Damages

Reciprocating Saw Blades (11) ($404) &
Miscellaneous Maintenance Tools & Supplies
($3ot ¡

Garbage Bags (32)

Pre-Employment (Clyde) & DMV/DOT Physical
(LeBrun) ($1 t s¡

Novato City Guide (Print Ad Concept, Copy &
Design)

Oxygen Sensor for Gas Monitors (STP)

Conduit Clamps for PRE 4C

Propane for Tahiti Way Lift Station Generator

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Dues 12115120 Through 4115121

Meter Stops (55) ($3,968), ïube Nuts (4)
($sts¡, Unions (4) ($87), Couplings (6) ($463),
Gaskets (83) ($506), Nipples (5) ($62), Tees
(6), Polyguard Tape (2) ($1 1 1) & Dual Wedge

Pre-Employment Physical (Clyde)

Monthly Maintenance on Engineering Copier
(4121-5121) ($183) & Contract Overage Charge

D2 Certification Renewal (Garrett)

Lab Certification

Asphalt (12 tons)

Delivery Services: Sent Halogen Shut-Off Valve
(STP), Water Service Agreement for Hamilton
Project & Fire Service Test Forms

Sodium Bisulfite (8,800 lbs) (STP)

Fishman Supply

Arthur J. Gallagher

516.80

157,194.00

618.41

29.56

180.00

500.00

423.16

95.63

509.44

129.18

1,975.00

5,857.38

42.00

212.46

150.00

3,500.00

1,881 .78

38.39

3,960.00

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

*Prepaid Page 2 of 3 Disbursements - Dated April 29, 2021



Seo Pavable To For Amount

31

32

33

US Postal Service

VWR lnternational

Waste Management

Meter Postage

Sulfate Standard Solution (Lab)

Green Waste Removal
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

1,000.00

35,88

614.64
ï216,124.04

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $216,124.04 are hereby approved and
authorized for payment.

ltr,(*ßJt* l lat /aoat
-Controller

Ma r

Date

4
Date

*Prepaid Page 3 of 3 Disbursements - Dated April 29, 2021



To:

From

Subj:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Nancy Williamson, Senior Accountant

April 30, 2021

lnformation - FY21 3rd Quarter Labor Cost Report
t:\ac\word\memo\2 1\2ns qtr Iabor cost rpt.doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: lnformation Only

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None

Total labor cost increased $77,948 1.3o/o from the prior fiscal year. Attached in graphical format is

a five-year comparative summary of total labor cost (Attachment A), overtime cost (Attachment B) and

temporary employee cost (Attachment C) expended during each fiscal year. Also attached is a summary

of total labor cost vs. budget (Attachment D), which shows that labor was 16.4% under budget through

the end of the third quarter of the fiscal year.

Administration
Engineering
Operations/Maint
Construction/Maint

$53,088
s27,377

($54,968)
$52,451

3.4%
2.8o/o

(2.3o/o)

4.1o/o

Net I ncrease/(Decrease) $77,948 1.3o/o

Comment on Ch e from Prior Year

Administration: Labor Cost increased $53,088, or 3.4o/o. The HR/Safety Mgr position, which was

vacant the entire prior fiscal year, has been filled for six months through the third quarter of this year.

There were also four 5% step increases, two promotions and the 2.0% cost of living adjustment (COLA)

effective October 1, 2020. The increase was offset by the retirement of the Consumer Services

Supervisor on June 5,2020, the reorganization of that department and to fewer temporary hours worked.

Engineering.' Labor Cost increased $27,377, or 2.8o/o. The increase is due to the October 2020 COLA,

three 5% step increases and more temporary hours worked. The increase was offset by the retirement

of an Assoc Civil Engineer on September 30, 2020 and that position remaining vacant.

Operations/Maíntenance: Labor Cost decreased $54,968, or 2.3%. The decrease is due a Chemist ll

position being vacant since February 21,2020, an Electrical/Mechanical Technician position being

vacantfromSeptemberll,2020 until March 1,2021 andalsoduetoavacancyof theAssistantWater

Distribution & Treatment Plan Operator position since December 2, 2020. The decrease was offset by

seven 5% step increases, three promotions and the October 2020 COLA.

ConstructionlMaintenance: Labor Cost increased $52,451, or 4.1%.The increase is due to more On

Call pay because of an entire crew being on call in order to keep crews separate due to COVID-19

distancing precautions as well as nine 5% step-increases, two promotions and the October 2O2O COLA.

The increase was offset by various unpaid leave as well as a laborer moving to the Maintenance

Department on March 1,2021 and a laborer position remaining vacant.

Department
lncrease / (Decrease) in
Labor Gost vs prior FY % Change



s6,279,926
FTE 49.0

Jul 20 - Mar 2L

52,326,7u

51-,317,r91

S1,631,966

S1,003,952

56,279,826

Jul 19 - Mar 20

S2,381,685

5L,264,740

S!,578,877

56,20t,878

5976,s7s

56,201,878

S5,809,948

FTE 52.0

Jul 1-8 - Mar 19

52,L42,34g

S1,199,859

S1,505,389

s962,3s3

S5,809,948

Ops/Maint
Const/Maint
Admin
Engineering

Total

2.1%

5.8%

-o.4%

1.6%

2.Oo/o

5 Year Avg

Growth Rate

S5,805,849
FTE 53.0

Jul 17 - Mar 18

52,to6,946

S1,095,530

S1,607,989

5995,384

S5,805,849

5s,793,433
FTE52.7

Jul 16 - Mar 17

52,144,s34

S1,050,921

S1,655,109

5942,869

55,793,433

I Ops/Maint

r Const/Maint

I Admin

r Eng

r Total

4t16t21 Total Labor Cost

NMWD Fiscal Year through March
5-Year Comparison

t\f nanæ\hrsrptw2l 3rd qtr labor cost report\allhrs $ chart.xls

sT,ooo,ooo

S6,ooo,ooo

S5,ooo,ooo

S4,ooo,ooo

S3,ooo,ooo

S2,ooo,ooo

Si-,ooo,ooo

so

r Ops/Maint I Const/Maint r Admin r Eng r Total

ATTACHMENT A



5177,769

Jul 20 - Mar 27

S99,154

$50,166

$28,450

5177,769

Sr.90,366

Jul 19 - Mar 20

5702,848

S56,937

s30,582

s190,366

S186,380

Jul 18 - Mar 19

596,!42

s54,750

s35,489

s186,380

5L49,723

Jul t7 - Mar 18

582,L7t

Sqg,aez

5t7,B7o

5149,723

s724,268

Jul 16 - Mar 17

573,29s

S38,475

5r2,42s

$s¿

5t24,268

r Ops/Maint

r Const/Maint

r Admin

I Eng

I Total

4116121
t:\fìnance\hrsrpt\fy21 3rd qtr labor æst report\ot $ chart

Overtime Cost

NMWD Fiscal Year through March
S-Year Com nson

S2oo,ooo

s18o,ooo

s16o,ooo

Sl_40,ooo

S120,ooo

sloo,ooo

S8o,ooo

S6o,ooo

S4o,ooo

S2o,ooo

so

r Ops/Maint r Const/Maint ¡ Admin I Eng r Total

ATTACHMENT B



587,s27II

Jul 20 - Mar 2l
S4,038

$a,eoo

s74,689

s87,527

572,520

Jul 19 - Mar 20

5i.3,380

s18,883

s4O,257

572,s2o

$10L,800

T
I
Itl

Jul 1-8 - Mar 19

stz,926

s22,67L

550,o77

St6,t26

Si.oi.,8oo

574,156

I

Jul 77 - Mar 18

56,644

S2i-,318

526,084

$20,110

574,156

Sss,814

Jul 16 - Mar 17

5r2,298

Sts,7t4

Srg,713

S8,o8s

s55,814

r Ops/Maint

r Const/Maint

I Admin

r Eng

r Total

4116121
t:\fnance\hrsrpt\FY21 3rd qtrlabor æst report\temp $ chart.xls

Temporary Employee Cost

NMWD Fiscal Year through March

s120,000
S-Year Com anson

Sloo,ooo

s8o,ooo

56o,ooo

s40,000

s20,000

so

r Ops/Maint r Const/Maint r Admin r Eng I Total

ATTACHMENT C



4116121

Total Labor Cost vs. Budget
NMWD Fiscal Year through March

tifinance\hrsrpt\labor cost compared to budget fy21\salary chart.xls

$g,ooo,ooo

ST,ooo,ooo

s6,ooo,ooo

S5,ooo,ooo

S4,ooo,ooo

S3,ooo,ooo

S2,ooo,ooo

Sl,ooo,ooo

So

S7,51o,ooo

S2,so9,ooo

s2,326,717

$l-,98o,ooo
S1,631,966

St,3!7,r9r
51,484,000

5r,237,000
S1,003,952

Administration Constr/Maint Engineering Ops/Maint Total

ATTACHMENT D



MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

April 30, 2021

hP?

Subj: Rate lncrease Notice on Water Bills - Novato Service Area
t:\ac\budgêtw-2021.22\board memos\board memo notica onbill2O2l ' novato docx

RECOMMENDED ACTION: lnformation Only

FINANCIAL IMPACT: No Cost

At the April 20th NMWD board meeting the Board of Directors approved a customer letter

notifying of a proposed increase to water rates and related public hearing. ln conjunction with the

individually addressed letters to customers regarding the proposed rate increase, the District will

include a message on each customer's water bill. The notice will read:

A vírtuøl or physical public hearing will be held on tune 75, at 6pm, to consider a 6% rate
increase effective July 7, equol to $3,75 per month lor the average resídential customer, The

impoct on your account can be viewed at https://nmwd.cory/account/annual-cost-
calculator or call us at 415-897-4133,

The AnnualWater Cost Calculator on the District's website calculates the cost and impact

of the proposed increases in dollars and percentages for every customer account based on each

account's individual water use history, An example, using NMWD's average single-family

customer in Zone A, who uses 91,000 gallons of water annually, is shown on the following page.

A similar notice, as the one above, will be placed on the District's website along with a link to the

Annual Water Cost Calculator and a link to a copy of the rate increase notification letter.

NMWD's customer base is divided into eight groups billed bimonthly. The message will be

included on the Novato Service Area water bills mailed between April22 and June 10, 2021.



JB Memo re Rate lncrease Notice on Water Bill - Novato Service Area
April30, 202'1
Page 2 of 2

NMWD ANNUAL WATER COST CALCULATOR

Service Location: 123 Main Street

Zone: A
Account No: 123456

Meter Size: 0.625"

* Water Use shown is based on your prior 12 months billed consumption

n* Water Rate shown is your annual a\erage. The Water Rate and Water

Use Charge assume your seasonal water use pattern remains consistent

with your prior 12 months billed consumption.

**" Note that bills are rendered bimonthly (ewry 2 months).

This Annual Water Cost Calculator is for estimating purposes only and may

not provide all of the information contained on your specific customer bill or

be precisely accurate. Your f uture water cost will vary based upon your

actual vwter use. lf you have questions about this calculator please call the

District at 415.897.4133 and ask forcustomerservice.

Basic Data 10t112020 71112021

Water Use (Annual Gallons) *

Service Charge (Bim onthly)
Water Rate/1,000 Gallons **

91,000

$41.46
$5.50

91,000
$43.95

$5.83
Annual Cost
Service Charge
Water Use Charqe

$249
$501

9264
$531

TotalAnnual Cost
Annual lncrease
Percentage lncrease

Monthly lncrease:***

$749 9794
$44.e7

6.0%

$3.75



MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

April 30, 2021

Subj Rate lncrease Notice on Water Bill - West Marin Water Service Area
t:\ac\budgetw-2021.22\board memos\board memo not¡ce on b¡ll 2021 wm.docx

RECOMMENDED AGTION: lnformation Only

FINANCIAL IMPACT: No Gost

At the April 20th NMWD board meeting the Board of Directors approved a customer letter

notifying of a proposed increase to water rates, rate structure changes, and related public hearing

for the West Marin Water Service Area. ln conjunction with the individually addressed letters to

customers regarding the proposed rate increase and rate structure changes, the District will

include a message on each customer's water bill. The notice will read:

Avirtual or public heoring will be held on June 22, at 6pm, to consider a global 6% revenue

increose effective tuly 7, equal to 54 per month for the overage residential customer. The

impøct on your qccount can be viewed at https://nmwd.com/account/onnual-cost-
calculator or coll us at 475-897-4733,

The AnnualWater Cost Calculator on the District's website calculates the cost and impact

of the proposed increases and structure changes in dollars and percentages for every customer

account based on each account's individual water use history. The proposed rate structure

modifications will result in individual customer bills that may increase more or less than the 6%

global revenue increase. An example, using West Marin Water's average single-family customer

in Zone 1, who uses 54,000 gallons of water annually, is shown on the following page. A similar

notice, as the one above, will be placed on the District's website along with a link to the Annual

Water Cost Calculator and a link to a copy of the rate increase notification letter.

West Marin Water's customer base is billed every other month. This message will be

included on the customer bills on June 1Oth, prior to the June 22nd public hearing.

l.g



JB Memo re Rate lncrease Notice on Water Bill - West Marin Water Service Area
April 30, 2021
Page 2 of 2

NMWD ANNUAL WATER COST CALCULATOR

Service Location: 12345 State Route 1, Point Reyes

Zone'.1

Account No: 21 23456
Meter Size: 0.625"

* Water Use shown is based on your prior 12 months billed consumption

** Water Rate shown is your annual a\erage. The Water Rate and Water

Use Charge assume your seasonal water use pattern remains consistent

with your prior 12 months billed consumption.

*** Note that bills are rendered bimonthly (ewry 2 months).

This Annual Water Cost Calculator is for estimating pu4ooses only and may

not provide all of the information contained on your specific customer bill or
be precisely accurate. Your future vnter cost will vary based upon your

actual t¡mter use. If you have quesfions about this calculator please call the

District at 415.897.4133 and ask for customer seruice.

Basic Data 10t1t2020 7t112021

Water Use (Annual Gallons) *

Service Charge (Bim onthly)

Water Rate/1,000 Gallons **

54,000
$35.68
$1 1.43

54,000
$42.49
$11.52

Annual Cost
Service Charge
Water Use Charge

$214
$61 7

$255
$622

TotalAnnual Cost
Annual lncrease
Percentage lncrease

Monthly lncrease: ***

$831 $877
$45.72

5.5%

$3.81



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
REGARDING PROPOSED RATE INCREASES 
For the Novato Service Area 

 
 
 
 

This Notice provides information about proposed 
increases to North Marin Water District’s water 
rates and charges for the Novato Service Area. 
The Board of Directors will hold a public hearing 
at which public comments will be considered and 
written protests will be counted before the Board 
votes on the proposed increases. 

HEARING DATE: Tuesday, June 15, 2021 
TIME: 6:00 p.m. 

LOCATION*: North Marin Water District 
999 Rush Creek Place 
Novato, CA 94945

 
The District proposes increasing revenue for fiscal year 2021-2022. If approved at the public hearing on June 15, 2021, the new 
rates will go into effect on July 1, 2021. 

*Should COVID-19 restrictions remain in effect, for in-person meeting attendance in Marin County, at the time of the 
scheduled public hearing additional information regarding accommodating public participation shall be provided on the 
District website at www.nmwd.com. 

 

REASONS FOR THE PROPOSED RATE INCREASE 
The key reasons that a 6% rate increase is needed are described below. 

Increased investment in water facilities. The District must continue to invest in facility upgrades and replacements 
with an approximate cost of $4 million per year. This will help address the need to properly maintain the District’s $138 
million system of pipelines, pumps, reservoirs, treatment plants, valves, hydrants, laboratory, monitoring systems, and 
more.  

Advanced Meter Information (AMI) System. The District invested $5.8 million dollars to implement an AMI system. 
This system provides real time meter reads, reduces customer water loss, provides increased accuracy in bi-monthly billing 
and water use data, and allows customers to view and monitor their individual water use.  

Rising costs to purchase imported water. The District typically imports 75% of its water from Sonoma 
County Water Agency. The cost of purchasing imported water accounts for 30% of the budget and the water 
supplier has forecast that the costs will continue to increase by 6% every year. 

Impact of inflation on all costs. The proposed revenue increase is designed to meet all the costs of 
providing water service. This includes purchasing, treating, and delivering safe, high-quality, reliable water to 
your home or business, without fail, every day and around the clock.  

 

MILLIONS OF DOLLARS SAVED 
Cost control is a daily focus of North Marin Water District, which is one reason our rates are the lowest in Marin 
County and at the median for water agencies around the Bay Area region. Here are some of the ways we have kept 
rates down. 

• We decreased electrical costs by installing clean solar energy systems. 
• We obtained over $10 million in grants for recycled water expansion. 
• We saved $18 million by sharing the cost of a large aqueduct project with other public agencies. 
• We reduced future retirement benefit costs for new employees and reduced the number of full-time 

employees from 58 a decade ago to 54 today. 
• The recycled water (RW) system was implemented without additional staffing. RW reduces potable water use. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
James Grossi, President    
Stephen Petterle, Vice President 
Jack Baker, Director 
Rick Fraites, Director 
Michael Joly, Director 

GENERAL MANAGER 
Drew McIntyre 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Where to Learn More, Get Answers, and Make Comments 
CONTACT US: 
Phone: 415-897-4133 
Email: info@nmwd.com 

VISIT OUR WEBSITE: 
www.nmwd.com 

VISIT OUR OFFICE: 
North Marin Water District 
999 Rush Creek Place 
Novato, CA 94945 

ATTEND THE BOARD HEARING 
The Board will review and consider adopting the rate increases on  
June 15, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. at North Marin Water District, 999 Rush Creek 
Place, Novato, CA 94945. Should COVID-19 restrictions remain in effect in 
Marin County at the time of the scheduled public hearing, additional 
information regarding accommodating public participation will be provided on 
the District’s website at www.nmwd.com. 

At the Public Hearing: The Board of Directors will accept and consider all 
written protests and will hear and consider all verbal comments to the proposed 
rate increases at the Public Hearing. Verbal comments must be accompanied 
by a written protest to qualify as a valid protest. At the conclusion of the 
Hearing, the Board of Directors will consider adoption of the proposed rate 
increases as outlined in this notice. If written protests of the proposed 
changes are presented by a majority of the property owners or tenants subject 
to the proposed changes, the proposed rate increases will not be adopted. 

 
How to Protest 
the Proposed Rate Increases 
Any owner of a parcel upon which the water 
service charges are proposed to be changed, 
or any tenant that directly pays the water bill 
for such parcel, may submit a written protest 
of the proposed rate changes. Only one 
protest will be counted per parcel. Written 
protests must: (1) state that the property 
owner or tenant is opposing the proposed 
increases; (2) provide the location of the 
parcel (by street address, assessor’s parcel 
number, or customer account number); and 
(3) include the name and signature of the 
property owner or tenant submitting the 
protest. Written protests may be submitted 
by mail or in person to the District Secre- 
tary at North Marin Water District, 999 Rush 
Creek Place, Novato, CA 94945, or in person 
at the Public Hearing. All written protests 
must be received prior to the close of the 
public input portion of the Public Hearing. 
Protests submitted via email or other elec- 
tronic means will not be accepted. Please 
mark the protest: Attn: Novato Rate Hearing. 

 



Details of the Proposed Rate Increases  
 
Proposed 6% rate increase.  
Novato Water - North Marin Water District is proposing a 6% rate increase to cover the increasing 
costs of providing quality potable water service to our Novato Water service area customers.  
Recycled Water - A 6% rate increase is proposed for the Recycled Water System. Additionally, for all 
meters 1” and larger, an additional charge of $24.11 will be added to the fixed service charge. This 
additional charge will increase the service charge to conform with the proposed rates as shown in the 
2020 Novato and Recycle Water Rate Study. 

 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY FIXED SERVICE CHARGES 
The Bi-Monthly Fixed Service Charge includes an account charge and a meter charge. The meter charge is 
based on an industry standard that apportions costs based on meter size and flow capacity. Most single-
family residential customers have a 5/8” meter. Residential accounts that have a 1” meter due to fire 
requirements, but would otherwise have a 5/8” meter, are charged at the 5/8” meter rate. 

 
 

To learn how the proposed rates will affect your specific water bill, check out the District’s water cost 
calculator, available at  nmwd.com/account/annual-cost-calculator. 

The maximum rates that may be imposed are shown in this document. Prior to implementing the 
rates, the Board of Directors may choose to implement the full amount or less, but not more.

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY FIXED 
SERVICE CHARGE FOR POTABLE WATER 

Meter Size 
(in inches) 

Current 
Fixed Charge 

Proposed 
Fixed Charge 

5/8” $41.46 $43.95 
1” $74.06 $78.50 

1.5” $128.38 $136.08 
2” $193.57 $205.18 
3” $367.41 $389.45 
4” $562.98 $596.76 
6” $1,106.23 $1,172.60 
8” $1,432.18 $1,518.11 

 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY FIXED 
SERVICE CHARGE FOR RECYCLED WATER 

Meter Size 
(in inches) 

Current 
Fixed Charge 

Proposed 
Fixed Charge 

5/8”   $48.78 $51.71 
1”   $61.68 $90.93 

1.5” $123.35 $156.31 
2” $197.36 $234.76 
3” $394.72 $443.96 
4” $640.86                $679.31 
6”          $1,233.50 $1,333.07 

 

The typical residential customer (approximately 56% of all customers) will pay about 
$3.75 more per month if the changes are approved ($7.50 on the bi-monthly bill). 

 

 

     
 

PROPOSED TIERED QUANTITY (USAGE) CHARGES 
The Tiered Quantity (Usage) 
Charges has three tiers that 
reflect the costs of the 
different sources of water.  
Tier 1 (1-262 gallons per day -
GPD) is based on the cost of 
imported water. Tier 2 (263-720 
GPD) is based on the cost of 
locally treated water from Stafford 
Lake. Tier 3 (>720 GPD) is based on 
the cost of locally treated water 
plus the cost of the District’s 
conservation program, which is 
paid by those customers that use 
the most water. Usage charges 
include an elevation zone charge 
to recover the costs of pumping 
water to higher elevations. 

 

PROPOSED FIRE 
SERVICE CHARGES 
Fire Service Charges apply to commercial 
connections with fire sprinklers. The charges are 
based on the actual cost of maintaining fire service 
lines. 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY 
USAGE RATES FOR OTHER 
WATER SERVICES  
These charges are for additional services 
that are offered to customers.  

 

  

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY FIRE CONNECTION CHARGE 
Service Size Current Proposed 

1” $14.24 $15.09 
2” $18.78 $19.91 
4” $52.40 $55.54 
6” $73.60 $78.02 
8” $97.83       $103.70 

10” $128.11 $135.80 
 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY USAGE RATES 
Quantity Charge Per 1,000 Gallons 

Water Type Current Proposed 
Raw $2.93 $3.11 
Recycled $6.24 $6.61 
Temporary $6.99 $7.41 

 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY TIERED USAGE 
RATES FOR RESIDENTIAL POTABLE WATER 

Quantity Charge 
Per 1,000 Gallons 

CURRENT RATES PROPOSED RATES 
Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 

Residential Elevation Zone A $5.50 $6.23 $7.67 $5.83 $6.60 $8.13 
Residential Elevation Zone B $6.26 $6.99 $8.43 $6.64 $7.41 $8.94 
Residential Elevation Zone C $7.60  $8.33 $9.77 $8.06 $8.83 $10.36  

 
PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY TIERED USAGE 

RATES FOR COMMERCIAL POTABLE WATER 

Quantity Charge 
Per 1,000 Gallons 

CURRENT RATES PROPOSED RATES 
Winter Summer Winter Summer 

Commercial Elevation Zone A $5.50 $7.67 $5.83 $8.13 
Commercial Elevation Zone B $6.26 $8.43 $6.64 $8.94 
Commercial Elevation Zone C $7.60 $9.77 $8.06      $10.36 

 

Mid-Peninsula WD

City of San Francisco

San Jose Water Co

Marin Municipal WD

City of Sonoma

East Bay MUD

Alameda CWD

City of Vallejo

North Marin(proposed increase)

City of Santa Rosa

Contra Costa WD

Valley of the Moon

City of Petaluma

City of Napa

City of Rohnert Park

City of Cotati

Town of  Windsor

 $-  $20.00  $40.00  $60.00  $80.00  $100.00  $120.00

Monthly Water Bill Survey for Single Family Homes with Median Usage (7,600 gallons per month)

Fixed

Commodity

Monthly charge of $62.50
($750 Annually)
Includes Proposed 6% Rate 
Increase

NOVATO WATER RATE COMPARISON



Details of the Proposed Rate Increases  
 
Proposed 6% rate increase.  
Novato Water - North Marin Water District is proposing a 6% rate increase to cover the increasing 
costs of providing quality potable water service to our Novato Water service area customers.  
Recycled Water - A 6% rate increase is proposed for the Recycled Water System. Additionally, for all 
meters 1” and larger, an additional charge of $24.11 will be added to the fixed service charge. This 
additional charge will increase the service charge to conform with the proposed rates as shown in the 
2020 Novato and Recycle Water Rate Study. 

 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY FIXED SERVICE CHARGES 
The Bi-Monthly Fixed Service Charge includes an account charge and a meter charge. The meter charge is 
based on an industry standard that apportions costs based on meter size and flow capacity. Most single-
family residential customers have a 5/8” meter. Residential accounts that have a 1” meter due to fire 
requirements, but would otherwise have a 5/8” meter, are charged at the 5/8” meter rate. 

 
 

To learn how the proposed rates will affect your specific water bill, check out the District’s water cost 
calculator, available at  nmwd.com/account/annual-cost-calculator. 

The maximum rates that may be imposed are shown in this document. Prior to implementing the 
rates, the Board of Directors may choose to implement the full amount or less, but not more.

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY FIXED 
SERVICE CHARGE FOR POTABLE WATER 

Meter Size 
(in inches) 

Current 
Fixed Charge 

Proposed 
Fixed Charge 

5/8” $41.46 $43.95 
1” $74.06 $78.50 

1.5” $128.38 $136.08 
2” $193.57 $205.18 
3” $367.41 $389.45 
4” $562.98 $596.76 
6” $1,106.23 $1,172.60 
8” $1,432.18 $1,518.11 

 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY FIXED 
SERVICE CHARGE FOR RECYCLED WATER 

Meter Size 
(in inches) 

Current 
Fixed Charge 

Proposed 
Fixed Charge 

5/8”   $48.78 $51.71 
1”   $61.68 $90.93 

1.5” $123.35 $156.31 
2” $197.36 $234.76 
3” $394.72 $443.96 
4” $640.86                $679.31 
6”          $1,233.50 $1,333.07 

 

The typical residential customer (approximately 56% of all customers) will pay about 
$3.75 more per month if the changes are approved ($7.50 on the bi-monthly bill). 

 

 

     
 

PROPOSED TIERED QUANTITY (USAGE) CHARGES 
The Tiered Quantity (Usage) 
Charges has three tiers that 
reflect the costs of the 
different sources of water.  
Tier 1 (1-262 gallons per day -
GPD) is based on the cost of 
imported water. Tier 2 (263-720 
GPD) is based on the cost of 
locally treated water from Stafford 
Lake. Tier 3 (>720 GPD) is based on 
the cost of locally treated water 
plus the cost of the District’s 
conservation program, which is 
paid by those customers that use 
the most water. Usage charges 
include an elevation zone charge 
to recover the costs of pumping 
water to higher elevations. 

 

PROPOSED FIRE 
SERVICE CHARGES 
Fire Service Charges apply to commercial 
connections with fire sprinklers. The charges are 
based on the actual cost of maintaining fire service 
lines. 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY 
USAGE RATES FOR OTHER 
WATER SERVICES  
These charges are for additional services 
that are offered to customers.  

 

  

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY FIRE CONNECTION CHARGE 
Service Size Current Proposed 

1” $14.24 $15.09 
2” $18.78 $19.91 
4” $52.40 $55.54 
6” $73.60 $78.02 
8” $97.83       $103.70 

10” $128.11 $135.80 
 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY USAGE RATES 
Quantity Charge Per 1,000 Gallons 

Water Type Current Proposed 
Raw $2.93 $3.11 
Recycled $6.24 $6.61 
Temporary $6.99 $7.41 

 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY TIERED USAGE 
RATES FOR RESIDENTIAL POTABLE WATER 

Quantity Charge 
Per 1,000 Gallons 

CURRENT RATES PROPOSED RATES 
Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 

Residential Elevation Zone A $5.50 $6.23 $7.67 $5.83 $6.60 $8.13 
Residential Elevation Zone B $6.26 $6.99 $8.43 $6.64 $7.41 $8.94 
Residential Elevation Zone C $7.60  $8.33 $9.77 $8.06 $8.83 $10.36  

 
PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY TIERED USAGE 

RATES FOR COMMERCIAL POTABLE WATER 

Quantity Charge 
Per 1,000 Gallons 

CURRENT RATES PROPOSED RATES 
Winter Summer Winter Summer 

Commercial Elevation Zone A $5.50 $7.67 $5.83 $8.13 
Commercial Elevation Zone B $6.26 $8.43 $6.64 $8.94 
Commercial Elevation Zone C $7.60 $9.77 $8.06      $10.36 

 

Mid-Peninsula WD

City of San Francisco

San Jose Water Co

Marin Municipal WD

City of Sonoma

East Bay MUD

Alameda CWD

City of Vallejo

North Marin(proposed increase)

City of Santa Rosa

Contra Costa WD

Valley of the Moon

City of Petaluma

City of Napa

City of Rohnert Park

City of Cotati

Town of  Windsor

 $-  $20.00  $40.00  $60.00  $80.00  $100.00  $120.00

Monthly Water Bill Survey for Single Family Homes with Median Usage (7,600 gallons per month)

Fixed

Commodity

Monthly charge of $62.50
($750 Annually)
Includes Proposed 6% Rate 
Increase

NOVATO WATER RATE COMPARISON



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
REGARDING PROPOSED RATE INCREASES 
For the Novato Service Area 

 
 
 
 

This Notice provides information about proposed 
increases to North Marin Water District’s water 
rates and charges for the Novato Service Area. 
The Board of Directors will hold a public hearing 
at which public comments will be considered and 
written protests will be counted before the Board 
votes on the proposed increases. 

HEARING DATE: Tuesday, June 15, 2021 
TIME: 6:00 p.m. 

LOCATION*: North Marin Water District 
999 Rush Creek Place 
Novato, CA 94945

 
The District proposes increasing revenue for fiscal year 2021-2022. If approved at the public hearing on June 15, 2021, the new 
rates will go into effect on July 1, 2021. 

*Should COVID-19 restrictions remain in effect, for in-person meeting attendance in Marin County, at the time of the 
scheduled public hearing additional information regarding accommodating public participation shall be provided on the 
District website at www.nmwd.com. 

 

REASONS FOR THE PROPOSED RATE INCREASE 
The key reasons that a 6% rate increase is needed are described below. 

Increased investment in water facilities. The District must continue to invest in facility upgrades and replacements 
with an approximate cost of $4 million per year. This will help address the need to properly maintain the District’s $138 
million system of pipelines, pumps, reservoirs, treatment plants, valves, hydrants, laboratory, monitoring systems, and 
more.  

Advanced Meter Information (AMI) System. The District invested $5.8 million dollars to implement an AMI system. 
This system provides real time meter reads, reduces customer water loss, provides increased accuracy in bi-monthly billing 
and water use data, and allows customers to view and monitor their individual water use.  

Rising costs to purchase imported water. The District typically imports 75% of its water from Sonoma 
County Water Agency. The cost of purchasing imported water accounts for 30% of the budget and the water 
supplier has forecast that the costs will continue to increase by 6% every year. 

Impact of inflation on all costs. The proposed revenue increase is designed to meet all the costs of 
providing water service. This includes purchasing, treating, and delivering safe, high-quality, reliable water to 
your home or business, without fail, every day and around the clock.  

 

MILLIONS OF DOLLARS SAVED 
Cost control is a daily focus of North Marin Water District, which is one reason our rates are the lowest in Marin 
County and at the median for water agencies around the Bay Area region. Here are some of the ways we have kept 
rates down. 

• We decreased electrical costs by installing clean solar energy systems. 
• We obtained over $10 million in grants for recycled water expansion. 
• We saved $18 million by sharing the cost of a large aqueduct project with other public agencies. 
• We reduced future retirement benefit costs for new employees and reduced the number of full-time 

employees from 58 a decade ago to 54 today. 
• The recycled water (RW) system was implemented without additional staffing. RW reduces potable water use. 
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Where to Learn More, Get Answers, and Make Comments 
CONTACT US: 
Phone: 415-897-4133 
Email: info@nmwd.com 

VISIT OUR WEBSITE: 
www.nmwd.com 

VISIT OUR OFFICE: 
North Marin Water District 
999 Rush Creek Place 
Novato, CA 94945 

ATTEND THE BOARD HEARING 
The Board will review and consider adopting the rate increases on  
June 15, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. at North Marin Water District, 999 Rush Creek 
Place, Novato, CA 94945. Should COVID-19 restrictions remain in effect in 
Marin County at the time of the scheduled public hearing, additional 
information regarding accommodating public participation will be provided on 
the District’s website at www.nmwd.com. 

At the Public Hearing: The Board of Directors will accept and consider all 
written protests and will hear and consider all verbal comments to the proposed 
rate increases at the Public Hearing. Verbal comments must be accompanied 
by a written protest to qualify as a valid protest. At the conclusion of the 
Hearing, the Board of Directors will consider adoption of the proposed rate 
increases as outlined in this notice. If written protests of the proposed 
changes are presented by a majority of the property owners or tenants subject 
to the proposed changes, the proposed rate increases will not be adopted. 

 
How to Protest 
the Proposed Rate Increases 
Any owner of a parcel upon which the water 
service charges are proposed to be changed, 
or any tenant that directly pays the water bill 
for such parcel, may submit a written protest 
of the proposed rate changes. Only one 
protest will be counted per parcel. Written 
protests must: (1) state that the property 
owner or tenant is opposing the proposed 
increases; (2) provide the location of the 
parcel (by street address, assessor’s parcel 
number, or customer account number); and 
(3) include the name and signature of the 
property owner or tenant submitting the 
protest. Written protests may be submitted 
by mail or in person to the District Secre- 
tary at North Marin Water District, 999 Rush 
Creek Place, Novato, CA 94945, or in person 
at the Public Hearing. All written protests 
must be received prior to the close of the 
public input portion of the Public Hearing. 
Protests submitted via email or other elec- 
tronic means will not be accepted. Please 
mark the protest: Attn: Novato Rate Hearing. 

 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
REGARDING PROPOSED REVENUE 
INCREASES AND RATE STRUCTURE CHANGES 
For the West Marin Water System Service Area 

 

This Notice provides information about proposed 
increases to North Marin Water District’s West 
Marin Water System Service Area water rates and 
charges and proposed rate structure modifications. 
The Board of Directors will hold a public hearing at 
which public comments will be considered and 
written protest will be counted before the Board 
votes on the proposed changes. 

HEARING DATE:  Tuesday, June 22, 2021 
TIME:  6:00 p.m. 

          LOCATION*:  North Marin Water District 
                                  999 Rush Creek Place 
                                  Novato, CA 94945 

 
The District proposes increasing revenue and revising the water rate structure for fiscal year 2021-2022. If approved at the 
public hearing on June 22, 2021, the new rates and rate structure changes will go into effect on July 1, 2021. 

*Should COVID-19 restrictions remain in effect in Marin County at the time of the scheduled public hearing, additional 
information regarding accommodating public participation shall be provided on the District website at www.nmwd.com. 

 

REASONS FOR THE PROPOSED REVENUE INCREASE 
The key reasons rate revenue increases are needed are described below. 

Continued investment in water facilities. The District must continue to make investments in facility upgrades and 
replacements that will benefit the West Marin Water System’s fire protection, water supply, and aging infrastructure. This 
will help to properly maintain the service area’s treatment plant, 26 miles of pipeline, 7 pump stations, 13 tanks, 3 wells, 
168 hydrants, monitoring systems, and more.  

Impact of inflation on all costs. The proposed revenue increase is designed to meet all the costs of providing 
water service, all of which rise every year with inflation. These costs include treating and delivering safe, high-
quality, reliable water to your home or business without fail, every day and around the clock. 

 

REASONS FOR THE PROPOSED RATE STRUCTURE CHANGES 
The cost for serving each class of customers varies over time because of changes in customer water use, state 
regulations, service costs, and other factors. The District engaged Hildebrand Consulting, an experienced rate 
consultant, to review its water rate structure for the West Marin Water System Service Area. The proposed changes to 
the water rate structure are based on the recommendations of the consultant and will ensure that each class of 
customer continues to pay their fair and proportional share of costs. 

 

DOLLARS SAVED 
Cost control is a daily focus of the North Marin Water District, which is one reason our West Marin water rates are 
the second lowest when compared to other West Marin Coastal Area Retail Water Agencies. Here are some of the ways we 
have kept rates down. 

• We participate in a local agency chemical purchase pool to get the best pricing available based on economies of scale. 

• We obtained 57% grant/outside contribution funding for the $0.7 million Lagunitas Creek Streambank Stabilization project. 

• We obtained 98% grant funding for the $1.3 million Gallagher Well Field Transmission Pipeline project. 

• We reduced the number of full-time employees from 58 a decade ago to 54 today. 
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Where to Learn More, Get Answers, and Make Comments  
CONTACT US: 
Phone: 415-897-4133 
Email: info@nmwd.com 

VISIT OUR WEBSITE: 
www.nmwd.com 

VISIT OUR OFFICE: 
North Marin Water District 
999 Rush Creek Place 
Novato, CA 94945 

ATTEND THE BOARD HEARING 
The Board will review and consider adopting the rate increases and rate struc- 
ture modifications on June 22, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. at the North Marin Water 
District, 999 Rush Creek Place, Novato, CA 94945. Should COVID-19 restrictions 
remain in effect in Marin County at the time of the scheduled public hearing, 
additional information regarding accommodating public participation will be 
provided on the District’s website at www.nmwd.com.  

At the Public Hearing: The Board of Directors will accept and consider all 
written protests and will hear and consider all verbal comments to the proposed 
rate increases and rate structure modifications at the Public Hearing. Verbal 
comments must be accompanied by a written protest to qualify as valid a 
protest. At the conclusion of the Hearing, the Board of Directors will consider 
adoption of the proposed revenue increases and changes to the rate structure 
described in this notice. If written protests of the proposed changes are 
presented by a majority of the property owners or tenants subject to the 
proposed changes, the proposed rate increases and rate structure 
modifications will not be adopted. 

 
How to Protest 
the Proposed Changes 
Any owner of a parcel upon which the water 
service charges are proposed to be changed, 
or any tenant that directly pays the water bill 
for such parcel, may submit a written protest 
of the proposed rate changes. Only one 
protest will be counted per parcel. Written 
protests must: (1) state that the property 
owner or tenant is opposing the proposed 
increases; (2) provide the location of the 
parcel (by street address, assessor’s parcel 
number, or customer account number); and 
(3) include the name and signature of the 
property owner or tenant submitting the 
protest. Written protests may be submitted 
by mail or in person to the District Secre- 
tary at North Marin Water District, 999 Rush 
Creek Place, Novato, CA 94945, or in person 
at the Public Hearing. All written protests 
must be received prior to the close of the 
public input portion of the Public Hearing. 
Protests submitted via email or other elec- 
tronic means will not be accepted. Please 
mark the protest: Attn:  West Marin Rate 
Hearing. 

 



  Details of the Proposed Revenue Increases and Rate Structure Changes      
Proposed 6% revenue increase. North Marin Water District is proposing a global 6% rate revenue increase in its 
West Marin Water System in order to cover the increasing costs of providing potable water that is reliable, high quality, 
environmentally responsible and reasonably priced. 

Proposed rate structure modifications will result in individual customer bil ls that may increase 
more or less than the 6% global rate revenue increase. The District conducted an extensive cost of service 
study examining every aspect of service, including water supply, treatment, delivery, facility replacement/ upgrades, 
and many other factors. The study identified changes in the proportion of costs required to serve each customer class 
(residential and commercial). The rate structure modifications are part of a necessary process to update rates to reflect 
current customer water use, state regulations, the cost to provide service, rate structure approach, and recent case 
law. The proposed rate structure will ensure that each customer class continues to pay a fair and proportional share of 
the utility’s costs. 

 
PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY FIXED SERVICE CHARGES 
The bi-monthly fixed Service Charge is made up of an account charge and a meter charge. The meter charge is based 
on an industry standard that apportions costs based on meter size and flow capacity. Most single-family residential 
customers have a 5/8” meter. Residential accounts that have a 1” meter due to fire requirements, but would 
otherwise have a 5/8” meter, are charged at the 5/8” meter rate. 

 

To learn how the proposed rates will affect your specific water bill, check out the District’s water cost calculator, 
available at nmwd.com/account/annual-cost-calculator. 

The proposed changes in rates are based on detailed engineering, financial, and legal evaluations  carried out with 
the help of recognized experts in water rates. The rates conform to California law requiring that each class of customers 
(residential and commercial) pay their proportionate share of the cost to serve them. 

The maximum rates that may be imposed are shown in this document. Prior to implementing the rates, the 
Board of Directors may choose to implement the full amount or less, but not more. 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY FIXED 
SERVICE CHARGE FOR POTABLE 
WATER 

Meter Size 
(in inches) 

Current 
Fixed Charge 

Proposed 
Fixed Charge 

5/8” $35.68 $42.59 
PRE* 5/8”&1”** $54.08 $42.59 

              1”** $71.36 $104.80 
1.5” $87.05 $208.47 
2” $135.74 $332.88 
3” $268.77 $664.64 
4” $431.59 $1,037.87 

*PRE is the area of Paradise Ranch Estates 
**Residential accounts that have a 1” meter due to fire requirements, but 
would otherwise have 5/8” meter, are charged at the 5/8” meter rate. 

PROPOSED TIERED QUANTITY (USAGE) CHARGES 
The proposed update to Quantity 
(usage) Charges reflect the cost of 
the different sources of water in 
the tiered and seasonal rates. Tier 
1* (1-250 gallons per day (GPD)) is 
based on the cost of drawing water 
from existing wells and half of the 
capital costs associated with 
developing a new well. Tier 2* (251-
600 GPD) includes all of Tier 1 costs, 
as well as the remaining capital costs 
associated with the new well.  
Tier 3* (>600 GPD) includes all of the 
Tier 2 costs, as well as the costs of 
the District’s conservation program. 
Usage charges may include an 
elevation (hydraulic) zone charge to 
recover the costs of pumping water 
to higher elevations. 

  
*Current Tier Allocations: Tier 1 (0-400 GPD), Tier 2 (401-900 GPD) and Tier 3 (>900 GPD). 

** Zone 3 (Olema) is at a lower elevation than Zone 2 (Inverness Park, Bear Valley, and Lower Paradise Ranch Estates)          
** Zone 4 (Upper Paradise Ranch Estates).

 
PROPOSED FIRE 
SERVICE CHARGES 
Fire Service Charges apply to commercial connec-
tions with fire sprinklers. The charges are based on 
the actual cost of maintaining fire service lines. 

 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY 
USAGE RATES FOR OTHER 
WATER SERVICES 
These charges are for additional services that are 
offered to customers.

 

  

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY FIRE CONNECTION CHARGE 
Service Size Current Proposed 

1” $17.85 $15.09 
2” $17.85 $19.91 
4” $32.99 $55.54 
6” $64.35 $78.02 
8” $98.44       $103.70 

10” $128.71       $135.80 
 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY USAGE RATES 
Quantity Charge Per 1,000 Gallons 

Water Type Current Proposed 
Temporary $19.97 $15.10 

Outside Improvement 
District 

$3.85 $4.08 

 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY TIERED USAGE RATES 
FOR RESIDENTIAL POTABLE WATER 

Quantity Charge Per 
1,000 Gallons 

CURRENT RATES PROPOSED RATES 
Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 

Residential Elevation Zone 1 $9.66 $13.38 $21.45 $8.88 $12.91 $18.33 
Residential Elevation Zone 3** $10.61 $14.33 $22.40 $9.98 $14.01 $19.43 
Residential Elevation Zone 2** $9.91 $13.63 $21.70  $11.07 $15.10 $20.52 
Residential Elevation Zone 4** $16.12 $19.84 $27.91  $15.04 $19.07 $24.49 

 
PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY TIERED USAGE 

RATES FOR COMMERCIAL POTABLE WATER 

Quantity Charge Per 
1,000 Gallons 

CURRENT RATES PROPOSED RATES 
Winter Summer Winter Summer 

 Commercial Elevation Zone 1 $9.77 $13.51 $8.88 $18.33 

Commercial Elevation Zone 3** $10.72 $14.46 $9.98 $19.43 

Commercial Elevation Zone 2** $10.02 $13.76 $11.07 $20.52 

 Commercial Elevation Zone 4** $16.23 $19.97 $15.04 $24.49 
 



  Details of the Proposed Revenue Increases and Rate Structure Changes      
Proposed 6% revenue increase. North Marin Water District is proposing a global 6% rate revenue increase in its 
West Marin Water System in order to cover the increasing costs of providing potable water that is reliable, high quality, 
environmentally responsible and reasonably priced. 

Proposed rate structure modifications will result in individual customer bil ls that may increase 
more or less than the 6% global rate revenue increase. The District conducted an extensive cost of service 
study examining every aspect of service, including water supply, treatment, delivery, facility replacement/ upgrades, 
and many other factors. The study identified changes in the proportion of costs required to serve each customer class 
(residential and commercial). The rate structure modifications are part of a necessary process to update rates to reflect 
current customer water use, state regulations, the cost to provide service, rate structure approach, and recent case 
law. The proposed rate structure will ensure that each customer class continues to pay a fair and proportional share of 
the utility’s costs. 

 
PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY FIXED SERVICE CHARGES 
The bi-monthly fixed Service Charge is made up of an account charge and a meter charge. The meter charge is based 
on an industry standard that apportions costs based on meter size and flow capacity. Most single-family residential 
customers have a 5/8” meter. Residential accounts that have a 1” meter due to fire requirements, but would 
otherwise have a 5/8” meter, are charged at the 5/8” meter rate. 

 

To learn how the proposed rates will affect your specific water bill, check out the District’s water cost calculator, 
available at nmwd.com/account/annual-cost-calculator. 

The proposed changes in rates are based on detailed engineering, financial, and legal evaluations  carried out with 
the help of recognized experts in water rates. The rates conform to California law requiring that each class of customers 
(residential and commercial) pay their proportionate share of the cost to serve them. 

The maximum rates that may be imposed are shown in this document. Prior to implementing the rates, the 
Board of Directors may choose to implement the full amount or less, but not more. 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY FIXED 
SERVICE CHARGE FOR POTABLE 
WATER 

Meter Size 
(in inches) 

Current 
Fixed Charge 

Proposed 
Fixed Charge 

5/8” $35.68 $42.59 
PRE* 5/8”&1”** $54.08 $42.59 

              1”** $71.36 $104.80 
1.5” $87.05 $208.47 
2” $135.74 $332.88 
3” $268.77 $664.64 
4” $431.59 $1,037.87 

*PRE is the area of Paradise Ranch Estates 
**Residential accounts that have a 1” meter due to fire requirements, but 
would otherwise have 5/8” meter, are charged at the 5/8” meter rate. 

PROPOSED TIERED QUANTITY (USAGE) CHARGES 
The proposed update to Quantity 
(usage) Charges reflect the cost of 
the different sources of water in 
the tiered and seasonal rates. Tier 
1* (1-250 gallons per day (GPD)) is 
based on the cost of drawing water 
from existing wells and half of the 
capital costs associated with 
developing a new well. Tier 2* (251-
600 GPD) includes all of Tier 1 costs, 
as well as the remaining capital costs 
associated with the new well.  
Tier 3* (>600 GPD) includes all of the 
Tier 2 costs, as well as the costs of 
the District’s conservation program. 
Usage charges may include an 
elevation (hydraulic) zone charge to 
recover the costs of pumping water 
to higher elevations. 

  
*Current Tier Allocations: Tier 1 (0-400 GPD), Tier 2 (401-900 GPD) and Tier 3 (>900 GPD). 

** Zone 3 (Olema) is at a lower elevation than Zone 2 (Inverness Park, Bear Valley, and Lower Paradise Ranch Estates)          
** Zone 4 (Upper Paradise Ranch Estates).

 
PROPOSED FIRE 
SERVICE CHARGES 
Fire Service Charges apply to commercial connec-
tions with fire sprinklers. The charges are based on 
the actual cost of maintaining fire service lines. 

 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY 
USAGE RATES FOR OTHER 
WATER SERVICES 
These charges are for additional services that are 
offered to customers.

 

  

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY FIRE CONNECTION CHARGE 
Service Size Current Proposed 

1” $17.85 $15.09 
2” $17.85 $19.91 
4” $32.99 $55.54 
6” $64.35 $78.02 
8” $98.44       $103.70 

10” $128.71       $135.80 
 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY USAGE RATES 
Quantity Charge Per 1,000 Gallons 

Water Type Current Proposed 
Temporary $19.97 $15.10 

Outside Improvement 
District 

$3.85 $4.08 

 

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY TIERED USAGE RATES 
FOR RESIDENTIAL POTABLE WATER 

Quantity Charge Per 
1,000 Gallons 

CURRENT RATES PROPOSED RATES 
Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 

Residential Elevation Zone 1 $9.66 $13.38 $21.45 $8.88 $12.91 $18.33 
Residential Elevation Zone 3** $10.61 $14.33 $22.40 $9.98 $14.01 $19.43 
Residential Elevation Zone 2** $9.91 $13.63 $21.70  $11.07 $15.10 $20.52 
Residential Elevation Zone 4** $16.12 $19.84 $27.91  $15.04 $19.07 $24.49 

 
PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY TIERED USAGE 

RATES FOR COMMERCIAL POTABLE WATER 

Quantity Charge Per 
1,000 Gallons 

CURRENT RATES PROPOSED RATES 
Winter Summer Winter Summer 

 Commercial Elevation Zone 1 $9.77 $13.51 $8.88 $18.33 

Commercial Elevation Zone 3** $10.72 $14.46 $9.98 $19.43 

Commercial Elevation Zone 2** $10.02 $13.76 $11.07 $20.52 

 Commercial Elevation Zone 4** $16.23 $19.97 $15.04 $24.49 
 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
REGARDING PROPOSED REVENUE 
INCREASES AND RATE STRUCTURE CHANGES 
For the West Marin Water System Service Area 

 

This Notice provides information about proposed 
increases to North Marin Water District’s West 
Marin Water System Service Area water rates and 
charges and proposed rate structure modifications. 
The Board of Directors will hold a public hearing at 
which public comments will be considered and 
written protest will be counted before the Board 
votes on the proposed changes. 

HEARING DATE:  Tuesday, June 22, 2021 
TIME:  6:00 p.m. 

          LOCATION*:  North Marin Water District 
                                  999 Rush Creek Place 
                                  Novato, CA 94945 

 
The District proposes increasing revenue and revising the water rate structure for fiscal year 2021-2022. If approved at the 
public hearing on June 22, 2021, the new rates and rate structure changes will go into effect on July 1, 2021. 

*Should COVID-19 restrictions remain in effect in Marin County at the time of the scheduled public hearing, additional 
information regarding accommodating public participation shall be provided on the District website at www.nmwd.com. 

 

REASONS FOR THE PROPOSED REVENUE INCREASE 
The key reasons rate revenue increases are needed are described below. 

Continued investment in water facilities. The District must continue to make investments in facility upgrades and 
replacements that will benefit the West Marin Water System’s fire protection, water supply, and aging infrastructure. This 
will help to properly maintain the service area’s treatment plant, 26 miles of pipeline, 7 pump stations, 13 tanks, 3 wells, 
168 hydrants, monitoring systems, and more.  

Impact of inflation on all costs. The proposed revenue increase is designed to meet all the costs of providing 
water service, all of which rise every year with inflation. These costs include treating and delivering safe, high-
quality, reliable water to your home or business without fail, every day and around the clock. 

 

REASONS FOR THE PROPOSED RATE STRUCTURE CHANGES 
The cost for serving each class of customers varies over time because of changes in customer water use, state 
regulations, service costs, and other factors. The District engaged Hildebrand Consulting, an experienced rate 
consultant, to review its water rate structure for the West Marin Water System Service Area. The proposed changes to 
the water rate structure are based on the recommendations of the consultant and will ensure that each class of 
customer continues to pay their fair and proportional share of costs. 

 

DOLLARS SAVED 
Cost control is a daily focus of the North Marin Water District, which is one reason our West Marin water rates are 
the second lowest when compared to other West Marin Coastal Area Retail Water Agencies. Here are some of the ways we 
have kept rates down. 

• We participate in a local agency chemical purchase pool to get the best pricing available based on economies of scale. 

• We obtained 57% grant/outside contribution funding for the $0.7 million Lagunitas Creek Streambank Stabilization project. 

• We obtained 98% grant funding for the $1.3 million Gallagher Well Field Transmission Pipeline project. 

• We reduced the number of full-time employees from 58 a decade ago to 54 today. 
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Where to Learn More, Get Answers, and Make Comments  
CONTACT US: 
Phone: 415-897-4133 
Email: info@nmwd.com 

VISIT OUR WEBSITE: 
www.nmwd.com 

VISIT OUR OFFICE: 
North Marin Water District 
999 Rush Creek Place 
Novato, CA 94945 

ATTEND THE BOARD HEARING 
The Board will review and consider adopting the rate increases and rate struc- 
ture modifications on June 22, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. at the North Marin Water 
District, 999 Rush Creek Place, Novato, CA 94945. Should COVID-19 restrictions 
remain in effect in Marin County at the time of the scheduled public hearing, 
additional information regarding accommodating public participation will be 
provided on the District’s website at www.nmwd.com.  

At the Public Hearing: The Board of Directors will accept and consider all 
written protests and will hear and consider all verbal comments to the proposed 
rate increases and rate structure modifications at the Public Hearing. Verbal 
comments must be accompanied by a written protest to qualify as valid a 
protest. At the conclusion of the Hearing, the Board of Directors will consider 
adoption of the proposed revenue increases and changes to the rate structure 
described in this notice. If written protests of the proposed changes are 
presented by a majority of the property owners or tenants subject to the 
proposed changes, the proposed rate increases and rate structure 
modifications will not be adopted. 

 
How to Protest 
the Proposed Changes 
Any owner of a parcel upon which the water 
service charges are proposed to be changed, 
or any tenant that directly pays the water bill 
for such parcel, may submit a written protest 
of the proposed rate changes. Only one 
protest will be counted per parcel. Written 
protests must: (1) state that the property 
owner or tenant is opposing the proposed 
increases; (2) provide the location of the 
parcel (by street address, assessor’s parcel 
number, or customer account number); and 
(3) include the name and signature of the 
property owner or tenant submitting the 
protest. Written protests may be submitted 
by mail or in person to the District Secre- 
tary at North Marin Water District, 999 Rush 
Creek Place, Novato, CA 94945, or in person 
at the Public Hearing. All written protests 
must be received prior to the close of the 
public input portion of the Public Hearing. 
Protests submitted via email or other elec- 
tronic means will not be accepted. Please 
mark the protest: Attn:  West Marin Rate 
Hearing. 

 



999 Rush Creek Place 
P.O. Box 146             PHONE         EMAIL        WEB 
Novato, CA 94948-0146   415-897-4133   info@nmwd.com        www.nmwd.com 

DIRECTORS: JACK BAKER ∙ RICK FRAITES ∙ JAMES GROSSI ∙MICHAEL JOLY ∙ STEPHEN PETTERLE 
OFFICERS: DREW McINTYRE, General Manager ∙ TERRIE KEHOE, District Secretary ∙ JULIE BLUE, Auditor-Controller ∙ TONY WILLIAMS, Asst. GM/Chief Engineer 

April 30, 2021 

RE: Notice of Proposed Oceana Marin Sewer Service Cost Increase 

Dear Customer: 

This letter is to advise you of a proposed increase to the Oceana Marin sewer service charge that 
would take effect on July 1, 2021. It also provides information about a Public Hearing scheduled on 
June 22, 2021, at which time written protests and oral comments will be considered and a vote on the 
proposed increase will be taken by the North Marin Water District Board of Directors. 

How much is the proposed rate increase? 
Current Oceana Marin sewer service charges are $98/month ($1,176/year). A 5% increase is 
proposed equaling $103/month ($1,236/year). 

How will the proposed increase affect my sewer bill? 
Oceana Marin sewer service charges are collected on the Marin County property tax bill, which is 
rendered annually for the fiscal year period July 1 through June 30. The proposed sewer service 
charge increase would add $5 per month to the cost of sewer service for all customers in Oceana 
Marin, resulting in a total annual charge for fiscal year 2021/22 of $1,236 ($103 per month for July 
2021 through June 2022). 

Why are rates being increased? 
In January 2016 the District concluded a Master Plan Update that identified over $3 million in projects 
necessary to improve the reliability and redundancy of the Oceana Marin Wastewater System. 
Constructing these improvements will be financially challenging for the 235 customers of the Oceana 
Marin utility. Even if the projects are constructed over a 20-year period, the cost would still average 
$150,000 annually. The proposed increase, if enacted, would generate approximately $14,100 of 
additional revenue annually ($60/year X 235 customers). The entire Master Plan Update is available 
for review at: https://nmwd.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/011916-1.pdf.  

Additional rate increases will be necessary in future years as the District continues to improve the 
reliability of the existing facilities and to construct redundant facilities in order to protect against 
potential system failure and sewage spills. Prior years’ rate increases were in-line with financing the 
CIP plan on a pay-go basis while the current 5-year financial plan includes an annual rate increase of 
5% for FY 21/22 and 5% thereafter, and forecasts borrowing funds to complete the plan. 

mailto:info@nmwd.com
https://nmwd.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/011916-1.pdf


Notice of Proposed Sewer Rate Increase 
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Public Hearing 
A public hearing before the NMWD Board of Directors to consider the proposed sewer service 
charge increase is scheduled for 6:00 pm, Tuesday, June 22, 2021, at the North Marin Water 
District, 999 Rush Creek Place in Novato. Should COVID-19 restrictions remain in effect, for 
in-person meeting attendance in Marin County, at the time of the scheduled hearing additional 
information regarding participation regarding accommodating public participation shall be 
provided on the District website at www.nmwd.com. 

 
The Board of Directors will accept and consider all written protests and will hear and consider all 
verbal comments to the proposed sewer service charge increase at the Public Hearing. Verbal 
comments must be accompanied by a written protest to qualify as a valid protest. At the conclusion 
of the Hearing, the Board of Directors will consider adoption of the proposed sewer service charge 
increase as outlined in this notice. If written protests to the proposed sewer service charge increase 
as outlined in this notice. If written protests to the proposed sewer service charge increase are 
presented by a majority of the property owners, the proposed increase will not be adopted.  
 
Your written protest must be received prior to the close of the June 22, 2021 public hearing. Written 
protests must: 1) state that the property owner is opposing the proposed increase 2) include the name 
and signature of the property owner; and 3) must include a description of the parcel (parcel number 
or service address). Only one written protest will be counted for each property. Send or deliver written 
protests to: 
 

District Secretary 
North Marin Water District 

PO Box 146 
Novato, CA 94948 

 
For more information about the North Marin Water District, including a history of the Oceana Marin 
Sewer System, or to view the most recent Coastal Area Sewer Cost Comparison or the District's 
audited financial statement, visit NMWD’s website at www.nmwd.com or call the District Secretary at 
(415) 897-4133. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
  

 
Drew McIntyre 

 General Manager 
 
 
t:\ac\budget\fy-2021.22\rate increase & prop 218\om increase ltr to customers 2021.docx 

http://www.nmwd.com/
http://www.nmwd.com/


SLOWING THE FLOW?

MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Reduced water releases from reservoirs under review

ptt urtn $nùepenùnrf Snuunrtl

By Will Houston

whouston@marinii.com

ln response to paltry rainfall and worsening drought, the Marin Municipal Water District is studying

whether it could curtail reservoir water releases meant to support fish in Lagunitas Creel<.

The district is required to release water from its largest reservoir at l(ent Lake to bolster the fish

population, including the largest population of endangered coho salmon remaining between Monterey

and Mendocino counties.

The construction of district dams and reservoirs since the 19th century has cut off half of the historic

habitat and spawning grounds for the endangered salmon, threatened steelhead trout and other

species, significantly reducing their populations. Once believed to run in the tens of thousands, coho

salmon have dwindled to dangerously low levels in Lagunitas Creel< and are listed as a federally

endangered species.

But after two dry winters, including just 20 inches of rain this season - the second-lowest amount in

143 years of records - the water district has been considering several ways to stretch the life of its

reservoirs. This month, the district board voted 4-0, with director Monty Schmitt absent, to begin

studying whether it would be possible to temporarily reduce water releases into Lagunitas Creek

without causing significant harm to the struggling salmon and threatened steelhead populations.

Schmitt, who is a watershed scientist and water project director with the Nature Conservancy, said

Friday that Marin is facing dry conditions of "historic proportions."

"The district is lool<ing at every possible way to save water while meeting our obligations to be good

stewards of our natural resoLlrces," he said. "The fisheries study will help us better understand the

benefits of flow releases that provide habitat for fish, and in doing so, may also help identify ways to

release water more effectively and save some water in the process."

The district hired the Environmental Services Associates firm to conduct the study by approving a nearly

$306,000 extension to the firm's contract into July 2022.

The district hired the Environmental Services Associates firm to conduct the study by approving a nearly

$306,000 extension to the firm's contract into July 2022.
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'The district is looking at every possible way to save water while meeting our obligations to be good

stewards of our natural resources'

- Monty Schmitt, MMWD boord

The Marin Municipal Water District is required to release water from Kent Lake to support fish in

Lagunitas Creek.

PHOTOS BY SHERRY LAVARS _ MARIN INDEPENDENTJOURNAL

Salmon swim near the Leo T. Cronin Fish Viewing Area in Lagunitas

The state's water regulatory board first ordered the water district to develop a plan in 1995 to address

impacts of water diversions on coho, steelhead and other wildlife such as California freshwater shrimp.

As part of the state's order, the district is required to maintain adequate flows for the fish throughout

the year.

The district releases pulses of water from Kent Lake, its largest reservoir, into the creek between

November and January to support the migration of federally endangered coho salmon and threatened
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steelhead trout during their spawning seasons. Water releases continue into March to aid with

spawning and hatching of the young fish, which in the case of coho must reside in the creeks and

tributaries for about 18 months before swimming out to the ocean. Recent water releases range from

about 4,700 acre-feet in 2015 to 9,000 acre-feet in 20L9, according to the district.

However, the district is able to request a temporary change in these water releases in urgent situations

such as a prolonged drought reducing supplies. The district's seven reservoirs are about half full with

nearly 42,000 acre-feet stored - about 32,000 acre-feet less than average for this time of year. The

district board of directors plans to vote

on mandatory water use restrictions on Tuesday, including a one-day-per-week irrigation limit, in an

attempt to preserve its supply.

Local conservation groups and members of the Lagunitas Creek Technical Advisory Committee

expressed appreciation that the district is conducting a full study of the potential impacts before making

a decision. Committee member Todd Steiner of the Olema based Salmon Protection and Watershed

Network organization urged the district to consider all other options before reducing flows for fish.

"People have to be able to drink water, but they don't have to water their lawns and don't have to fill

their swimming pools," Steiner said. "We understand the need for balance but we want to ensure all

conservation measures are in place at first and that they're strong, effective and enforced."

Committee member Ann Thomas, board secretary for Friends of Corte Madera Creek, said there should

always be sufficient water in the creek to support the at-risk salmon population.

"l trust them to do the right thing in this situation but I know there is a lot of pressure for that water,"

Thomas said. "l think they'll be very careful and I do think it's a good board for something like this.

Nobody knows if it's going to rain next year. And that's the problem."

Lagunitas Creek is habitat for endangered salmon and threatened steelhead trout.

SHERRY LAVARS _ MARIN INDEPENDENTJOURNAL
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ADUs øre ltot properties, øncl now often legal, too

AT HOME

$l|urin $nùrprnùrnf $nurnul

Last week, I wrote about a young family who, like many others reacting to the
pandenic's fallout, fled their condo and life in the big city for a larger home in Marin.

T'hey are among the fortunate.

Their jobs let them work remotely, and they had the resources

While a city exodus is indeed one of many pandernic- driven housing trends, at the

other end of the spectrum are millions whose living arrangements were upended due

to job loss, closed college dorrns, fear of nursing homes or a need to live near loved
ones. Those motives fueled another trend: the rise of the accessory dwelling unit.

Aiso known as granny flats, casitas, guest houses, pooi homes or caretaker quarters,

ADUs are, by definition, second, smaller homes on the same property as a main
house. They can be separate from the house or attached, but they will have a kitchen,
bathroom and an outside entrance. "lt has to be a fully functioning little house where
someone can prepare basic food and shower," says architect Mary Maydan, of Palo

Alto, who has designed frve finished ADUs and has four on the drawing board at her

firm Maydan Architects. Many will also have separate utility lines, and a dedicated
parl<ing place.

Though such living quarters have been around for almost as long as homes

themselves, what has changed is that ADUs are hot properties today, and that cities
and counties like Marin are relaxing rules so lrrore are allowed, say real estate experts.

"This change is happening across the country," says Corina Rollins, a real estate

appraiser who teaches real estate principles and economics at the College of Marin.
"In New Yorl<, where I grew up, it was cotrìmon but not legal to turn a basement into
a secondary living unit and rent it out. What we're seeing today isn't much different
from those bootleg rentals, only now they're more often legal."

Largely in response to the pandemic, cities have begun to relax rules that used to bar

ADUs, especially in expensive housing markets that have limited inventory.
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"What we're seeing is a recognition that ADIJs are important components of
housing," Rollins says.

Before last year, only about 10% of her residential clients wanted to include an ADU
in their home plans; today that number is more than 50Yo, says Maydan, who built an
ADU on her properfy in2004 for her parents to live in.

"Ayear ago, almost no one knew what an ADU was," Maydan says. "Now everyone
does. They are popping up everywhere, helping with the home shortage and providing
that instant extra space families have needed. California had a lot of rules back then
that rnade it difficult. But not anymore.

The pandemic has definitely changed the way we are building homes."

Besides offering more independent living space for aging parents or boomerang l<ids,

ADUs can also be revenue-producing rentals or make great home offices and gyms.

For some, they offer a sort of decompression space, a place to go to get out of the
house, which we've all needed this past year.

Whatever the purpose, an ADIJ's beauty lies in the fact that it is separate but near

"The legalization of ADIJs will continue because they help us offer more efficient
housing without the stigma of your neighbor saying he's going to turn you in," Rollins
says.

If you're interested in creating one where you live, here's what to know, so your ADU
doesn't stand for another dumb undertaking: . Check first. Although ADIJs are

gainìng favor among cities, be sure to ask your zoning departrnent about restrictions in
your area. "Don't go by what your friend tells you he did," Ilollins says. "You need to
check with your city."

, I(now your options.

Those loolcing to add an ADIJ can either convert existing space like a gaïage, attic or
basement, or build a new structure. Traditional construction (called stick built) is one
option, but putting up a prefabricated ADU is also popular. Prefab ADIJs come in
sections assembled off-site, so go up faster and cost less. However, because they
aren't custom, they don't always go with the main house's architecture. A third option
just coming to the market is the 3D-printed ADU, which I can't even fathom.
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. Tie it to the house: Maydan encourages homeowners to make sure the ADU doesn't
look like an afterthought even if it is. Connect it visually to the main house through
architectural design or even by just adding stepping stones between the houses. For
one homeowner, Maydan retrofitted a prefab ADU to better integrate it architecturally
with the main house.

. Make it multipu{pose.

The beauty of a well-conceived ADU is that you can build it and find, as your life
flows along, the ADU serves different needs, Rollins says. "What serves as your home
office today may become a house for your child as he or she transitions from college
to career, and later for your aging parents, and after that it might become an income-
producing rental."

. Move in yourself

ADUs can help aging homeowners who don't want to move or sell their homes. If
they move into the ADIJ on their property, they can rent out the main house to a

family who needs the space. This lets the owners age in place and get a little income.

. Know your market

While some studies have shown that homes with ADIJs have been selling far faster
during the pandemic than homes without and that these dwellings have added a nice
bump to the selling price, whether you will recoup your investment depends on many
variables, Rollins says. The initial cost and quality, visual appeal, ability to be an

income property and the demand in your area all factor in.

The pandemic has pushed the demand for accessory dwelling units, or ADUs, like this
one in Palo Alto designed by Maydan Architects.
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Marni Jameson

Marni Jameson is the author of six home and lifestyle books, includíng "Downsizing
the Family Home What to Save, What to Let Go" and "Downsizing the Blended Home

- When Two Households Become One," and coming in June "What to Do With
Everything You Own to Leave the Legacy You Want." Yolt may reach her
at marnijameson.com.
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MANDATORY RULES

Limits on water use approved for Marin
Agencies OK restrictions amid drought conditions

Ðtl urtr¡ $nùrpntùrnf $uuunrl

By Will Houston
whouston@marinii.com

Marin's two major water suppliers have approved mandatory use restrictions,
becoming the first large utilities in the Bay Area to do so in response to historically low
rainfall.

The governing boards of the Marin Municipal Water District and the North Marin
Water District both adopted the drought restrictions on Tuesday evening.

The rules came a day before Gov. Gavin Newsom directed state agencies to begin
bolstering drought responses. He also declared a drought emergency for the Russian
River watershed in Sonoma and Mendocino counties.

The Russian River supplies 75o/o of the North Marin Water District's supply and 25%
of the Marin Municipal Water District's supply.

"California is facing the familiar reality of drought conditions, and we know the
importance of acting early to anticipate and mitigate the most severe impacts where
possible," Newsom said at a news conference in Mendocino County on Wednesday.
The Marin Municipal Water District rules ban a variety of activities, including washing
vehicles at home, washing sidewalks and driveways, power washing, watering public
medians and refilling decorative fountains. The district board also considered limiting
all outdoor irrigation to one day per week, but asked staff to bring back the proposal in
two weeks based on public feedback.

This is the first time since 1988 that the district implemented mandated water
restrictions. The rules take effect immediately, but enforcement won't begin until May
L

Violators will be given a warning at first, a $25 fine for a second violation and then a

$250 fine for any subsequent rulebreaking. District staff say they will focus on
education before having to consider other enforcement methods such as patrols.

Residents can report water waste or violations by calling 415-945-1523 or submitting
a com p la i nt on I i ne at mari nwater.orq/forms/ water-waste-repo rt.

The district will consider requests for alternative conservation rules for ratepayers and
businesses who might experience hardships, health and safety issues or other
emergencies from the mandate.
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Customers raised concerns that the one-day watering limit will lead people to drench
their lawns. Landscaping-related business owners were concerned about the financial
impacts to their businesses.

Other ratepayers called on the district to ban new water connections and to reduce
water releases for threatened and endangered fish in Lagunitas Creek. "A s a
practical matter, the drought cannot be taken seriously until the steps are taken
seriously," Larkspur resident James Holmes told the board. "Your customers should
not be stuck with dead plants and dirty toilets when developers get a free ride and fish
swim freely."

The district intends to collectively reduce summer water use by 40o/o, or by about
7,300 acre-feet, from May to October. This target caused confusion among
ratepayers who thought they would have to reduce their individual water use by 40%
even if they were already using small amounts of water.

The intent is to keep average water use per customer below 60 gallons per day to
achieve that 40% reduction, according to Ben Horenstein, the district's general
manager.

The district, which seryes 191,000 residents in central and southern Marin, approved
the rules in response to the second-lowest rainfall amount in 143 years of records this
season. The district has received about 20 inches of rain, less than the notorious
1976-77 drought and only slightly more than the record low of 1B inches in 1924.
The district hopes to have 30,000 acre-feet of water supply by December in its seven
reservoirs in the Mount Tamalpais watershed. Any less than that would trigger a

mandatory 50% reduction in use. The 30,000 acre-feet figure equates to about a third
of the district's storage capacity.

The water supply as of Tuesday was about 41,400 acre-feet, well below the average
72,800 acre-feet for this time of year.

Horenstein said staff are already exploring backup plans should the drought continue
into next winter. The options include temporary desalination and water transfers from
the East Bay Municipal Utility District or other utilities.

"Both of these are certainly complex projects," Horenstein said. ln addition, the board
delayed a decision on whether to ban pool refilling after several residents raised
concerns about health hazards and costly mechanical failures that could result. Board
member Larry Bragman suggested the district explore mandating pool coverings.
The district also delayed a rule requiring golf courses to limit irrigation to greens and
tees at the request of board member Jack Gibson. He said there might be alternative
ways for golf courses to achieve the same conservation levels without limiting
watering to just one day, a point also raised by ratepayers about their own
landscaping.
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The board delayed the golf watering restriction to take effect on May 20

Novato rules

The North Marin Water District board approved a hybrid plan calling on Novato
customers to voluntarily conserve by 20o/o from May 1 through June 30 and then
mandating 20% conservation from July 1 to Oct. 31. The target percentages are
based on collective water use of all 60,000 Novato customers.

Outdoor watering with sprinklers will be limited to three days per week beginning July
1 so long as customers reduce their overall water use by 20o/o compared to the same
billing period in 2020. Homes with odd numbered addresses can water on Monday.
Wednesday and Friday, and homes with even-numbered addresses can water on
Tuesday, Thursday and Saturday.

Customers who continue to use less than 300 gallons per day can water three times
per week but don't have to meet lhe 20% conservation target. Customers can still
water their landscapes without restrictions if they use a handheld hose with a shutoff
nozzle, a container such as a watering can and a drip irrigation system.

Other banned activities include:
. refilling pools
. washing vehicles at home except for quick rinses using a bucket or hose with a
shutoff nozzle
. using water for dust control
. watering golf courses, except for tees and greens. Course owners can alternatively
reduce overall water use by 25o/o compared to 2020.
. no new or enlarged water connections after July 1, unless approved before then.

Violators will be given a verbal notice and then a written notice for a subsequent
offenses. lf the issue is still not addressed, the district can charge an initial fine of
$250 and then impose a $500 fine and cut off service. The district has never fined
anyone for violating similar mandates in the past, according to staff.

"lf there is someone found in violation we really try to work with those customers to
get the situation resolved," said district water conservation coordinator Ryan Grisso.

The rules also include a drought surcharge of $1 for every 1,000 gallons used.
The district mandated water restrictions in 2007,2009, 2014 and 2015. They ranged
from 1 5% to 30%.

The district recorded B inches of rain this season, its lowest dating back to 1916. The
district's main reservoir at Stafford Lake is at 52o/o, but only because the district has
been running Russian River water into it for several weeks. Without that, the reservoir
would be below 30% capacity.

3



No members of the public commented on the regulations at the meeting

A bridge is revealed by low water levels at Nicasio Reservoir on March 19. The Marin
Municipal Water District and the North Marin Water District both adopted drought
restrictions on Tuesday.
ALAN DI]P - MARIN INDI]PENDENT JOURNAL
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Governor Newsom Takes Action to Respond to Drought
Gonditions
f oesnews.com/governor-newsom-takes-action-to-respond-to-drought-conditions/

Alyson Hanner April21,2021

Regional state of emergency proclaimedfor Russian Riuer Watershed to protect
communíties and r educe enuir onmental imp acts

UKIAH - With much of the West experiencing drought conditions and California squareþ in
a second consecutive dry year, Governor Gavin Newson today directed state agencies to take

immediate action to bolster drought resilience and prepare for impacts on communities,

businesses and ecosystems if dry conditions extend to a third year.

In addition, the Governor proclaimed a regional drought emergency for the Russian River

watershed in Sonoma and Mendocino counties, where reservoirs are at record lows following
two critically dry years and accelerated action may be needed to protect public health, safety

and the environment.

"California is facing the familiar reality of drought conditions, and we know the importance

of acting early to anticipate and mitigate the most severe impacts where possible," Governor

Newsom said. "Climate change is intensifytng both the frequency and the severity of dry
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periods. This 'new normal'gives urgency to building drought resilience in regions across the
state and preparing for what maybe a prolonged drought at our doorstep."

The text of today's emergency proclamation can be found here.
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Gouernor Neusom ennounces regional drought emergency and executiue actions to bolster
water resilíence.

With an extremely low Lake Mendocino as a backdrop, the Governor today announced that
he is directing state agencies to work with regional and local governments - including
groundwater sustainability agencies - to identiff watersheds, communities, public water



systems and ecosystems that may require coordinated state and local actions to address
drought impacts and prcltect people, natural resources and economic activity.

To encourage Californians to reduce water use and conserve supplies in case drought
conditions continue next year, the proclamation also directs state agencies to partner with
local water suppliers to promote conservation tips and messages through the Save Our Water
campaign. The campaign and website were critical resources for Californians during the
zotz-zotí drought and remain a trusted information source on using water wisely.

The proclamation directs additional actions to coordinate with California Native American
tribes; accelerate funding for water supply enhancement, conservation and species
protection projects; work with counties to encourage and track reporting of household water
shortages including dry residentiai wells; provide technical and financial assistance for water
systems at risk of water shortages; support the agricultural economy and food security; and
evaluate and talce action to protect terrestrial and aquatic species.

To address acute drought impacts in the Russian River watershed, the proclamation directs
the State Water Board to consider modifying requirements for reservoir releases or diversion
limitations to ensure adequate supplies for critical purposes. The regional state of emelgency
also enables flexibilities in regulatory requirements and procurement processes to mitigate
drought impacts.

Under the Governor's direction, state agencies have been working together since November
to prepare for continued dry conditions. The Governor recently formalized that coordination
through the Drought Resilience Task Force, which includes the Natural Resources Agency,
California Environmental Protection Agency, Department of Food and Agriculture,
Department of Water Resources, Department of Fish and Wildlife, State Water Resources
Control Board, Department of Finance, Governor's Office of Emergency Serúces, California
Health and Human Services Agency, California Public Utilities Commission and the Labor
and Workforce Development Agency.

Other recent actions by state agencies to address dry conditions include

" The state has launched a new drought preparedness websitedetailing current
conditions, the s[ate's response and informalional resources for the pubtic.

" The State Water Board has identified water suppliers at extreme financial risk that may
need additionai support due to the combined impacts of COVID and drought.

" The Department of Water Resources (DWR) has updated its Dry Wetl website that
tracks reports of water supply outages.

" DWR has drafted a Drought Contingency Plan that explains hclw it will manage the
State Water Project in a manner that protects fish and wildlife.



" The State Water Board has issued letters to approxirnately 4o,ooo water right holders
across the state, advising them to plan for potential shortages by closely managing
water use.

. Last month, DWR released a report, prepar:ed with extensive stakeholder involvement,
that evaluates the water shortage risk of more than 4,ooo small water providers.

. Informed by that report, this month the State Water Board completed its first-ever
comprehensive look at California water systems that are struggling to provide safe

drinking water to communities and how to heip them. The assessment identifies both
failing water systems and those at risi< of failing, offering the most in-depth view of
long-term drinking water safety the state has ever had.

. CDFA is coordinating closely with the USDA to provide aid to growers and ranchers in
the l(lamath Basin, and the Department of Fish and Wildlife is working with California
Native American tribes and commercial and recreational salmon representatives to
manage impacts to iconic salmon in the basin.

The zorz-zor6 drought helped usher in some irnportant water resilienoe policies that
position the state to better handle another drought. These include:

. Enactment in zor4 of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act to require and
empower local agencies to bring overdrafted groundwater basins into sustainable
conditions by zo4z.

. Enactment of legislation to establish new standards for indoor, outdoor and industrial
use of water.

" Funding for disadvantaged communities lacking access to safe drinking water through
the Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Act.

. Increase in the frequency of water use reporting.

. Expanded state authority to order failing public water systems to consolidate with
better-run systems.

. Tighter landscape efficiency standards for new developments.

###



SMART's leader to step down from post

RETIRES IN AUGUST

GM Mansourian praised for launching the system

$lt urin $nbepntùnrt $uunritl

By Adrian Rodriguez

a¡.CI dr i.gt¿ez(ù,wzar inii. c oÍ'þ't

The general manager of Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit is stepping down after a 10-

year run leading the startup service.

Farhad Mansourian announced at SMART's board meeting on Wednesday that he

plans to retire in August. Prior to launching the rail line, he worked at the Marin
County Department of Public Works and led it for nine years.

"Before SMART, I served 32 and a half years in Marin County," Mansourian,6T, said
in an interview Thursday. "That's 42 years of public service that I'm very proud of.
It's time for me to spend more time with my family, as ahusband and grandfather."

Mansourian was hired as SMART's top manager in August 2011. His starting salary
was $246,000 a yeffi, and his ending salary is $319,595.

"It's been an absolute pleasure working with Farhad," said Novato City Councilman
Eric Lucan, who has been a SMART board member since 2011.

"Getting this train rolling would have been an accomplishment of a lifetime for
anybody, and by my math he did it in about six years. That's just an incredible
accomplishment."

Kate Colin, a SMART board member and mayor of San Rafael, called Mansourian
"determined and fearless" when it came to creating the rail line. She said he had to
solve the puzzle of working with several towns and jurisdictions to lay tracks and get

trains running.

!



Mansourian

"He continued the work that voters started when they passed Measur€ Q," Colin said.
o'It's not easy to take a concept of something that doesn't exist and build it out of
nothing, and he did that."

Sonoma Counfy Supervisor David Rabbitt, chair of the SMART board, said he will
ask a few directors to come up with options for a succession plan to be presented at art
upcoming meeting.

oolt's not an overstatement that SMART would not have been built without Farhad
Mansourian, and he remains the glue that holds the organization together," Rabbitt
said during the board meeting.

Mansourian steered the agency as it built a $650 million, 45-mile rail system wrth 12

stations in Santa Rosa, Rohnert Park, Cotati, Petaluma, Novato, San Rafael and
Larkspur.

Since SMART opened in August 2017, it has been a magnet for critics who say it's
too expensive and will do little to solve the region's traffic problems. But the rail line
is also a symbol of better days for supporters who say it could help clear freeways of
commuters who drive alone.

The arguments have been underscored several times as the agency struggled to keep
ridership numbers up. It recorded just over 700,000 trips in the first two years of
service, a number that dropped dramatically through the pandemic.

Additionally, the agency has hit walls when it comes to completing the promised
multiuse path along the rail line.

The most recent setback came last March with the failure of Measure I, which sought
to extend the district's quarter-cent sales tax by 30 years.

ool've got to confess that we didn't always see eye to eye," said Jack Swearengen, a

Santa Rosa resident and chairman of the Friends of SMART community advisory

2



organization. ooBut he's done incredible things in his past 10 years or so. You've got to
look back and say, wow. I tip my hat to him."

Not everyone is a fan.

ooThe departure will provide an opportunity for the board to address some deficiencies
and why it lost as bad as it did in March 2020 in the case of Measure I," said Novato
resident Mike Arnold, the campaign treasurer for the Not So SMART opposition to
the Measure I initiative and a longtime critic of the agency.

'oThere has been a lack of transparency and oversight of staff," he said. "Hopefully in
the future the board will step up - they've certainly expressed interest in being more
transparent - and hopefully the next general manager willtoo."

Mansourian, who has lived in Novato for the past 40 years with his wife, has two
children, four grandchildren and a fìfth grandchild on the way. Reflecting on his
career, he said, "We did a terrific job of taking cars off of the Highway 101 corridor."

"There are things I could have done better here or there, but that is part of learning,"
he said.

Mansourian said he is proud of the fact that SMART trains never stopped running
through the pandemic and that they provided transportation for essential workers.

He said there is a bigger picture for SMART, with aplanto expand to Cloverdale and

the East Bay, as well as completing the bike and pedestrian path.

But he noted that these large infrastructure projects take time. He cited Bay Area
Rapid Transit, which is working on its expansion to San Jose after 45 years, as an

example.

'ol've brought SMART 60, maybe 70o/o of the way," he said. oolt's up to the next
person to finish it off."
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ACWAWEIGHS IN ON STATE WATER
AFFOR DAB I LITY LEG ISLATION
BY DAVE EGGERTON MAR ,I9,2021 VOICES ON WATER

ACWA ônd its member agencies care greatly about water affordability and

recognize the centrality of this issue during these uniquely challenging times.

ACWA is advocating in Washington, D.C. (already with some success) and in

Sacramento for federal and state funding to help public water systems and

treatment works cover customer arreôrages accrued during the pandemic. This

funding is needed quickly - through immediate action - as opposed to

through the legislative process for long-term policy bills.

Two state policy bills introduced this year and related to water affordability are

well-intended but contain fundamental flaws that would make the measures counterproductive.

Sen. Bill Dodd (D-Napa) is the author of companion bills SB 222 and SB 223. Al ACWAs March 11 virtual

Legislative Symposium, Dodd indicated that he is willing to work with ACWA on the bills. Work to

resolve the issues is critical. The first bill, SB 222,would require the State Water Resources Control

Board to create an overly broad and costly water and wastewater affordability program with many

components, implemented in part by roughly 2,900 public water systems. ACWA has an oppose-

unless-amended position and is suggesting, with detailed amendments, that the bill propose one major

program - a water and wastewater low-income water rate assistônce program. The state should build

on ôn existing low-income financial assistance program, such as CalFresh and the California Food

Assistance Program, ôs opposed to reinventing the wheel. This approach would help low-income

households across the state and have much lower administrative costs.

Meanwhile, the second bill, SB 223, would require public water systems to forgive the entire balance of

a customer's unpaid water debt if the customer enters into an ôrrearage mônagement plan. A proposal

for a mandate for full or partial water debt forgiveness by public water agencies would be illegal under

the state Constitution. Under Proposition 218, public water agencies cannot legally use revenue from

some of its customers to subsidize the cost of service for other customers.

ln addition to being illegal, the proposal would harm the financial stability of public water agencies and,

in doing so, would jeopardize their ability to provide safe drinking water to all customers, comply with

other regulatory requirements and replace aging infrastructure.



SB 223 would also re-write the restrictìons on discontinuatiot-r of residential water service l"hat were put

into place bythe enactment of SB 998 in 2018, also authored by Dodd. ACWA agrees with Dodd that

the conditions on discontìnuation of service are inrportant. Also inrportant is the communication

between systenrs and their customers regarding plans for payment. ACWA member agencies have a

long his[ory of working with their customers who struggle to pay their bills by creating payment plans.

SB 998, and its new conditions on discontinuation of service, went into full effect in early February of

2O2O - two months before Governor Newsom issued the executive order that suspended the authority

for disconlinuation of service during the pandemic. The reality is that SB 998 has only been in full

effect for two months. The Legislature should give that law time to work. ACWA is agreeing to address

issues that were not addressed in SB 998 (e.9., expand its scope to snraller systems and work to add

reasonable provisions regarding emergency situations, such as a pandenric).

ACWA is making the case to the author, Legislature ancl sponsors as to whythe introduced versions of

the bìll are problematic. Between now and when the bìlls are heard in committee in April, ACWA will

also work with the author and sponsors on amendmenl"s to improve affordability in an effective,

efficient, legal and sustainable way.

O 2O2l Association of California Water Aqencies
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Historic sale for Black Mountain
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The Buddha barn on Point Reyes-Petaluma Road has been spiffed up by the new owner of Black Mountain Ranch, who is finding ways to
support local agriculturìsts on his farmed and grazed lands.

lly Braclen Caltlvright
o4l t4lzozr

Black Mountain lìanch, the t,zoo-acre property at the nolthern entr¿rnce to Point Reyes Station, is changing hancls.
Marcel Houtzager, a l)utch money rn¿rrì¿ìger from Ross and a supporter of agriculturc in West Marin, is purchasing the
land fi:orn Dave Osborn for' $B.B million. They ale anticipating finalizing the sale in the coming weeks, anil ah'eady Mr.
Houtzager is rnaking significant im.plovements. It's only the thir-cl sale since Mexico granted the land as a r:anch in t849

tÈ tt



Ml. Iloutzager- is not a rancheL, so he plans to lean on expefts at the Malin Aglicultulal Land Trust, which pulchasecì.

the proper:ty's development rights in 1993. Mr. Hou[zagel is a donol to MALI', and he views the land trust as a co-
owner. I{e is br:inging in new tenants and expanding the operations of existing producers-all in the name of
sustainable, organic and local agriculture, fulfilling Mr. Osborn's dream that he did not have the money to carry out.
P1enty of wolk to improve fencing, fire safety, water and septic systems lies ahead.

lìibershed, a nonprofit leader in the "farrn-to-closet" movement, is the latest tenant. The company, which has producer
rnembels all ovel Northern California who grow botanic dyes and farm wool, was pleviously housed in a building in San

Gelonimo. At l3lack Mountain Ranch, the heaclquarters ale based in the ranch house while indigo, flax and other plants
used in pigments are grown outside. Executive Director Rebecca Burgess joins a group of young and energetic tenants
on the ranch: Molly Myelson of Little Wing Farm, Arron Wilder of Table Top Farrn and Loren Poncia of Stemple Creek
Ranch.

Ms. Myerson has doublecl the acreage she is farming ancl built a new concrete quail coop. Mr. Poncia will add sheep and
pigs to a herd of rzo cattle, and plans to inprove his rotational glazing plactices by adding miles of fencing and several
troughs. The ranch's property manager is wor:king on updating the water system, which inclucles at least rr splings and
eight tanks throughout the proper:ty.

One of Mr. Houtzager''s priorities is to clean up the gravel pullout where Little Wing Farm sells ploduce on the honor
system. The farmstancL has been the target of two attemptecl thefts: Once, someone tlied to pry open the cash box
unsuccessfully, and lecently, a mall attached a tow strap to the box and tried to dislodge it with his car, until someone
drove by and stopped hirn.

Next d.oor, the Buddha barn, named for the 4S buddhas painted on its façade, has been refurbished, and old cars and
litter behind the building were cleaned out. Woodwolkel ldo Yoshimoto is putting out some benches, and Ms. Myerson
is planting sorne trees. The next step is to bring in a tenant who would nake the most of the existing olganic
agriculture. Mr. Houtzager's first choice is Wild West Ferments. "It would be wondelfully synergistic," he said.

But hurdles exist: The building is zoned for agriculture, and food processing would require a new use permit. The septic
system is also outdated. Similarly, the prospect of farmworker housing at the site is challenged by current permits,
which allow for just two trailers.

The roadside construction has sparkecl rumors, so last week, Mr. Houtzager spoke to the Point Reyes Station Village
Association to fill them in on the transaction. He said he is only interested in agriculture, and either way, the property is
protected by MALT, zoning and a Williamson Act contract. Mr. Houtzager spoke with excitement on the Zoom call
about organic aglicultule befole a bachcL'op of a large, wood-finished library. Members of the village association
appeared to be excited.

"I just have lo say how captivated I am about your explanation, and just your whole aura and your approach to the use
of that land is so extraordinary," Malk Switzer saicL. "It's just heartwarming to see that possible tlansition of that land in
the spirit that we all appreciate in West Marin."

Mr. Iloutzager gave credit to Mr. Osborn, who certified the ranch as organic in zo15 and started to bring in sustainable
tenants yeaÌs ago.

Mr. Houtzager was introduced to the property in zorg by Jamison Watts, the former director of MALT who knew Mr.
Osborn was struggling with upkeep. \'Vhile Mr. Houtzager was scoping the possibility of a purchase, he leased a portion
of the land and helped Ml. Osborn refinance a loan in exchange for the right to buy the entire pr-opelty latel on. The sale
was expected to go through on Apr:il r, but they missed one piece of paperwollc that will delay the exchange by a couple
weeks. The money is in escrow, the clocuments are signed, and the leases have been transferred.

When it purchased the <leveloprnent rights, MALT at the time did not mandate that agriculture operations continue, as

it now does with new purchases. Mr. Houtzager will explore strengthening the easement by compieting an agricultural
rnanagement plan, inclucling a carbon plan and a rotational grazing plan developed by Mr. Poncia, the Marin Resource
Conservation District anrL MALT.
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North Marin's Gallagher well permit appealed
By Anna Guth
o4/ztlzozt

Customers sewiced by North Marin Water District may be facing another dry season with salty water. The coastal

permit the district obtained last month to build a new well that would reduce its leliance on wells suffering from
chronic saltwater intrusion has been appealed over a host of environmental concerns, causing delays.

Inverness resident Gordon Bennett filed the appeal on behalf of his organization, Save Our Seashore. Mr. Bennett is

concerned that the district has not adequately shown the effect of the proposed well on Lagunitas Creek streamflows
and salmonid species. He also questioned the need for a new well as opposed to better district water conservation.

"We request that the permits and authorizations for this second Gallagher well not be issued until a more
comprehensive fCalifornia Environmental Quality Act] analysis is completed," Mr. Bennett wrote in a March letter to a
group oflocal and state regulatory agencies.

North Marin Water District has defended its environmental review of the project in response to several letters
submitted by Save Our Seashore. As a result of the appeal clf the coastal permit approved by the deputy zoning
administrator in March, the plans will now be reconsidered by the Marin County Planning Commission next month.
The district had hoped to bring the new well online this summer.

A handful of customers wrote to the county expressing their support for the well, saying the salinity intrusion issue has

become intolerable. For years, North Marin's primary water source for its West Marin customers has been two wells
adjacent to Lagunitas Creek located at the former Coast Guard property in Point Reyes Station; over the past decade,

drought has contributed to increased saltwater intrusion from Tomales Bay. Last year, the water was saltier than ever

before, leading some customers to turn to bottled water.

The proposecl well would be located far from the bay, on the Gallagher ranch, whele an existing well has serviced the
distlict since zor5. Last July, the existing Gallagher well was meeting 38 per-cent of West Marin's demand. With a

second well, the district intends for the ranch to cover dry season demand, relieving the need for the Coast Guard wells
when the water is saltiest.

The proposed well and distribution pipelines would be built 1oo feet from Lagunitas Creek. While the existing Gallagher
well was expected to pull 3oo gallons of water per minute, it routinely underper{orms, at around half that capacity; the
district hopes the second well will make up the difference,

North Marin conducted an initial environmental review for both wells back in zoo9, completing an initial study and
mitigated negative cleclaration uncler CBQA. Earliel this year, the district produced an addenclum to that study to meet
new evaluation requirements and to bring the report up to date. Dur-ing that comment period, Mr. Bennett submitted a

ìetter, as did the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board.



The well is being considerecl while coastal Marin suffers from two consecutive, record-breaking low rainfall years.

Marin Municipal Water District, which releases water from l(ent Lake into Lagunitas Creek under water boarrl

standards, commissionect a $go5,99z study this month to expl<lre how to reduce releases to conserye water without
impacting aquatic species. Both districts are asking customers to reduce usage.

The water board and Mr. Bennett shared several concerns about North Marin's well proposal. In a Feb. B letter, the
water board asked North Marin to measure the effect on the streamflow of withdrawing water from both wells at once

and not during times when water is being I'eleased into Lagunitas Cleek fÏom l(ent Lake by Marin Municipal.

In response, the district argued that it had tested both wells when flows were low. "Impacts associated with the

implementation of Gallagher Well lnumber one and two], or their cumulative pumping would be de minimis," the
district wrote to the board.

It added, "Because the pump test was conductecl cluring a dry year and under seasonal low flows, the small observed

reductions i¡ gauge height and streamflow can be viewed as a worst*case condition. It is likely that in tirnes of highel
creek flows and elevated groundwater levels (i.e., most periods of most years), continued pumping at the site would not
register a discernible response in the creek."

But even small changes to streamflow can negatively irnpact salmonid species, Mr. Bennett argued. "Salmonids move

up ancì. clown the stream in response to environmental conclitions, yet neither the fprevious environmental review] nor
the addendum have any data on salmonid use of Lagunitas below the Gallagher weII site. This points out the need fbr a

stream channel survey and salmonid survey below the wells," he wrote.

In response, the district said while testing the well, the observecl reduction in streamflow was very minor-between o.z
a¡d o.3 cubic feet per second and causing the surface to drop one-quarter inch, only under drought conditions. The

district referred Mr. Bennett to a new mitigation measure.

To further mitigate any impacts from a new well, North Marin revised the addendum to commit to ongoing monitoring
in collaboration with the water board in order to confirm that effects on the streamflow are "less than significant."

Drew Mclntyre, the general manager, said the district, as the lead agency in the CEQA review, does not need any

aclclitional approval from the water board to move ahead with the project. The North Marin board approved the

addendum on March z. On March 5, Mr. Bennett penned a new letter, proposing that the district simply reduce

customer water use and continue relying on the existing wells.

Under two new state laws, water use in California must drop to 55 gallons per person per day by zoz3, Mr. Bennett

underscored. By contrast, North Marin customers ale aver-aging 74 gallons per day per person, a dlop from rr7 gallons a

day in the early 2ooos.

The district's neecl. for the well was described in the county staff report on the coastal permit. "Recent salinity intrusion
has impacted water quality from the existing Coast Guard wells, threatening public health for municipal water users.

This change in conditions has necessitated the construction of this project, Gallagher Well No. 2, as an urgent matter to
protect the quality of water sewed," it stated.

The date for the planning commission's consideration of the project is May 24. This month, North Marin made a

contingency plan, committing to setting up temporary fill stations at the Coast Guard site supplied with drinking water
from the existing Gallagher well for customers with salt-restricted diets'

I(en Levin, president of the Point Reyes Station Village Association, was among those who urged the county to approve

the permit. ooWest Marin needs a reliable source of salinity ancl chloride-free water. Thanks to NMWD fbr planning the

necessary infrastructure changes in order to bring this about," he wrote in a March letter. "Low stream flow water
release agreements are already in place and promise protection to fish and wildlife in the event of low water levels in the

creek."
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Farmers face drought crisis
By Anna Guth
o4lzt/zozt

Farmers and ranchers are scrambling to adapt to what may prove to be the driest yeal in coastal Marin in the last

century. Some have halted crop production or turned to dry farming, while others are considering costly mitigations

such as trucking water to their parched properties to keep livestock alive.

Local, state and federal agencies are ramping up disaster assistance, and groups like the Marin Agricultural Land Trust
have created new programs to fund long-term water conservation. Although coastal food producers rely on rnyriad

sources of water, everyone is feeling the effects of the second consecutive bone-dry winter. In Inverness' 15.2 inches

have fallen, less than hatf the average rainfall and the driest on record since 1925.

Guiclo Frosini of True Grass Farms in Tomales said he jumped into action in the past month, making an inventory of all
the water use on his ranch. "We went from this beautiful spring to realizing in a few weeks that no, it was not going to
I'ain," he said. "I find that in dtought, it's a moment in time whele we can have more community-driven conversations:

We are in this together. Whenever there are environmental disasters, we have the opportunity to look at the systems in
place and to think about how we can change them."

Fi¡ancial aid is coming. For dairies, which generally need more water both for cleaning and for their herds to drink,
Marin has made agreements with North Marin and Marin Municipal Water Districts and has set aside $5o,ooo for a
cost-share program fbr trucking water. Stefan Parnay, the acting agricultural commissioner, has also requested

$r5o,ooo be pulled from the county's general fund for bloader drought relief efforts.

Agriculture departments, cooperative extensions and resource conservation districts in Marin and Sonoma Counties

have banded together to start educating ranchers and farmels on funding sources and technical assistance. Loans and

grants for losses suffered will be available from programs administered by the United States Department of Agriculture,

which this month cleclarecl a drought clisaster for 5o California counties, inclucling Marin.

In an April letter to state legislators penned by District Four Supervisor Dennis Rocloni, Marin requested state

assistance for trucking water, purchasing organic feed while pastures are bare, ancl developing long-term storage and

rainwater capture. Mr. Rodoni ref'erenced a report by the California Department of Water Resources that criticized a

slow response to the drought intg76 andtg77.

"We respectfully urge that we begin to collaborate now for the worst-case scenario and prepare to provide support to
agricultural producers," he wrote. "Our food system is the life bìood of our society." Supervisor Rodoni said vegetable
production in Sonoma and Marin could be halved this year.

Scott Chang-Fleeman, who leases acreage in Bolinas for Shao Shan Falm, said he selected the propelty after hearing

from the previous operator that the 55-year-old pond there had always filled, even during dry years. Last year, he just



scraped by; this year, he has essentially no water, forcing hirn to downsize production from 4o crops to two. I-Ie will clry

farrn kabocha squash and tomatoes; his revenue will be a sixth of what he expected.

"There just welen't enough sustained rain events to saturate the soil to get surface runoff. Plus, there was the pattern of
rainfall: a quarter-inch here and there and then a couple of dry days. None of that cumulative rainfall ran into the
ponds," Mr. Chang-Fleeman said.

He is looking for a new ploperty to farm.

Jesse and Moira l(uhn, who have operatecl Madn Roots Farm since 2oo3 on a iot neal the Hicks Valley Fire Station,
plan to cease operations this year'. The irrigation ponds are dry. "This will be pretty devastating to our business this
summer. We mainly specialize in leafy greens, and they all need water," Ms. I(uhn said.

The drought years in the 197os are the closest comparison to current conditions. In Inverness, 19T6 andtgTT each

recorded around rB inches of rain. Last year, there were 23.08 inches, and this year so far t5.z inches. That compares to
a 3B-inch average.

Both North Marin and Marin Municipal Water Districts have agreed to allow ranchers to purchase untreated water
from their reservoirs, Although the Nicasio Reserwoir and Stafford Lake are at around half their capacity, the districts
consider the anticipated recluction for agriculture nominal. For Marin Municipal water, ranchers will pay an initial fee

of up to $r,4oo and then r.5o percent of what a residential customer pays for service; North Marin is charging the
ranchers double.

Bob Giacornini, whose family has 5oo cows on 7oo acres north of Point Reyes Statiou, said this will be the first year
since starting the operation in 1959 that trucking water will be necessary. The ranch relies on springs, ponds and a well
for the residence, "We will be hauling water by midsummer," he saicl. "Whatever it is going to cost, we will have to do
it. "

This month, MALT announced that it will provide $z5o,ooo for longer-terrn water resiliency projects for coastal Marin
färmers and ranchers regardless of whether their properties have land tlust conseruation easements. Possible projects
inclucle redeveloping existing springs that rnay have gone dormant, building rainwatel catchment systems, and
purchasing and installing water pipelines and solar pumps to help distribute water throughout a ranch to reduce the
impacts of cattle on dry land. Drilling wells, though costly, would be considered, according to Eric Rubenstahl, the
stewaldship program manager.

Marin has been hit by clrought harcler than other places in the state in sevelal ways, accorcling to Dr. Daniel Swain, a
climate scientist at the University of Calif'ornia, Los Angeles. Northern California has received less rainfall than
expected compared to the southern part of the state, and Marin does not tie into the larger state reservoirs that benefit
from snowmelt. 1'he effect on agriculture and the increased fire threat in coastal forests are among the most prominent
and immediate impacts, he saicl.

Rainfall in California historically has greatly varied year to year, but the effects on the landscape are predicted to
intensify, accorcling to Dr. Swain. The amount of rainfall that clrops each year is not expected to change, but the
patterns of when and how it falls will alter; already, rain is falling in bigger, sholter bursts. This brings an increased risk
of flooding and wildfile.

Mr. Frosini, whose cattle ranch relies on springs, seeps, a pond-which is empty-anci a well for his lesidence, said the
cost of tlucking in water is prohibitive for him. He is considering reducing his herd size; he has yet to apply for
assistance.

Albert Straus, the C.E.O. of Straus Family Creamely, said that neither his local supply dairies nor his home ranch need

to truck in water, at least for now. The reservoir on his Marshall ranch is around half of normal, meaning he will rely
more heavily on a well drillecl during the '7os cirought. Another factor on his mind are the organic certification
lequirements regarcling the amount c¡f time cows must spend on pastule, which is at least rzo days a year'.



It is at times like these when Mr. Straus says many best management practices reap benefits. Buiìding organic matter in

soil, includi¡g by adding compost, can increase the amount of water retained in soil by S.Z percent, according to the

California Department of Agriculture; healthy soil can hold up to zo times its weight in water.

The point Reyes National Seashore last month ashed ranchers who lease its federal lands to create a drought grazing

plan that will illustrate how they will meet residual dry matter stanclards.

Third-generation Point Reyes beef rancher l(evin Lunny says he is not concerned about meeting those requirements,

but producing enough silage for winter feed is looking unlikely for the second year in a row. That will lead to drastically

increased feed costs. "It is very disheartening. We have arouncl zoo acres plantecl and we were hoping to pasture some

of it and also make silage and haylage for winter feed. It is not growing," he said.

In the '7os clrought, Mr. Lunny said the family sold over half its herd "just to make it through."



Marin explores pipetine plan
MMWD

Drought fuels talks on water duct from East Bay
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By Will Houston

whouston@marinU.com

The potential for water shortages in Marin has become so acute that the Marin Municipal Water
District is in early talks with East Bay officials to build a pipeline across the Richmond-San
Rafael Bridgeto pump water into the county. The last such drastic move was during the 1976-
1977 drought, when the district cut water use by 57o/o and faced running out of water within four
months. The 6-mile pipeline gained statewide and federal attention and became a symbol of the
state's drought of record. Rebuilding the pipeline is one of several options being considered by
the district, including adding a temporary desalination plant, should this upcoming winter be as
dry as 2019 and 2020, said Ben Horenstein, the district general manager.

The Marin MunicipalWater District, facing diminished reservoir levels, is taking early steps toward a
potential supply pipeline along the Richmond-San Rafael Bridge.
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"lt's a very complex and costly project and it has a lot of elements that have to come together
for it to be successful," Horenstein said. "This would only be considered if the drought continues
into a third year or longer."

No cost estimates have been made, but Horenstein said it could likely take tens of millions of
dollars to construct such a pipeline, buy the water, treat it and then pump it over the bay.
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Jay Lund, co-director of University of California Davis Center for Watershed Sciences, said it's
common for water agencies to open up emergency connections with neighboring agencies
during a drought.

"lt's a deep drought. lt's early days," Lund said Wednesday. "All the water utilities and districts
ought to be reviewing their options and this sounds like a very prudent thing to do."

While this is the second time such an emergency pipeline to Marin could be constructed, Lund
said it's infrequent enough that it likely wouldn't require the district to consider investing in
another water source such as a desalination plant or connection to the State Water Project.

"l don't think they're behind the curve on anything in a big way," Lund said.

The 20 inches of rain that fell this winter in Marin is lower than the 1976-77 drought and the
second-lowest amount in 143 years of district record keeping, beat only by 1924. ln response,
the water district approved mandatory water restrictions earlier this month for the first time since
the late 1980s and could implement more, including limiting outdoor irrigation to two days per
week. The district hopes to have about a year's supply left at the start of December or it could
impose stricter conservation rules.

The district serves about 190,000 residents in central and southern Marin, The district relies
heavily on rainfall to replenish its seven reservoirs, but also receives 25o/o of its water from the
Russian River through the Sonoma Water agency.

ln 1977, the district relied on only five reservoirs, which had just a fifth of their normal supply
remaining at the start of the year. The '170,000 residents served by the district faced running out
of water in 120 days.

The district completed the bridge pipeline in June 1977 with the aid of a $5.6 million federal
loan, according to a U.S. Controller General report on the drought in 1977. The pipeline was
removed in 1982 when the threat of drought was believed to have passed.

Similar to 44 years ago, the Marin Municipal Water District would likely purchase any imported
water from the State Water Project. For example, the water could come from an agricultural
operator agreeing to fallow the fields for a year, and the district would buy the water rights,
Horenstein said.

Getting the water from the state's complex system of canals and dams over to coastal Marin
would be "very complicated and expensive," Horenstein said.

The East Bay Municipal Utility District would act as a go-between in the exchange and would
work to deliver any water to Marin. Several studies would have to take place to ensure the
district has the capacity in its system to handle the project and to determine where the pipeline
should connect to, according to district officials.

"lt's a bit early still to be able to say how exactly this would happen," said East Bay Municipal
Utilities District spokeswoman Andrea Pook. "The engineering studies have not yet been done."
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This is not the first time Marin has reconsidered the pipeline. During the drought in 2014, a
district study found it could cost about $45 million to construct a 7-mile pipeline that could
transport 5 million gallons of water per day. The idea was also discussed between Caltrans and
the water district in 2007. Neither consideration led to any action.

The Marin water district is beginning to lay the groundwork for future discussions about the
Richmond- San Rafael Bridge with Caltrans and the Bay Area Toll Authority. The Transportation
Authority of Marin, which manages traffic congestion projects and funding, has been in
preliminary conversations with the district about this, said executive director Anne Richman. As
to where the pipeline would fit on the bridge - especially with the recent addition of the new
bicycle and pedestrian path on the top deck - what traffic impacts could result from the
construction and where the pipeline would be located in Marin, Richman said, "All those
questions remain ahead of us."

The cost of such a pipeline would eventually come back to ratepayers, perhaps not directly,
Horenstein said, but by forcing the delay of other projects such as replacing aging pipes, pump
stations and storage tanks.

"To me, all of this is more reasoning to do what we're doing, which is focusing on water
conservation, " Horenstein said.
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Senate Dems detait $3 .48 drought plan

CALIFORNIA

F-unds aimed at ongoing projects and programs
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By Adam Beam

The Associated Press

SACRAMENTO> Mired in yet another drought that threatens drinking water,
endangered species of fish and the state's massive agriculture industry, Dernocrats in
the Caiifornia Senate on Thursday detailed a $3.4 billion proposal designed to gird the
state for a ne\ry crisis on the heels of a deadly and disruptive pandemic.

The proposal would equal all of the state's combined spending during the previous
drought, which lasted from 2012 to 2076, according to the l-egislative Analyst's
Office. That drought occurred after the Great Recession, when California routinely
battled multibillion-dollar budget deficits and struggled to pay for state services.

But this year, California is flush with cash after the forecasts of damaging deficits
because of the pandemic never came true. Nine months into California's fiscal year,
the state has so far collected $16.7 billion more in taxes than it had predicted. In
addition, the federal government has sent the state $26 billion as part of a coronavirus
relief package with broad authority on how to spend it.

"We live in an unprecedented time and ... I think we shouldn't have unprecedented
patience," Atkins said. "We really have an opportunity now and we should take
advantage of it."

California gets nearly all of its rain and snow in the winter and early spring. But this
yeaÍ, snowpack in the Sierra Nevada mountains is less than half of normal while most
of the state is well below their normal precipitation amounts.

The Senate proposal does not include money for big projects, like building new
reservoirs or repairing canals in the Central Valley. Instead, the money would bolster
projects and programs the state is akeady doing, setting them up for the dry, hot
months ahead.
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"'W.e've been working with them to identify noncontroversial early action projects that
will assist now 

- 
not six months fiom now, not a year or two or three years from

now," said Danny Merkley, director ofwater resources for the California Farm
Bureau. Merkley said he was involved in the discussions and he is "encouraged" by
the proposal.

The Senate, Assembly and Gov. Gavin Newsom's administration would need to agree

on any new spending. Newsom will reveal his updated budget proposal next month.
Assembly Democrats updated their "budget blueprint" on Wednesday to include
"increased investments" in things like "drought resiliency" and clean water. Assembly
Speaker Anthony Rendon said Thursday he looks forward to negotiating with
Newsom and Senate leaders on a final proposal.

About $285 million would be spent protecting fish and wildlife fi'om the drought,
including the state buying back water from farmers so it can be returned to the
Sacramento and San Joaquin river delta, reducing the salinity of the water and making
it safer for fish. It would also spend money on monitoring the salmon, which must
swim up the state's drought-depleted rivers to spawn.

But John McManus, president of the Golden State Salmon Association, worried the
proposal didn't do enough for the state's endangered f,rsh species.

"All the technology in the world so far is oniy delivering to us the best documented
extinction of native species," he said, referencing the delta smelt, a small fish native to
Caiifornia that some scientists say is practically extinct in the wild.

About a third of the money, or $1 billion, would pay off the accumulated debt of
unpaid water bills in the state, a problem caused by pandernic-induced economic
downturn. That money comes liom the federal government, part of the $1.9 trillion
coronavirus relief package President Joe Biden signed in March.

The rest of the money would come from a variety of sources, including state tax
dollars.

About half a billion dollars would pay for things like trucking ernergency water into
cisterns for small communities, rural storage tanks, and construction to connect
smaller water systems to bigger ones to ensure access to potable water in summer.

About $75 million would pay for things like remote sensors and gauges to measure

snow and rain to help officials make decisions about how much water they should
keep in reservoirs. That money includes $15 million to help the state better predict
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atmospheric rivers - the long, narrow bands of water vapor that form over the ocean
and flow through the sky.

This phenomenon creates between 30o/o and 50Yo of annual precipitation on the 'West

Coast of the United States, so knowing when and where they will occur can help
off,rcials plan on how to capture and store that water and better manage reservoirs.

About $500 million would pay for things like grants so homeo\¡/ners and local
officials can replace grassy lawns and medians with landscapes that rely on little or no
water. The money would also help farmers upgrade their irrigation systems to be more
efficient.

Atkins, who lives in San Diego, said she and her spouse have already replaced their
lawn to be more water efficient, although they did not take money from a state
program.

"That's very clearly happening throughout communities in California because we
understand what's at stake," she said.
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